
RECLAMATION DISTRICT NO. 1000 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

FRIDAY, OCTOBER 9, 2020 
8:00 A.M. 

WEB & TELEPHONE MEETING ONLY 

MODIFIED BROWN ACT REQUIREMENTS IN LIGHT OF COVID-19 

In Compliance with CA Executive Orders N-25-20 and N-29-20 members of the Board of Trustees and 
members of the public will participate in this meeting by teleconference.  The call-in information for the 
Board of Trustees and the public is as follows: 

Please join my meeting from your computer, tablet or smartphone. 
https://global.gotomeeting.com/join/273351061 

You can also dial in using your phone. 
United States (Toll Free): 1 866 899 4679 

United States: +1 (571) 317-3116 

Access Code: 273-351-061 

If you do not have the gotomeeting application downloaded, please allow yourself additional time prior 
to the meeting to install the free application on your computer, tablet or smartphone.  The application is 
not required to participate via phone.   

Any member of the public on the telephone may speak during Public Comment or may email public 
comments to kking@rd1000.org  and comments will be read from each member of the public.  During this 
period of modified Brown Act Requirements, the District will use best efforts to swiftly resolve requests 
for reasonable modifications or accommodations with individuals with disabilities, consistent with the 
Americans with Disabilities Act, and resolving any doubt whatsoever in favor of accessibility.  Requests for 
reasonable modifications under the ADA may be submitted to the email address noted above, or by phone 
directly to the District. 

All items requiring a vote of the Board of Trustees will be performed as a roll call vote to ensure votes are 
heard and recorded correctly.  In addition, the meeting will be recorded and participation in the meeting 
via gotomeeting and/or phone will serve as the participants acknowledgment and consent of recordation. 

BOARD PACKET 
Page 1 of 202

https://global.gotomeeting.com/join/273351061
tel:+18668994679,,273351061
tel:+15713173116,,273351061
mailto:kking@rd1000.org


RD 1000 Board Meeting 
October 9, 2020 

 

2 | P a g e  
 

 
AGENDA 

 
  
1. PRELIMINARY  

 

1.1. Call Meeting to Order 
1.2. Roll Call 
1.3. Approval of Agenda 
1.4. Pledge of Allegiance 
1.5. Conflict of Interest  

(Any Agenda items that might be a conflict of interest to any Trustee should be identified at this 
time by the Trustee involved) 
 

2. PRESENTATIONS 
 

2.1. No Scheduled Presentations 
 

3. PUBLIC COMMENT (NON-AGENDA ITEMS) 
 

Any person desiring to speak on a matter which is not scheduled on this agenda may do so under the 
Public Comments section. Speaker times are limited to three (3) minutes per person on any matter 
within RD 1000’s jurisdiction, not on the Agenda. 

Public comments on agenda or non-agenda items during the Board of Trustees meeting are for the 
purpose of informing the Board to assist Trustees in making decisions. Please address your comments 
to the President of the Board.  The Board President will request responses from staff, if appropriate.  
Please be aware the California Government Code prohibits the Board from taking any immediate 
action on an item which does not appear on the agenda unless the item meets stringent statutory 
requirements (see California Government Code Section 54954.2 (a)). 

Public comments during Board meetings are not for question and answers.  Should you have questions, 
please do not ask them as part of your public comments to the Board.  Answers will not be provided 
during Board meetings.  Please present your questions to any member of RD 1000 staff via e-mail, 
telephone, letter, or in-person at a time other than during a Board meeting. 

4. INFORMATIONAL ITEMS 
 

4.1. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT: Update on activities since the September 2020 Board Meeting. 
 

4.2. SUPERINTENDENT’S REPORT:  Update on activities since the September 2020 Board Meeting. 
 

4.3. DISTRICT COUNSEL’S REPORT: Update on activities since the September 2020 Board Meeting. 
 

5. CONSENT CALENDAR 

The Board considers all Consent Calendar items to be routine and will adopt them in one motion.  There 
will be no discussion on these items before the Board votes on the motion, unless Trustees, staff or the 
public request specific items be discussed and/or removed from the Consent Calendar. 
 

BOARD PACKET 
Page 2 of 202



RD 1000 Board Meeting 
October 9, 2020 

 

3 | P a g e  
 

5.1. APPROVAL OF MINUTES: Approval of Minutes from September 11, 2020 Regular Board Meeting. 
 

5.2. TREASURER’S REPORT: Approve Treasurer’s Report for September 2020. 
 

5.3. EXPENDITURE REPORT: Review and Accept Report for September 2020. 
 

5.4. BUDGET TO ACTUAL REPORT: Review and Accept Report for September 2020. 

 
6. SCHEDULED ITEMS 

 

6.1. PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT: Review and Consider Authorizing the General Manager 
to Execute a Professional Services Agreement with Civil Engineering Solutions, INC for Natomas 
Basin Hydraulic Model Project. 

6.2. PROPERTY ACQUISITION: Review and Consider Authorizing the General Manager to Acquire 
Property (Lone Tree Canal). 

 
7. BOARD OF TRUSTEE’S COMMENTS/REPORTS 

 

7.1. BOARD ACTIVITY UPDATES: 
 

7.1.1.   RD 1000 Committee Meetings Since Last Board Meeting 
• Executive Committee Meeting (Smith & Burns) September 30, 2020 

 

8. CLOSED SESSION 
 

No Closed Session Items 
 

9. ADJOURN 

BOARD PACKET 
Page 3 of 202



  
  
  RECLAMATION DISTRICT 1000 
 

Item 4.1 – Page 1 
 

 
 

DATE:  OCTOBER 9, 2020 AGENDA ITEM NO. 4.1 
 

 
TITLE:  General Manager’s Report – October 2020  
 
SUBJECT: Update on activities since the September 2020 Board of Trustees Meeting  
 

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 
 

This Staff Report is intended to report the noteworthy activities and events of the District. 
Noteworthy activity from September included continued coordination on Natomas Levee 
Improvement Project with the United States Army Corps of Engineers, SAFCA and others, 
evaluation of a proposals for the Request for Qualifications for the Natomas Basin Hydraulic 
Model Project, FMAP Vegetation Removal Project kickoff, District election coordination and 
preparation, Steelhead Creek Cleanup with Central Valley Regional Water Quality Control Board 
and participation as a speaker for two sessions in the Flood Plain Management Association 
Annual Conference. In summary, the District had a productive and successful month.  Our key 
activities and achievements are presented below: 
 

BACKGROUND: 
 

1. Administration Services 
a. Comprehensive Financial Plan 

i. Working with NBS to prepare draft Comprehensive Financial Plan for 
review by Finance Committee.  Draft report is anticipated in Fall 2020.  The 
adopted Capital Improvement Plan was provided to NBS on September 4, 
2020, for expenditures to be included into the Financial Plan. 

b. District Election 

i. Coordination and preparation of the District’s Election.  Significant effort 
has been spent in consultation with District Counsel to prepare the 
election materials, including ballots, candidate statements, proxy forms 
and election guidelines. 

2. District Operations 
a. Routine Operations & Maintenance: 

i. District Crews continue to perform routine maintenance and operations of 
the District’s infrastructure.  See Agenda Item 4.2 (Superintendent’s 
Report) for more information regarding activities performed in September 
2020. 

ii. District Crews participated in the Annual Steelhead Creek Cleanup effort 
coordinated with the Central Valley Regional Water Quality Control Board. 

 

BOARD PACKET 
Page 4 of 202



TITLE:  General Manager’s Report – October 2020 
 

Item 4.1 – Page 2 
 

3. Development Projects 
a. Greenbriar 

i. Working with Developer to consider ownership of Lone Tree Canal post 
development. See Item 6.2. 

b. Grand Park 

i. Working with Developer to update Project Review Processing and Funding 
Agreement.   

4. Capital Improvement Projects 
a. CIP Update 

i. District entered into Professional Services Agreement with KSN, Inc. on 
November 12, 2019.  A kickoff meeting was held on December 2, 2019. 

ii. Condition Assessment and Facility Inventory finalized in December 2019. 

iii. KSN prepared Draft Final Report and presented the aforementioned report 
to the Board of Trustees on June 12, 2020. 

iv. On August 14, 2020, the Board of Trustees adopted the Capital 
Improvement Plan Update with minor revisions to the draft presented.  
The Final adopted CIP was provided to the Board on September 11, 2020. 

5. Natomas Levee Improvement Projects 

a. Reach A 

i. The Corps issued its 95% plans for this reach early in August and 100% 
plans are in progress.  SAFCA is in the processing of acquiring necessary 
right of way including several homes.   

ii. Clearing of trees and relocation of utilities starts in winter 2021 Contract 
Award is scheduled for September 2021 with cutoff wall and adjacent 
levee construction starting in spring 2022. 

b. Reach B 

i. This construction project contract was awarded in spring, 2020.  Initial 
clearing and stripping as well as demolition of three houses has 
commenced.  Cutoff wall construction, construction of the adjacent levee 
and seepage berm will commence next spring.  Don Caldwell has been 
representing the District and working with the Corps’ inspectors and 
resident engineers to provide project support.   

ii. The plans have been completed for the Reach B, I 5 Window closure 
project. The bidding on this project is being held, waiting for the result of 
negotiations with Caltrans on a framework agreement with DWR, SAFCA, 
and the Corps covering their review and processing of comments on the 
various NLIP projects where Caltrans permits are required.   

BOARD PACKET 
Page 5 of 202



TITLE:  General Manager’s Report – October 2020 

Item 4.1 – Page 3 

iii. Clearing and grubbing has commenced and full construction activity will
commence in spring 2021.  A separate project to close the I-5 window in
Reach B at the crossing of the Sacramento River is scheduled for spring
2021.

c. Reach C

i. The Reach C project was completed by SAFCA several years ago and the
Districts’ role is now providing annual maintenance activities in this
reach.

d. Reach D

i. The relocation of the Vestal Drain was completed in early summer 2020,
however the project is still in the final acceptance phase.  District staff and
consultants maintain constant contact with the Corps’ inspectors and
Resident Engineers, lobbying for completion of the Districts’ punch list of
deficiencies prior to flood season.  The plans for reconstruction of Pumping 
Plant 4 have been repackaged into a separate project – having been
deleted from the earlier construction project due to delays resulting from
PG&E conflicts.  Project construction award is scheduled for end of
calendar year 2020.  District consultants M & H and staff have conducted
a review and have commented on these plans.

ii. Bids will be solicited soon for reconstructing Pumping Plant 4 including
new plant pumps, motors and other equipment purchased during the NCC
levee and canal work contract which concluded this summer. The schedule
is to award the Plant 4 work by the end of 2020.

e. Reach E

i. Reach E extends along the Pleasant Grove Creek Canal from Sankey Road
north to Howsley Road.

ii. The Corps of Engineers completed the 65% plans in July.   Comments were
due by August 28.  The District submitted comments along with SAFCA and
State DWR.  The proposed project includes limited areas of a 50-foot-deep
cut off wall and levee widening with 3:1 back slope and a landside levee
patrol road for the entire length.

iii. Comments were submitted on the 65% plans.  Proposed work includes
levee widening and limited cut-off wall.  SAFCA and State DWR are
working on right of way acquisition.  The 90% plans are due in January
2021 with Contract Award scheduled for July 2021.

iv. As part of the project, the existing five drainage culverts through the levee
foundation will be replaced with reinforced concrete pipe from beyond the
waterside levee toe through the existing levee and the new widened levee
section.

BOARD PACKET 
Page 6 of 202



TITLE:  General Manager’s Report – October 2020 
 

Item 4.1 – Page 4 
 

v. Current schedule is for contract award in July 2021 with construction 
complete by November 2022 (two construction seasons).  

f. Reach F 

i. Reach F is along the Natomas East Main Drain Canal from Sankey Road to 
Elverta Road.  It is being designed concurrently with Reach G 

ii. The Corps of Engineers and non-federal sponsors (NFS) held the 10% 
design review in August.  The Corps preliminary design does not include 
cut-off walls but does include levee widening—currently on both land 
and waterside.  NFS are recommending no waterside fill and will have our 
geotechnical consultant review the design which may suggest some 
cutoff walls and consistent design with Reach G. 

iii. The project team reviewed the preliminary design and provided input on 
the proposed design.  Current plans propose levee widening and 
potentially limited cutoff walls.  Current schedule is for 35% plans by 
January 2021 with Contract Award in spring 2022. 

g. Reach G 

i. Reach G is along the Natomas East Main Drain Canal from Elverta Road to 
south of Elkhorn Blvd.   It is being designed concurrently with Reach F.  

ii. The Corps of Engineers and NFS held the 10% design review in August.  
The Corps preliminary design includes some limited cutoff walls and levee 
widening with landside slope flattening (3:1) and patrol road the entire 
length similar to Reach E.   

iii. Next milestone is 35% plans in January 2021.  Current schedule is for 
contract award in March 2022.         

h. Reach H  

i. Levee cutoff walls, slope flattening and restoration of the levee section will 
be complete by November 1 of this year.  Patrol / maintenance road 
grading may continue into 2021.  

ii. Installation of raised discharge pipes for Pumping Plant 8 is scheduled for 
completion by November 1, 2020 but may need to be extended by a few 
weeks due to unforeseen difficulties with connections to the existing 
pipes.  

i. Reach I 

i. Construction of the cutoff wall and levee slope flattening is essentially 
complete, requiring only repaving and stripping for contract completion. 

ii. District staff, consultants, and project representative are winding down 
their project monitoring and support activities for this construction work.   

iii. Construction of the cutoff wall is complete.  A separate contract (Reach I 

BOARD PACKET 
Page 7 of 202



TITLE:  General Manager’s Report – October 2020 
 

Item 4.1 – Page 5 
 

Contract 2) to construct a patrol / maintenance road and perform levee 
slope flattening is scheduled to be awarded in late 2021 for construction 
in 2022 pending right of way acquisition 

6. Miscellaneous 
a. DWR Flood Maintenance Assistance Program (FMAP) 

i. GM King received funding agreement for 2020/2021 FMAP application on 
December 4, 2019.   

ii. As authorized by the Board on August 9, 2019 (RD 1000 Resolution No. 
2019-08-05) GM King signed the funding agreement in January and 
returned to DWR for signatures. 

iii. FMAP 2020/2021 Funding Agreement was executed in June 2020.  District 
requested and received advance payment for the full grant amount. 

iv. Vegetation Removal Solicitation for Proposals was issued in August 2020. 

v. The District signed purchase order for the FMAP equipment purchases and 
anticipates delivery of said vehicles in mid October 2020. 

vi. District received one response to requests for bids for vegetation removal 
on September 1, 2020.  General Manager King awarded contract to 
Emerald Services on September 9, 2020 as previously authorized by the 
Board of Trustees. 

vii. Emerald began vegetation removal on September 23, 2020. 

viii. District was notified by DWR of approval of FMAP funds for 2021/2022 and 
anticipates award of contract in early 2021.  District will receive $792K in 
award in FY 2021/2022.  General Manager King has signed the FMAP 
2021/2022 Funding Agreement and submitted to DWR on October 7, 
2020. 

b. Sacramento Area Flood Control Agency (SAFCA) 

i. Board Meeting – September 17, 2020 (Attachment No. 1) 

c. System Wide Improvement Framework (SWIF) 

i. The District submitted a revised SWIF to the Central Valley Flood 
Protection Board and the United States Army Corps of Engineers on August 
31, 2020, awaiting approval. 

d. Natomas Basin Hydraulic Model 

i. The District issued a Request for Qualifications (RFQ) for the Natomas 
Basin Hydraulic Model Project on July 31, 2020. 

ii. District received two responses on August 31, 2020. 

iii. Respondent Interviews were conducted September 18, 2020.  See Agenda 
Item 6.1 for more information. 

BOARD PACKET 
Page 8 of 202



TITLE:  General Manager’s Report – October 2020 
 

Item 4.1 – Page 6 
 

e. AB 156 Annual Report 

i. GM King submitted the District’s AB 156 Annual Report on September 30.  
(Attachment No. 2) 

 

 ATTACHMENTS: 

1. SAFCA Board Meeting – September 17, 2020 
2. AB 156 Annual Report 2019 – September 30, 2020 

 
STAFF RESPONSIBLE FOR REPORT: 
 
 
____________________________________________    Date: 10/01/2020 
Kevin L. King, General Manager 

BOARD PACKET 
Page 9 of 202



Board of Directors Action Summary of  
September 17, 2020 - 3:00 PM 

WEBEX MEETING 

Directors/Alternates Present: Avdis, Burns, 
Conant, Harris, Hedges, Holloway, Jennings, Kennedy, Nava, Nottoli, 
Peters, Shah 

Directors Absent: Ashby 

ROLL CALL 

PUBLIC COMMENTS 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR'S REPORT 

1 Information - Executive Director’s Report for September 17, 2020 (Johnson) 

CONSENT MATTERS 

Motion By Director  Brian Holloway, seconded by Director  Rick Jennings to 
approve Resolution Nos: 2020-096; 2020-097; 2020-098; and 2020-099 of 
Consent Matters 

AYES: Avdis, Burns, Conant, Harris, Hedges, Holloway, Jennings, 
Kennedy, Nava, Nottoli, Peters, and Shah 
NOES: (None) 
ABSTAIN: (None) 
ABSENT: Ashby 

BOARD PACKET 
Page 10 of 202

AGENDA ITEM 4.1
ATTACHMENT NO. 1

http://www2.agendanet.saccounty.net/SAFCA/Meetings/ViewMeeting?id=6471&doctype=2
http://www2.agendanet.saccounty.net/SAFCA/Meetings/ViewMeeting?id=6471&doctype=2
http://www2.agendanet.saccounty.net/SAFCA/Meetings/ViewMeeting?id=6471&doctype=2
http://www2.agendanet.saccounty.net/SAFCA/Meetings/ViewMeeting?id=6471&doctype=2
http://www2.agendanet.saccounty.net/SAFCA/Meetings/ViewMeeting?id=6471&doctype=2


RECUSAL: (None) 

2 Approving the Action Summary for August 20, 2020 (Russell) 

3 Resolution No. 2020-096 - Authorizing the Executive Director to Execute 
Amendment No. 1 to Contract No. 1506 with Wood Rodgers, Inc., for 
Professional Engineering Services to Design Levee Improvements Along the 
North Beach Lake Levee and Morrison Creek (Ghelfi)

4 Resolution No. 2020-097 - Adoption of Addendum No. 7 to the Final 
Environmental Impact Report (State Clearinghouse #2009112025) on the 
American River Watershed Common Features Project/Natomas Post-
Authorization Change Report/ Natomas Levee Improvement Program Phase 
4b Landside Improvements Project (November 2010) and Approval of 
Modifications and Refinements to the Natomas Levee Improvement Program 
Phase 4b Project 
(Bardini) 

5 Resolution No. 2020-098 - Authorizing the Executive Director to Serve 
a Second Term on the Board of Directors of the National Waterways 
Conference (Johnson) 

6 Resolution No. 2020-099 - Authorizing the Executive Director to Execute 
Amendment No. 3 to Contract No. 1446 with Larsen Wurzel & Associates, Inc. 
for Financial Management and General Engineering Support Services Related 
to State Funding Agreements for the Natomas Levee Improvement Project 
(Bassett) 

ADJOURN 

Respectfully submitted, 
Lyndee Russell 

BOARD PACKET 
Page 11 of 202

http://www2.agendanet.saccounty.net/SAFCA/Meetings/ViewMeeting?id=6471&doctype=2
http://www2.agendanet.saccounty.net/SAFCA/Meetings/ViewMeeting?id=6471&doctype=2
http://www2.agendanet.saccounty.net/SAFCA/Meetings/ViewMeeting?id=6471&doctype=2
http://www2.agendanet.saccounty.net/SAFCA/Meetings/ViewMeeting?id=6471&doctype=2
http://www2.agendanet.saccounty.net/SAFCA/Meetings/ViewMeeting?id=6471&doctype=2
http://www2.agendanet.saccounty.net/SAFCA/Meetings/ViewMeeting?id=6471&doctype=2
http://www2.agendanet.saccounty.net/SAFCA/Meetings/ViewMeeting?id=6471&doctype=2
http://www2.agendanet.saccounty.net/SAFCA/Meetings/ViewMeeting?id=6471&doctype=2
http://www2.agendanet.saccounty.net/SAFCA/Meetings/ViewMeeting?id=6471&doctype=2
http://www2.agendanet.saccounty.net/SAFCA/Meetings/ViewMeeting?id=6471&doctype=2
http://www2.agendanet.saccounty.net/SAFCA/Meetings/ViewMeeting?id=6471&doctype=2
http://www2.agendanet.saccounty.net/SAFCA/Meetings/ViewMeeting?id=6471&doctype=2
http://www2.agendanet.saccounty.net/SAFCA/Meetings/ViewMeeting?id=6471&doctype=2
http://www2.agendanet.saccounty.net/SAFCA/Meetings/ViewMeeting?id=6471&doctype=2
http://www2.agendanet.saccounty.net/SAFCA/Meetings/ViewMeeting?id=6471&doctype=2
http://www2.agendanet.saccounty.net/SAFCA/Meetings/ViewMeeting?id=6471&doctype=2
http://www2.agendanet.saccounty.net/SAFCA/Meetings/ViewMeeting?id=6471&doctype=2
http://www2.agendanet.saccounty.net/SAFCA/Meetings/ViewMeeting?id=6471&doctype=2
http://www2.agendanet.saccounty.net/SAFCA/Meetings/ViewMeeting?id=6471&doctype=2
http://www2.agendanet.saccounty.net/SAFCA/Meetings/ViewMeeting?id=6471&doctype=2
http://www2.agendanet.saccounty.net/SAFCA/Meetings/ViewMeeting?id=6471&doctype=2


Reclamation District No. 1000

IDPART# UNIT CATEGORY FEATURE/CONDITION DESCRIPTION SLM ELM ESTIMATED COST

Department of Water Resources
Division of Flood Management Local Maintaining Agency Assessment Section

Flood Project Inspection and Assessment Branch

ADDITIONAL COMMENTS

Annual Report (01/01/2020 - 10/01/2020)

1 All Units Access Gates Nothing to Report40442

1 All Units Access Roads and Road
Ramps

Landside Toe Access / Patrol Road USACE's Natomas Levee Improvement
Program will include access/patrol road at the
levee toe for O&M activities and emergency
response operations. No change for 2020

40443

1 All Units Accumulation of Drift,
Trash or Debris

Accumulation of Drift, Trash Debris District continues to struggle with adequate
removal of trash and debris accumulation,
particularly in areas where high densities of
unauthorized encampments existing.

40444

1 All Units Barren Area/No Cover or
Sod

Nothing to Report40446

1 All Units Berm Erosion Nothing to Report40447

1 All Units Bridges and Crossings Nothing to Report40448

1 All Units Burrow Holes Nothing to Report40449

1 All Units Caving Nothing to Report40450

1 All Units Compaction/Loose Fill Nothing to Report40451

1 All Units Dredging Nothing to Report40452

1 All Units Encroachment Nothing to Report40453

1 All Units Flood Walls Nothing to Report40454

1 All Units In-Channel Vegetation Nothing to Report40456

1 All Units Levee Crown Nothing to Report40457

1 All Units Minor Settlement,
Sloughing, or Loss of
Grade

Nothing to Report40458

1 All Units Other Nothing to Report40459

1 All Units Pipe Flap Gates/Gate
Valves

Nothing to Report40460

10Page 1 of09/30/2020 2.37 PM SLM - Start of Levee Mile  :  ELM - End of Levee MileBOARD PACKET 
Page 12 of 202

AGENDA ITEM 4.1
ATTACHMENT NO. 2



Reclamation District No. 1000

IDPART# UNIT CATEGORY FEATURE/CONDITION DESCRIPTION SLM ELM ESTIMATED COST

Department of Water Resources
Division of Flood Management Local Maintaining Agency Assessment Section

Flood Project Inspection and Assessment Branch

ADDITIONAL COMMENTS

Annual Report (01/01/2020 - 10/01/2020)

1 All Units Pump Stations Nothing to Report40461

1 All Units Relief Wells/Piezometers Nothing to Report40462

1 All Units Revetment/Rip-Rap Nothing to Report40463

1 All Units Sediment Accumulation Nothing to Report40464

1 All Units Toe Drainage Systems Nothing to Report40465

1 All Units Unauthorized Grazing or
Vehicle Traffic

Nothing to Report40466

1 All Units Vegetation Nothing to Report40467

1 Unit No. 01 Sacramento River Pump Stations Discharge Tunnels for Pumping Plant 1A The discharge pipes/tunnels for the District's
Pumping Plant 1A cross through the foundation
of the levee to the Sacramento River.  USACE
is currently evaluating improvements to the
existing tunnels and is working with the District
and SAFCA on options to address any levee
safety issues including
abandonment/replacement/or rehabilitation.

40469

1 Unit No. 03 Natomas East
Canal

Vegetation Land-side and Water-side Slope Vegetation Existing trees and vegetation on the land-side
and water-side of the levee slope impeded
visual and physical access for inspection and
monitoring.  District received DWR Flood
Maintenance Assistance Program funding
($200K) for vegetation removal in 2020.  The
District, at the time of this report, is soliciting
bids and plans to have the vegetation removed
from the water-side slope from Truxel Road to
Northgate Blvd before December 31, 2019.
Tree Removal in the same area will be
performed on the water-side slope in 2021, if
the District is awarded additional FMAP funds,
as applied for in 2020.
District is working with USACE, SAFCA,
CVFPB/DWR to resolve visual and physical
access on the land-side slope with work
beginning in 2020 and scheduled completion in

40470

10Page 2 of09/30/2020 2.37 PM SLM - Start of Levee Mile  :  ELM - End of Levee MileBOARD PACKET 
Page 13 of 202



Reclamation District No. 1000

IDPART# UNIT CATEGORY FEATURE/CONDITION DESCRIPTION SLM ELM ESTIMATED COST

Department of Water Resources
Division of Flood Management Local Maintaining Agency Assessment Section

Flood Project Inspection and Assessment Branch

ADDITIONAL COMMENTS

Annual Report (01/01/2020 - 10/01/2020)

1 Unit No. 03 Natomas East
Canal

Vegetation Land-side and Water-side Slope Vegetation 2020 along Reach H and I.

2 All Units Burrow Holes Noting to Report40472

2 All Units Channel Migration Noting to Report40473

2 All Units Closure Structures Noting to Report40474

2 All Units Cracks Noting to Report40475

2 All Units Deficient
Freeboard/Levee Crown
Height

Noting to Report40476

2 All Units Flood Walls Noting to Report40477

2 All Units Levee Erosion Noting to Report40478

2 All Units Major Settlement,
Sloughing, or Loss of
Grade

Noting to Report40479

2 All Units Other Unauthorized Encampments and
Concealment of Levee

District spent significant time with CVFPB and
others to introduce legislation (AB 1958-
Cooper), to modify water code sections aimed
at preventing concealment of levees in order to
visually and physically inspect and monitor the
levee system.  AB 1958 was pulled by the bill
author before the CA Senate Natural
Resources, Parks and Wildlife Committee
hearing after a 74-0 vote by the Assembly.
District will be strongly advocating for a similar
bill during the next legislative session.  District
strongly advocates for long term, state-wide
solutions to this rapidly expanding problem.

40480

2 All Units Pipe Crossing Noting to Report40481

2 All Units Problems Identified on
Adjacent Levees
Protecting Same Area

Noting to Report40482

10Page 3 of09/30/2020 2.37 PM SLM - Start of Levee Mile  :  ELM - End of Levee MileBOARD PACKET 
Page 14 of 202



Reclamation District No. 1000

IDPART# UNIT CATEGORY FEATURE/CONDITION DESCRIPTION SLM ELM ESTIMATED COST

Department of Water Resources
Division of Flood Management Local Maintaining Agency Assessment Section

Flood Project Inspection and Assessment Branch

ADDITIONAL COMMENTS

Annual Report (01/01/2020 - 10/01/2020)

2 All Units Sand Boils Noting to Report40483

2 All Units Seepage Noting to Report40484

2 All Units Sinkhole Noting to Report40485

2 All Units Subsidence Noting to Report40486

2 Unit No. 01 Sacramento River Deficient
Freeboard/Levee Crown
Height

Insufficient Free-Board @ 200 year Water
Surface Elevation

Garden Highway: 300 feet south Interstate 5
(near Bayou Road).  See 2015 Report, no
change in 2020.

40487

2 Unit No. 01 Sacramento River Levee Erosion Waterside Berm Erosion 7907 Garden Highway. District is closely
monitoring berm erosion first noted in 2017 and
coordinating with CVFPB and Property owner
to address CVFPB NOV.

40488

2 Unit No. 03 Natomas East
Canal

Deficient
Freeboard/Levee Crown
Height

Deficient Levee Crown Height and Slope
Stability

Previously reported deficiency in levee crown
and slope stability to meet levee stability and
200-year Water Surface Elevation safety is
currently under construction by USACE
between Dry Creek and the American River
(Reach H) and between Northgate and Truxel
(Reach I), major work was completed by
October 15, 2019 and Phase 2 will started in
April 2020, with scheduled completion by
December 1, 2020.

40489

3 All Units Active Ongoing Program
in Place

Nothing to Report $ 0.0040490

3 All Units Encroachment Control Nothing to Report $ 0.0040491

3 All Units Erosion Repair Nothing to Report $ 0.0040492

3 All Units Gates Nothing to Report $ 0.0040493

3 All Units Inspections Nothing to Report $ 0.0040494

3 All Units Insurance and Dues Nothing to Report $ 0.0040495

10Page 4 of09/30/2020 2.37 PM SLM - Start of Levee Mile  :  ELM - End of Levee MileBOARD PACKET 
Page 15 of 202



Reclamation District No. 1000

IDPART# UNIT CATEGORY FEATURE/CONDITION DESCRIPTION SLM ELM ESTIMATED COST

Department of Water Resources
Division of Flood Management Local Maintaining Agency Assessment Section

Flood Project Inspection and Assessment Branch

ADDITIONAL COMMENTS

Annual Report (01/01/2020 - 10/01/2020)

3 All Units Legal/Administrative/Man
agement Services

Nothing to Report $ 0.0040496

3 All Units Minor Structure
Repair/Maintenance

Nothing to Report $ 0.0040498

3 All Units Mobile Equipment Costs Nothing to Report $ 0.0040499

3 All Units Office Overhead Nothing to Report $ 0.0040500

3 All Units Other Nothing to Report $ 0.0040501

3 All Units Patrolling Nothing to Report $ 0.0040502

3 All Units Permitting Nothing to Report $ 0.0040503

3 All Units Restoration Nothing to Report $ 0.0040504

3 All Units Roadways Road Maintenance $ 0.00District adds new AB and grades access roads
along levee crowns and land-side toe (where
existing) as necessary to provide for all-
weather access during flood season.

40505

3 All Units Rodent Control/Bait and
Traps

Rodent Control $ 0.00D 1000 monitors levees for rodent activity. Bait
stations are deployed in high infestation areas.
Following baiting and observation of diminished
activity, District crews fill holes with earthen
materials and compacts.  No update for 2020

40506

3 All Units Rodent Control/Grouting Nothing to Report $ 0.0040507

3 All Units Sediment Removal Nothing to Report $ 0.0040508

3 All Units Seepage Control Nothing to Report $ 0.0040509

3 All Units Slope Dragging Nothing to Report $ 0.0040510

3 All Units Surveying and
Engineering

Nothing to Report $ 0.0040511

3 All Units Telemetry Maintenance Nothing to Report $ 0.0040512

10Page 5 of09/30/2020 2.37 PM SLM - Start of Levee Mile  :  ELM - End of Levee MileBOARD PACKET 
Page 16 of 202



Reclamation District No. 1000

IDPART# UNIT CATEGORY FEATURE/CONDITION DESCRIPTION SLM ELM ESTIMATED COST

Department of Water Resources
Division of Flood Management Local Maintaining Agency Assessment Section

Flood Project Inspection and Assessment Branch

ADDITIONAL COMMENTS

Annual Report (01/01/2020 - 10/01/2020)

3 All Units Vegetation Control/Burn Nothing to Report $ 0.0040513

3 All Units Vegetation
Control/Channel

Nothing to Report $ 0.0040514

3 All Units Vegetation Control/Mow Vegetation Mowing $ 0.00District performed vegetation mowing on
levees.  The District was slightly behind
schedule due to prolonged precipitation in the
spring coupled with District resources being
redirected to remove unauthorized
encampments and to repair the resultant
damage to levee slope.  Nevertheless, all
levees were mowed at least once during 2020

40515

3 All Units Vegetation Control/Other Vegetation Control / Other Cut and Bale
Vegetation

$ 0.00District contracted for the cutting and bailing of
vegetation from the Natomas Cross Canal to
south of Powerline Road along Garden
Highway on the landside stability berm per
agreement with SAFCA's NLIP project.

40516

3 All Units Vegetation Control/Spray Vegetation Control/Spray Herbicide
Treatment

$ 0.00District performed herbicide applications in
conjunction with mowing activities to control
vegetative growth on levee and adjacent lands
in 2020.

40518

3 All Units Vegetation Control/Thin
and Trim

Vegetation Trimming $ 0.00District performed vegetation trimming and
thinning as necessary to provide visual and
physical access of the levee and adjacent lands
in 2020.

40519

3 All Units Vegetation Control/Tree
Removal

Nothing to Report $ 0.0040520

4 All Units Active Ongoing Program
in Place

Nothing to Report $ 0.0040522

4 All Units Encroachment Control Nothing to Report $ 0.0040523

4 All Units Erosion Repair Nothing to Report $ 144.0040524

4 All Units Gates Nothing to Report $ 4,676.0040526

4 All Units Inspections Nothing to Report $ 0.0040527

4 All Units Insurance and Dues Nothing to Report $ 0.0040528

10Page 6 of09/30/2020 2.37 PM SLM - Start of Levee Mile  :  ELM - End of Levee MileBOARD PACKET 
Page 17 of 202



Reclamation District No. 1000

IDPART# UNIT CATEGORY FEATURE/CONDITION DESCRIPTION SLM ELM ESTIMATED COST

Department of Water Resources
Division of Flood Management Local Maintaining Agency Assessment Section

Flood Project Inspection and Assessment Branch

ADDITIONAL COMMENTS

Annual Report (01/01/2020 - 10/01/2020)

4 All Units Legal/Administrative/Man
agement Services

Nothing to Report $ 0.0040529

4 All Units Minor Structure
Repair/Maintenance

Nothing to Report $ 0.0040530

4 All Units Mobile Equipment Costs Nothing to Report $ 0.0040531

4 All Units Office Overhead Nothing to Report $ 0.0040532

4 All Units Other Operations & Maintenance Budget $ 4,762,162.00See Attached 2020/2021 District Budget40536

4 All Units Patrolling Nothing to Report $ 76,387.0040537

4 All Units Permitting Nothing to Report $ 0.0040538

4 All Units Restoration Nothing to Report $ 0.0040539

4 All Units Roadways Nothing to Report $ 0.0040541

4 All Units Rodent Control/Bait and
Traps

Nothing to Report $ 0.0040542

4 All Units Rodent Control/Grouting Nothing to Report $ 0.0040543

4 All Units Sediment Removal Nothing to Report $ 1,531.0040544

4 All Units Seepage Control Nothing to Report $ 0.0040545

4 All Units Slope Dragging Nothing to Report $ 0.0040546

4 All Units Surveying and
Engineering

Nothing to Report $ 0.0040547

4 All Units Telemetry Maintenance Nothing to Report $ 0.0040548

4 All Units Vegetation Control/Burn Nothing to Report $ 0.0040549

4 All Units Vegetation
Control/Channel

Nothing to Report $ 0.0040551

4 All Units Vegetation Control/Mow Nothing to Report $ 145,958.0040553

10Page 7 of09/30/2020 2.37 PM SLM - Start of Levee Mile  :  ELM - End of Levee MileBOARD PACKET 
Page 18 of 202



Reclamation District No. 1000

IDPART# UNIT CATEGORY FEATURE/CONDITION DESCRIPTION SLM ELM ESTIMATED COST

Department of Water Resources
Division of Flood Management Local Maintaining Agency Assessment Section

Flood Project Inspection and Assessment Branch

ADDITIONAL COMMENTS

Annual Report (01/01/2020 - 10/01/2020)

4 All Units Vegetation Control/Other Nothing to Report $ 15,072.0040554

4 All Units Vegetation Control/Spray Nothing to Report $ 51,433.0040555

4 All Units Vegetation Control/Thin
and Trim

Nothing to Report $ 0.0040556

4 All Units Vegetation Control/Tree
Removal

Nothing to Report $ 27,435.0040557

5 All Units Construction
Drawings/As-Builts

Nothing to Report40558

5 All Units Distress Information Nothing to Report40559

5 All Units Dump/Hazardous Waste
Sites

Nothing to Report40560

5 All Units Emergency Action Plan Nothing to Report No Update to the District's 2017 Emergency
Action Plan

40561

5 All Units Emergency Operations
Plan

Nothing to Report40562

5 All Units Emergency Recovery
Plan

Nothing to Report40564

5 All Units Encroachments Nothing to Report40565

5 All Units Geotechnical
Investigations

Nothing to Report40566

5 All Units Historical Construction
Issues

Nothing to Report40567

5 All Units Historical Levee Distress
Issues

Nothing to Report40568

5 All Units New Construction
Planned/Approved

Natomas Levee Improvement Project Natomas Levee Improvement Projects
a. Reach A: Sacramento River
south of San Juan Road to I-5.
The Corps issued its 95% plans for
this reach early in August and 100%
plans are in progress.  SAFCA is in
the processing of acquiring
necessary right of way including
several homes.
Clearing of trees and relocation of
utilities starts in winter 2021
Contract Award is scheduled for
September 2021 with cutoff wall and
adjacent levee construction
starting in spring 2022.

40570

10Page 8 of09/30/2020 2.37 PM SLM - Start of Levee Mile  :  ELM - End of Levee MileBOARD PACKET 
Page 19 of 202



Reclamation District No. 1000

IDPART# UNIT CATEGORY FEATURE/CONDITION DESCRIPTION SLM ELM ESTIMATED COST

Department of Water Resources
Division of Flood Management Local Maintaining Agency Assessment Section

Flood Project Inspection and Assessment Branch

ADDITIONAL COMMENTS

Annual Report (01/01/2020 - 10/01/2020)

5 All Units New Construction
Planned/Approved

Natomas Levee Improvement Project b. Reach B:  Sacramento
River south of Powerline Road to
San Juan Road
Clearing and grubbing has commenced
and full construction activity will
commence in spring 2021.  A
separate project to close the I-5
window in Reach B at the crossing
of the Sacramento River is
scheduled for spring 2021.
c. Reach D: Natomas Cross
Canal; Pumping Plant 4.
Bids will be solicited soon for
reconstructing Pumping Plant 4
including new plant pumps, motors
and other equipment purchased
during the NCC levee and canal work
contract which concluded this
summer. The schedule is to award
the Plant 4 work by the end of 2020
d. Reach E: PGCC Howsley
Road to Sankey Road
Comments were submitted on the 65%
plans.  Proposed work includes
levee widening and limited cut-off
wall.  SAFCA and State DWR are
working on right of way
acquisition.  The 90% plans are due
in January 2021 with Contract Award
scheduled for July 2021.
e. Reaches F and G: NEMDC
Sankey Road to south of Elkhorn
Blvd
The project team reviewed the
preliminary design and provided
input on the proposed design.
Current plans propose levee
widening and potentially limited
cutoff walls.  Current schedule is
for 35% plans by January 2021 with
Contract Award in spring 2022.
f. Reach H : NEMDC
Northgate Blvd to south of Elkhorn
Blvd
Levee cutoff walls, slope
flattening and restoration of the
levee section will be complete by
November 1 of this year.  Patrol /
maintenance road grading may
continue into 2021.  Installation
of raised discharge pipes for
Pumping Plant 8 is scheduled for
completion by November 1, 2020 but
may need to be extended by a few
weeks due to unforeseen

10Page 9 of09/30/2020 2.37 PM SLM - Start of Levee Mile  :  ELM - End of Levee MileBOARD PACKET 
Page 20 of 202



Reclamation District No. 1000

IDPART# UNIT CATEGORY FEATURE/CONDITION DESCRIPTION SLM ELM ESTIMATED COST

Department of Water Resources
Division of Flood Management Local Maintaining Agency Assessment Section

Flood Project Inspection and Assessment Branch

ADDITIONAL COMMENTS

Annual Report (01/01/2020 - 10/01/2020)

5 All Units New Construction
Planned/Approved

Natomas Levee Improvement Project difficulties with connections to
the existing pipes.
g. Reach I:  American River
Gateway Oaks to Northgate Blvd
Construction of the cutoff wall is
complete.  A separate contract
(Reach I Contract 2) to construct a
patrol / maintenance road and
perform levee slope flattening is
scheduled to be awarded in late
2021 for construction in 2022
pending right of way acquisition.
h. Other Natomas Levee
Improvement Project features
Miscellaneous projects to complete
the NLIP program such as Highway 99
window closure on the Natomas Cross
Canal and Reconstruction of Pumping
Plant 5 will enter the design phase
during 2021.

5 All Units Other System Wide Improvement Framework See 2020 Report. No update, awaiting USACE
approval

40571

5 All Units Permits/MOUs Nothing to Report40572

5 All Units Plate Maps Nothing to Report40574

5 All Units Reports/Studies Nothing to Report40575

5 All Units Right of Way/Easements Nothing to Report40577

5 All Units Slurry Walls Nothing to Report40578

5 All Units Well Logs Nothing to Report40579

10Page 10 of09/30/2020 2.37 PM SLM - Start of Levee Mile  :  ELM - End of Levee MileBOARD PACKET 
Page 21 of 202



RECLAMATION DISTRICT 1000 

Item 4.2 – Page 1 

DATE:  OCTOBER 9, 2020 AGENDA ITEM NO. 4.2 

TITLE: Superintendent’s Report – October 2020 

SUBJECT: Update on Activities Since the September 2020 Board of Trustees Meeting 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 

This Staff Report is intended to inform the Board and serve as the official record of the activities 
the District’s field staff engaged in for the month of September 2020. As well as provide 
information regarding District facility use and local weather impacts on District facilities and river 
levels. 

The Superintendent report was created to provide monthly updates to the Board of Trustees on 
field related activities within the District boundaries, as well as provide a historical record. This 
allows for the District and the public the opportunity to refer back to data trends over time 
regarding the weather impact on District facilities, crew activities, and local river and canal 
conditions as well as general District activities from month to month. 

RECOMMENDATION: 

There are no staff recommendations, the information provided is strictly informational. 

ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Superintendent’s Report Data Sheet

STAFF RESPONSIBLE FOR REPORT: 

____________________________________________ Date: 10/01/2020 
Donald Caldwell, Superintendent 

____________________________________________ Date: 10/01/2020 
Kevin L. King, General Manager 

BOARD PACKET 
Page 22 of 202



Superintendent’s Report 
   September 2020 

1 

River Levels: 
Bannon            H: 8.6’  

  L: 7’ 

River   H: 7.8’ 
  L: 5.16’ 

Rain Fall Totals:  
September rain totals 
were 0”   

Rain totals since July 1st 
were 0”  

Safety Topics for the Month of September 
Fire/Smoke Safety – What to do in an emergency fire situation, fire prevention and red flag days. 

District Complaints  
The District received 5 complaints since the September 11th Board Meeting. Two complaints were due to 
trash and debris on District property, we also received a related complaint to unauthorized access on 
the District’s levee near Howsley and 99 often resulting in illegal dumping. The resident has requested 
we place a lock on the gates at this location to deter unauthorized vehicles. We also received 1 
complaint from code enforcement for high weeds along Garden Highway where the Army Corps had 
recently finished construction. The area has since been mowed. 

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

RIVER LEVELS IN FEET

Bannon River High Bannon River Low

River River High River River Low

0 00 0

S E P T E M B E R S I N C E  J U L Y

RAIN FALL LEVELS IN INCHES
Current Year 20/21 Last Year 19/20

BOARD PACKET 
Page 23 of 202

AGENDA ITEM 4.2
ATTACHMENT NO. 1



 Superintendent’s Report 

2 

The chart below represents various activities the field crew spent their time working on during the 
month of September 2020. 

RD 1000 Field Crew *Field Hours Worked Activity 
186 Grounds 
150 Pump Plant Maintenance 
73 Pump Rounds 
43 Ditch Maintenance 

134 Garbage 
211 Weed Control 
88 Mowing 

148 Equipment Repair 

*Hours worked do not include the Superintendent’s time.

Pumping 
The District did some pumping in the month of September due to rice water releases. 

Pumping Plant Pump Hours and A/F 
Plant 1-B Pump # 2 357.5 hours and 3,503 A/F 

Pump # 4 6 hours and 58.8 A/F 
Pump # 6 130 hours and 1,274 A/F 

Plant 2 Pump # 2 442.5 hours and 1,274 A/F 
Plant 3 Pump # 1 49.3 hours and 182.41 A/F 

Unauthorized Encampment Activity During the month of September, the District spent a total of 72 
hours on unauthorized encampment related work for a total cost to the District of $5,274.24. This total 
includes labor,* equipment costs, materials and dump fees. 

100%

TOTAL HOURS
72

Garbage

100%

TOTAL COST
$5,274.24

Garbage

BOARD PACKET 
Page 24 of 202



 Superintendent’s Report 

3 

Unauthorized Encampment Activity – Year to Date 
This fiscal year to date the District spent a total of 84 crew hours on unauthorized encampments for a 
total cost to the district of $6,063.12 This total includes labor,* equipment costs, materials and dump 
fees. 

$0.00

$5,000.00

$10,000.00

$15,000.00

$20,000.00

$25,000.00

September Since July

Unauthorized Encampment Activity Expense

Current Year 20/21 Last Year 19/20

BOARD PACKET 
Page 25 of 202



RECLAMATION DISTRICT 1000 

Item 4.3 – Page 1 

DATE:  OCTOBER 9, 2020 AGENDA ITEM NO. 4.3 

TITLE: District Counsel’s Report – October 2020  

SUBJECT: Update on Activities Since the September 2020 Board of Trustees Meeting 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:

Reclamation District 1000’s (RD 1000; District) General Counsel, Rebecca Smith and/or Scott 
Shapiro to provide verbal report of work performed during the month of September 2020. 

ATTACHMENTS: 

None  

STAFF RESPONSIBLE FOR REPORT: 

____________________________________________ Date: 10/01/2020 
Kevin L. King, General Manager 

BOARD PACKET 
Page 26 of 202



RECLAMATION DISTRICT 1000 

Item 5.1 – Page 1 

DATE:  OCTOBER 9, 2020 AGENDA ITEM NO. 5.1 

TITLE: Approval of Minutes  

SUBJECT: Approval of Minutes from September 11, 2020 Regular Board Meeting 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 

This staff report is intended to serve as the official record of monthly meetings of the Board of 
Trustees. This document details meeting participants, proof of items discussed, summaries of 
board meeting discussion, and actions taken by the Board.  Staff recommends Board approval of 
meeting minutes (Attachment 1) from the September 11, 2020, Regular Board Meeting.  

BACKGROUND: 

The Ralph M. Brown Act (Gov. Code §54950 et seq.) governs meetings by public commissions, 
boards and councils, and public agencies in California. The Act facilitates public transparency and 
public participation in local government decisions. The Act also contains specific exemptions from 
the open meeting requirements where governmental agencies have a demonstrated need for 
confidentiality. To further comply with transparency, Reclamation District No. 1000 documents 
meetings of the Board of Trustees through Board Minutes.  

RECOMMENDATION: 

Staff recommends the Board approve the Minutes from the September 11, 2020, Regular Board 
Meeting. 

ATTACHMENTS: 

1. September 11, 2020, Board Meeting Minutes

STAFF RESPONSIBLE FOR REPORT: 

___________________________________________ Date: 10/01/2020 
Joleen Gutierrez, Administrative Service Manager 

____________________________________________ Date: 10/02/2020 
Kevin L. King, General Manager 

BOARD PACKET 
Page 27 of 202



RECLAMATION DISTRICT NO. 1000 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES MEETING 

SEPTEMBER 11, 2020 
MEETING MINUTES 

In light of COVID-19 and in Compliance with CA Executive Orders N-25-20 and N-29-20, members of the 
Board of Trustees and members of the public participated in this meeting by teleconference.  This meeting 
was recorded without objection. Present were: Board President Jeff Smith; Vice President Chris Burns; 
Trustee David Christophel; Trustee Elena Lee Reeder; Trustee Jag Bains (joined the meeting at 8:05 am); 
Trustee Thom Gilbert; Trustee Nick Avdis; General Manager Kevin King; Co-General Counsel Rebecca 
Smith; Co-General Counsel Scott Shapiro; Administrative Services Manager Joleen Gutierrez; 
Superintendent Don Caldwell; and Administrative Assistant Christina Forehand. District Engineering 
Consultant Scott Brown from Larsen Wurzel also attended the meeting.  

1. PRELIMINARY

1.1. Call Meeting to Order
President Smith called the meeting to order. 

1.2. Roll Call 
Administrative Services Manager Gutierrez called the roll and established a quorum. 

1.3. Approval of Agenda 
MOVED/SECONDED: Trustee Christophel/Trustee Gilbert 
AYES: Trustee Christophel, Trustee Bains, Trustee Lee Reeder, Trustee Smith, Trustee Avdis, 
Trustee Burns, Trustee Gilbert 
NOES: None 
ACTION: The September  

1.4. Pledge of Allegiance 
General Manager King led the Pledge of Allegiance. 

1.5. Conflict of Interest 
No conflicts of interest were identified. 

2. PRESENTATIONS

2.1. No presentations were scheduled.

3. PUBLIC COMMENT (NON-AGENDA ITEMS)

There were no public comments.

4. INFORMATIONAL ITEMS

4.1. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT: Update on activities since the August 2020 Board Meeting.

BOARD PACKET 
Page 28 of 202

AGENDA ITEM 5.1
ATTACHMENT NO. 1



General Manager King provided the Board with a written General Manager’s report and also orally 
reported on the items below: 

Staff Schedules 

General Manager King updated the Board ongoing modified staff schedules due to Covid-19 
related requirements and recent advice from legal counsel. He made known the District will have 
a Board of Trustees Election with five nomination petitions received. 

Committee Meetings 

With increased attendance at Committee meetings by non-committee members, turning them 
into Special Board Meetings, GM King inquired whether the Board prefers to have all items 
brought before the Board instead of committee meetings. GM King also asked whether non-
committee member ‘observers’ should be paid regular meeting compensation. After discussion 
and Trustee comments, it was the desire of the Board to keep holding committee meetings as is 
the current practice. GM King will review the existing Trustee Compensation Policy and, if 
necessary, return to the Board for consideration of an updated policy.  

District Equipment 

GM King stated iPads for Trustees would be ordered and distributed once received. Legal counsel 
will prepare a form for acceptance of District equipment. 

4.2. SUPERINTENDENT’S REPORT:  Update on activities since the August 2020 Board Meeting. 

There were no questions or comments on the Superintendent’s Report. 

4.3. DISTRICT COUNSEL’S REPORT: Update on activities since the August 2020 Board Meeting. 

Co-General Counsel Rebecca Smith provided a brief verbal update of her activities during August 
2020. 

5. CONSENT CALENDAR

The Board considers all Consent Calendar items to be routine and will adopt them in one motion.  There
will be no discussion on these items before the Board votes on the motion, unless Trustees, staff or the
public request specific items be discussed and/or removed from the Consent Calendar.

MOVED/SECONDED: Trustee Avdis/Trustee Lee Reeder
AYES: Trustee Christophel, Trustee Bains, Trustee Lee Reeder, Trustee Smith, Trustee Avdis, Trustee
Burns, Trustee Gilbert
NOES: None
ACTION: A motion to approve Consent Calendar Items 5.1, 5.2, 5.3, 5.4, and 5.5 is approved.

5.1. APPROVAL OF MINUTES: Approval of Minutes from August 14, 2020 Regular Board Meeting.

5.2. TREASURER’S REPORT: Approve Treasurer’s Report for August 2020.

5.3. EXPENDITURE REPORT: Review and Accept Report for August 2020.

5.4. BUDGET TO ACTUAL REPORT: Review and Accept Report for August 2020.

5.5. INSURANCE RENEWAL: Review and Consider Authorizing General Manager to Execute Annual
Insurance Renewal. 

BOARD PACKET 
Page 29 of 202



6. SCHEDULED ITEMS

6.1. FISCAL YEAR 2020/2021 BUDGET AMENDMENT: Review and Consider Budget Amendment for
Fiscal Year 2020/2021 – Operations Manager Position. 

GM King stated there is a need to add a District Operations Manager Position. He explained 
several discussions over the past seven months took place to understand the position need, 
costs, and long-term implications associated with adding this position.  

The Operations Manager will aid in succession planning, managing several projects from the 
Capital Improvement Program as the Board approves projects. Highlighted position 
responsibilities include: developing a field IIPP/Safety Manual, work on the Natomas Levee 
Improvement Projects, annual reporting to DWR and other agencies, O/M Budget development, 
project tracking and reporting, permitting, grant submittals, and System-Wide Improvement 
Framework (SWIF) Implementations and enforcement. The position will allow the District to 
offset costs currently paid to project management consultants. 

Trustee Christophel believes this is an important step with consequences. He contemplates 
whether it makes more sense to contract out this work.  He acknowledged the District has a full 
plate and resolves if the District is heading toward a proactive District instead of reactive, this is 
the right step. 

Trustee Avdis stated that he does not take spending more money lightly. He acknowledges the 
level of service is higher, but he does not believe we have a succession plan in place that will 
serve the District. He states, over the long term, the District will save money, and that is in the 
best interest of our assessment payers.  

Trustee Bains asked about the cost comparison spending and what the offsets are. 

Trustee Burns commented he does not feel this position has been well thought out. He raised 
concern over the budget amendment for the Operations Manager position, as the District is 
already spending more money than it is taking in. He believes the Operations Manager position 
is only set up to succeed the general manager’s position. He affirmed consultants could continue 
to cover the work. Trustee Burns made known there are many qualified people out of work right 
now. He would like to see someone hired based on experience and education, not a friend or 
family member per the District’s Anti-Nepotism Policy. Trustee Burns would like to see the 
District hire a junior engineer. He wants to be sure the District advertises far and wide for the 
Operations Manager Position. 

Trustee Smith asked GM King about the selection process for the Operations Manager Position. 
GM King sees the position advertised in BC Water Jobs and Cal Jobs; he would run the recruitment 
for 45-60 days, set up a selection panel, perform interviews, and then make a hiring decision. 

MOVED/SECONDED: Trustee Christophel/Trustee Avdis 
AYES: Trustee Christophel, Trustee Bains, Trustee Lee Reeder, Trustee Smith, Trustee Avdis, 
Trustee Gilbert 
NOES: Trustee Burns 
ACTION: A motion to approve the budget amendment and Operations Manager Position is 
approved. 

BOARD PACKET 
Page 30 of 202



Additional Comments 

Trustee Avdis stated he would like to improve our relationship with the Natomas Mutual Water 
Company (NMWC) and increase meetings to a couple of times a year. Trustee Christophel made 
a similar request. He would like to see a preseason growers meeting. GM King will find some time 
to schedule a Fall meeting and begin working through any concerns.  

Trustee Burns shared information that does not come up in the SAFCA’s report. He stated there 
is $131 million available for funding appropriations bill for the American River and Natomas 
Basin. Additionally, there is $191 million available in competitive funding for flood control 
projects. Trustee Burns would like to see KSN prepare to request financing for Plant 8 and other 
District issues. He would like to see the District compete for federal funding instead of focusing 
on a tax increase during these economic times. He stated the District should get on the SACOG 
Infrastructure list and include its CIP projects. When federal stimulus funding is available, it will 
be helpful to be on the Sacramento region list. 

Trustee Reeder expressed her appreciation for Trustee Burns sharing this information. 

6.2. REVIEW AND CONSIDER ADOPTION OF OFFICIAL PAY RATE SCHEDULE FOR FISCAL YEAR 
2020/2021: Review and Consider Adoption of Resolution No. 2020-09-01 Approving Official Pay 
Rate Schedule for Fiscal Year 2020/2021. 

GM King made known that with the approval of the Operations Manager Position, CalPERS will 
require an Official Pay Rate Schedule that includes the new position. The schedule is available for 
review in the September 2020 Board Packet. 

There were no public comments. 

MOTION: Bains/Gilbert 
AYES:  Christophel, Bains, Lee Reeder, Smith, Avdis, Gilbert 
NOES:  Burns 
ACTION: A motion to approve the Official Pay Rate Schedule for Fiscal Year 2020/2021 is 
approved. 

7. BOARD OF TRUSTEE’S COMMENTS/REPORTS

7.1. BOARD ACTIVITY UPDATES:

7.1.1.   RD 1000 Committee Meetings Since Last Bd Meeting 
• Personnel Committee (Christophel, Avdis, & Burns) August 31, 2020
• Executive Committee Meeting (Smith & Burns) September 2, 2020

8. CLOSED SESSION

There were no closed session items

9. ADJOURN

The meeting is adjourned.

BOARD PACKET 
Page 31 of 202



RECLAMATION DISTRICT 1000 

Item 5.2 – Page 1 

DATE:  OCTOBER 9, 2020 AGENDA ITEM NO. 5.2 

TITLE: Treasurer’s Report 

SUBJECT: Approve Treasurer’s Report for September 2020 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 

This Staff Report is intended to inform the Board of the current total funds in the District’s 
checking and money market accounts, Sacramento County Treasurer Fund, State Treasurer Local 
Agency Investment Fund (LAIF), and the City of Sacramento Pooled Investment Fund. 

The Staff Report attachment provides the monthly beginning and ending balances of its 
Operations and Maintenance cash flow. The report considers the current month's receipts, fund 
to fund transfers, accounts payable, and payroll. 

Noteworthy fund and cash flow items during September 2020 are featured in the attached 
Treasurer’s Report.  

BACKGROUND: 

Income and Cash 

The District maintains funds in the California State Controller Local Agency Investment Fund 
(LAIF), the Sacramento County Treasurer, and Bank of the West. 

The District’s primary source of income is property assessments. Assessments are collected 
through respective Sacramento and Sutter County tax bills. 

Annually, the Board of Trustees approves a Resolution designating officers and signatories to the 
Operations and Maintenance Fund held by the Sacramento County Treasurer. The District’s 
Financial Reserve Policy guides current, future, and unexpected funding requirements. The 
District’s Investment Policy guides investments made by the District of any surplus or reserve 
funds it may have. 

RECOMMENDATION: 

Staff recommends the Board approve the September 2020 Treasurer’s Report. 

FINANCIAL IMPACT: 

None. 

BOARD PACKET 
Page 32 of 202



TITLE: Treasurer’s Report – September 2020 

Item 5.2 – Page 2 

ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Treasurer’s Report September 2020

STAFF RESPONSIBLE FOR REPORT: 

____________________________________________ Date: 10/01/2020 
Joleen Gutierrez, Administrative Services Manager 

____________________________________________ Date: 10/02/2020 
Kevin L. King, General Manager 

BOARD PACKET 
Page 33 of 202



Reclamation District 1000

Treasurer's Report

September 2020

Treasurer's Report for September 2020

September 2020 Ending Balance @ 9/30/20

Total Funds at 9/30/20 9,304,476.56

Bank of the West - Checking 105,566.59 Included in O&M cash flow below

Bank of the West - Money Market 150,670.74 Included in O&M cash flow below

Bank of the West FMAP 626,223.09

Sacramento County Treasurer 4,330,320.34

State Treasurer - Local Agency Investment Fund 1,933,841.93

City of Sacramento - Pool A 2,157,853.87

September 2020 - Operations and Maintenance Cash Flow Money Market Operating Checking Combined O&M

Beginning Balance at 9/1/20 50,670.74 183,486.97 234,157.71

Transfers from money market to operating account -400,000.00 400,000.00 0.00

Transfers from LAIF to money market account 500,000.00 500,000.00

Transfer from FMAP account 10,302.01 10,302.01

Current months receipts 570.52 570.52

Accounts Payable* -398,830.14 -398,830.14

Payroll -89,962.77 -89,962.77

Ending Balance at 9/30/20 150,670.74 105,566.59 256,237.33

*See Attached Check Register

Current months receipts are made up of the following:

Refund of bank fee from Bank of the West 40.00

Refund from Occupational Health Centers of CA 188.50

Scrap metal sales 322.02

Receipt for bid documents 20.00

570.52

BOARD PACKET 
Page 34 of 202

AGENDA ITEM 5.2
ATTACHMENT NO. 1



RECLAMATION DISTRICT 1000 

Item 5.3 – Page 1 

DATE:  OCTOBER 9, 2020 AGENDA ITEM NO. 5.3 

TITLE: Expenditure Report  

SUBJECT: Review and Accept Report for September 2020 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 

This Staff Report is intended to advise the Board of monthly expenditures and provide an 
explanation of any expenses outside of the usual course of business.  Staff recommends the 
Board review and accept the Expenditure Report for September 2020. 

Expenses 

The Administrative Services Manager reviews and the General Manager approves expenditures. 
This activity is disclosed monthly as an attachment to this staff report. The Expenditure Report 
(Attachment 1) reveals typical District spending for the month. Items of note are a payment to 
SGS Colusa of $83,583.72 for herbicides and the District’s annual insurance expense of 
$136,963.00 to Stratton Agency. Both are budgeted expenses.   

RECOMMENDATION: 

Staff recommends the Board review and accept the Expenditure Report for September 2020. 

FINANCIAL IMPACT: 

None. 

ATTACHMENTS: 

1. September 2020 Expenditure Report

2. Financial Expense Comparison Summary

STAFF RESPONSIBLE FOR REPORT: 

____________________________________________ Date: 10/01/2020 
Joleen Gutierrez, Administrative Services Manager 

____________________________________________ Date: 10/02/2020 
Kevin L. King, General Manager 

BOARD PACKET 
Page 35 of 202



September 2020 Expenditure Report 

Type Date Num Name Memo Amount Balance 

Cash and Investments 183,486.97 

1010.00 · Bank of the West Checking Acct 183,486.97 
Bill Pmt 
-Check 09/01/2020 1001646375 Cal Pers 457 Gutierrez -914.09 182,572.88 
General
Journal 09/01/2020 Bank of the West Service charge refund 40.00 182,612.88 

Check 09/01/2020 EFT Bank of the West -40.00 182,572.88 
Bill Pmt 
-Check 09/02/2020 50159 Airgas NCN 2140381 -379.58 182,193.30 
Bill Pmt 
-Check 09/02/2020 50160 Hire Right Solutions, LLC 4427151774 -93.04 182,100.26 
Bill Pmt 
-Check 09/02/2020 50161 Joleen Gutierrez Mileage -152.15 181,948.11 
Bill Pmt 
-Check 09/02/2020 50162 Mead & Hunt Inv 306795 -3,546.00 178,402.11 
Bill Pmt 
-Check 09/02/2020 50163 Neat Freak Clean, LLC Inv 2020-08-26 -375.00 178,027.11 
Bill Pmt 
-Check 09/02/2020 50164 SGS Colusa 52118 -49.57 177,977.54 
Bill Pmt 
-Check 09/02/2020 50165 Smile Business Products 103404 -141.13 177,836.41 
Bill Pmt 
-Check 09/02/2020 1001647121 Cal Pers Inv 16150204 -1,050.00 176,786.41 
Bill Pmt 
-Check 09/02/2020 24703234295 PG&E 08262020 -17.93 176,768.48 
Bill Pmt 
-Check 09/03/2020 50166 Big Valley Divers, Inc. Trash Rack Repairs -11,471.50 165,296.98 
Bill Pmt 
-Check 09/03/2020 1001646373 Cal Pers 457 -350.00 164,946.98 
Bill Pmt 
-Check 09/04/2020 1001648857 Cal Pers 457 -350.00 164,596.98 
General 
Journal 09/04/2020 

9/4/20 payroll activity – 
Taxes -15,170.61 149,426.37 

General 
Journal 09/04/2020 

9/4/20 payroll activity - 
Wages -33,675.45 115,750.92 

Bill Pmt 
-Check 09/09/2020 50167 

A T.E.E.M. Electrical Engineering, 
Inc. Inv 1809a-17 -1,070.00 114,680.92 

Bill Pmt 
-Check 09/09/2020 50168 Appeal - Democrat Inv 00258438 -350.82 114,330.10 
Bill Pmt 
-Check 09/09/2020 50169 AT&T 9391052144 -293.99 114,036.11 
Bill Pmt 
-Check 09/09/2020 50170 SGS Colusa Herbicides -83,583.72 30,452.39 
Bill Pmt 
-Check 09/09/2020 50171 Steve Yaeger Consulting Inv 2020-8 -2,700.00 27,752.39 
Bill Pmt 
-Check 09/09/2020 50172 The Sacramento Bee Acct 339553 -597.74 27,154.65 
Bill Pmt 
-Check 09/09/2020 50174 Valley Hydraulics & Machine, Inc. INv 108563 -15.92 27,138.73 
Bill Pmt 
-Check 09/09/2020 50175 Valley Tire Center, Inc. 218041 -2,236.03 24,902.70 
Bill Pmt 
-Check 09/09/2020 50176 Woodland Motors 241312 -433.54 24,469.16 
Bill Pmt 
-Check 09/09/2020 50177 US Bank Corp Acct Ending 4049 -970.35 23,498.81 
Bill Pmt 
-Check 09/09/2020 50178 National Fire Systems, Inc. Inv 91418 -393.41 23,105.40 
Bill Pmt 
-Check 09/09/2020 284948 

Berkshire Hathaway Homestate 
Companies REWC122900 -2,114.42 20,990.98 

Bill Pmt 
-Check 09/09/2020 25360047937 City of Sacramento Acct 7029676079 -4.65 20,986.33 
Bill Pmt 
-Check 09/09/2020 8729388291 Comcast 8155600381146169 -270.01 20,716.32 
Bill Pmt 
-Check 09/09/2020 09092020 Sacramento County Utilities -227.40 20,488.92 
Bill Pmt 
-Check 09/09/2020 80018338077 Waste Management of Sacramento -503.20 19,985.72 
General 
Journal 09/09/2020 Misc. receipts 386.52 20,372.24 

Transfer 09/10/2020 Funds Transfer 100,000.00 120,372.24 
BOARD PACKET 
Page 36 of 202

AGENDA ITEM 5.3
ATTACHMENT NO. 1



Check 09/11/2020 EFT ADP -97.22 120,275.02 
Bill Pmt 
-Check 09/16/2020 09162020 Alhambra & Sierra Springs 33167566169212 -82.45 120,192.57 
Bill Pmt
-Check 09/16/2020 26048342828 PG&E Acct 7682608878-3 -411.35 119,781.22 
Bill Pmt 
-Check 09/16/2020 AOJZAZIT Streamline Inv 106948 -200.00 119,581.22 
Bill Pmt 
-Check 09/16/2020 50179 ACWA JPIA 204 -1,829.14 117,752.08 
Bill Pmt 
-Check 09/16/2020 50180 Blankinship & Associates, Inc. Inv 7077 -2,903.98 114,848.10 
Bill Pmt 
-Check 09/16/2020 50181 Carson Landscape Industries 1080 -730.00 114,118.10 
Bill Pmt 
-Check 09/16/2020 50182 Chavez Accountancy Corporation R11125 -1,487.50 112,630.60 
Bill Pmt 
-Check 09/16/2020 50183 Downey Brand LLP -3,116.50 109,514.10 
Bill Pmt 
-Check 09/16/2020 50184 Enoven Truck Body & Equipment 32037 – Kits for new trucks -12,642.52 96,871.58 
Bill Pmt 
-Check 09/16/2020 50185 Grow West 105860 -288.65 96,582.93 
Bill Pmt 
-Check 09/16/2020 50186 Interstate Oil Company 41-0068266 -2,944.09 93,638.84 
Bill Pmt 
-Check 09/16/2020 50187 NBS Inv 820000072 -2,787.50 90,851.34 
Bill Pmt 
-Check 09/16/2020 50188 Smile Business Products 103404 -268.80 90,582.54 
Bill Pmt 
-Check 09/16/2020 50189 Yolo County Treasurer APN 042-310-015-000 -4,847.00 85,735.54 
General 
Journal 09/18/2020 

9/18/20 payroll activity - 
Wages -28,937.76 56,797.78 

General 
Journal 09/18/2020 

9/18/20 payroll activity - 
taxes -12,178.95 44,618.83 

Transfer 09/18/2020 Funds Transfer 100,000.00 144,618.83 
General 
Journal 09/18/2020 Occupational Health Centers of CA 

Refund from Occupational 
Health Centers 144.00 144,762.83 

Bill Pmt 
-Check 09/21/2020 1001662767 Cal Pers 457 -350.00 144,412.83 
Bill Pmt 
-Check 09/23/2020 50190 Big Valley Divers, Inc. Inv 090320 -5,385.75 139,027.08 
Bill Pmt 
-Check 09/23/2020 50191 Boutin Jones, Inc. 020773 -4,616.00 134,411.08 
Bill Pmt 
-Check 09/23/2020 50192 Carson Landscape Industries 1080 -235.00 134,176.08 
Bill Pmt 
-Check 09/23/2020 50193 Dollar Tow Company Inv 12157 -100.00 134,076.08 
Bill Pmt 
-Check 09/23/2020 50194 Loewen Pump Maintenance -10,584.00 123,492.08 
Bill Pmt 
-Check 09/23/2020 50195 MBK Engineers -9,209.26 114,282.82 
Bill Pmt 
-Check 09/23/2020 50196 Mead & Hunt Inv 307637 -1,206.75 113,076.07 
Bill Pmt 
-Check 09/23/2020 50197 Norstar Industries, Inc. Inv 58476 -422.36 112,653.71 
Bill Pmt 
-Check 09/23/2020 50198 Security & Asset Management, LP 4REC0003 -2,364.72 110,288.99 
Bill Pmt 
-Check 09/23/2020 50199 Smile Business Products 103404 -163.60 110,125.39 
Bill Pmt 
-Check 09/23/2020 50200 SMUD 7000000317 -43,736.06 66,389.33 
Bill Pmt 
-Check 09/23/2020 50201 Terrapin Technology Group Inv 20-1245 -1,201.19 65,188.14 
Bill Pmt 
-Check 09/23/2020 1001665614 Cal Pers Health -17,454.92 47,733.22 
Bill Pmt 
-Check 09/23/2020 616617618 Cal Pers Pension -13,247.27 34,485.95 
Bill Pmt 
-Check 09/23/2020 2465162 Napa Auto Parts 20906137 -979.78 33,506.17 
Bill Pmt 
-Check 09/23/2020 11023111699 The Home Depot Inv 1023660 -191.49 33,314.68 
Bill Pmt 
-Check 09/23/2020 1047432850 Verizon 972466087-00001 -487.86 32,826.82 
Bill Pmt 
-Check 09/24/2020 50202 Stratton Agency Insurance -136,963.00 -104,136.18

BOARD PACKET 
Page 37 of 202



Transfer 09/25/2020 Funds Transfer 200,000.00 95,863.82 

Transfer 09/25/2020 Funds Transfer 10,302.01 106,165.83 

Check 09/25/2020 EFT ADP -81.47 106,084.36 
Bill Pmt 
-Check 09/29/2020 50203 The Sacramento Bee Acct 339553 -517.77 105,566.59 

Total 1010.00 · Bank of the West Checking Acct -77,920.38 105,566.59 

Total Cash and Investments -77,920.38 105,566.59 
-77,920.38 105,566.59

Activity Summary 

Transfers from money market 
account 400,000.00 

Transfer from FMAP account 10,302.01 

Refund of bank fee 40.00 
Refund from Occupational Health 
Centers of CA 188.50 

Scrap metal sales 322.02 

Receipt for bid documents 20.00 

Payroll disbursements -89,962.77

Accounts payable disbursements -398,830.14

Net activity -77,920.38

BOARD PACKET 
Page 38 of 202



Monthly Historical Expense Comparison 

The graph below compares current fiscal year monthly expenses as of September 2020 to 
historical monthly expense trends for the last four fiscal years. As of September 30, 2020, the 
District’s expenses are trending slightly higher for the month and fiscal year. The increase is 
directly attributable to the District’s annual insurance liability premium and annual herbicide 
purchase.  

The graph also compares the cumulative year to date costs and historical year to date expense 
trends for fiscal year 2016/2017 through fiscal year 2019/2020.  

Variations in the current month to month expenses compared to the historical month to month 
expenses are due to single expense budgeted items. This includes large equipment purchases 
and the District’s annual insurance liability renewal in which remittance of payment can vary each 
year slightly.  

When comparing year to date expenses to historical expenses, the District is trending slightly 
higher due to the costs mentioned above. 

$0.00

$500,000.00

$1,000,000.00

$1,500,000.00

$2,000,000.00

$2,500,000.00

$3,000,000.00

$3,500,000.00

$4,000,000.00

$4,500,000.00

Monthly Expense Comparison

Historical Monthly Expense Historical YTD Expense 2020/2021 Monthly Expense 2020/2021 YTD Expense

BOARD PACKET 
Page 39 of 202

AGENDA ITEM 5.3
ATTACHMENT NO. 2



RECLAMATION DISTRICT 1000 

Item 5.4 – Page 1 

DATE:  OCTOBER 9, 2020 AGENDA ITEM NO. 5.4 

TITLE: Budget to Actual Report 

SUBJECT: Review and Accept Report for September 2020 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 

This Staff Report is intended to provide a monthly budgetary snapshot of how well the District is 
meeting its set budget goals for the fiscal year. The monthly Budget to Actual Report contains a 
three-column presentation of actual expenditures, budgeted expenditures, and percentage of 
the Budget. Each line item compares budgeted amounts against actual to date expenses. 
Significant budgeted line item variances (if any) will be explained in the Executive Summary of 
this report.  

Attachment 1 provides a year to date report for the month ending September 30, 2020. The 
report reveals the District is at 88% for Liability/Auto Insurance, this is due to the annual 
premium, and 76% for Herbicides. The District is also at 78% for mitigation land expenses due to 
payment of yearly property taxes. These are one-time annual expenses. 

BACKGROUND: 

The Board of Trustees adopts a budget annually in June. District staff prepares the Budget, which 
shows the current year budget versus expenditures and a proposed budget for the next year.  

Three Board committees review the draft budget before being presented to the full Board for 
adoption in June. The Personnel Committee reviews the wage and benefits portion of the Budget. 
The Operations Committee reviews the Capital expenditures Budget. After the two committees 
review and make recommendations to the Budget, the final draft is prepared for the Finance 
Committee to consider. After review by the Finance Committee, the final Budget is presented to 
the Board for adoption at a regular Board meeting. 

RECOMMENDATION: 

Staff recommends the Board review and accept the Budget to Actual Report for September 2020. 

ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Budget to Actual Report September 2020

STAFF RESPONSIBLE FOR REPORT: 

____________________________________________ Date: 10/01/2020 
Joleen Gutierrez, Administrative Services Manager 

____________________________________________ Date: 10/02/2020 
Kevin L. King, General Manager 

BOARD PACKET 
Page 40 of 202



Reclamation District No. 1000

Budget to Actual Comparison

July 1, 2020 to September 30, 2020 (Three Months Ending of Fiscal 2021)

Year to Date

July 1, 2020 Percent of

to September 30, 2020 Budget Budget

Operation & Maintenance Income

Property Assessments 3,181 2,250,000 0.14%

Rents 5,326 30,000 17.75%

Interest Income 5,732 95,000 6.03%

SAFCA - O/M Assessment - 1,400,000 0.00%

Misc Income 342 - Not Budgeted

FMAP Grant 636,400 601,337 105.83%

Annuitant Trust Reimbursement - 70,000 0.00%

Security Patrol Reimbursement - 45,000 0.00%

Development Impact Fees - 1,400,000 0.00%

Total 650,981 5,891,337 11.05%

Restricted Fund

Metro Airpark Groundwater Pumping - 25,000 0.00%

Total Combined Income 650,981 5,916,337 11.00%

Administration, Operations and Maintenance - Expenses

Administration

Government Fees/Permits - 12,500 0.00%

Legal 14,351 97,000 14.79%

Liability/Auto Insurance 132,670 150,000 88.45%

Office Supplies 198 5,500 3.60%

Computer Costs 4,556 24,000 18.98%

Accounting/Audit 3,685 47,050 7.83%

Admin. Services 6,362 17,000 37.42%

Utilities (Phone/Water/Sewer) 4,486 23,700 18.93%

Mit. Land Expenses 4,847 6,200 78.18%

Administrative Consultants 17,134 128,000 13.39%

Assessment/Property Taxes (SAFCA - CAD) - 8,000 0.00%

Admin - Misc./Other Expenses 201 8,250 2.44%

Memberships 22,785 40,800 55.85%

Office Maintenance & Repair 3,385 27,000 12.54%

Payroll Service 547 6,000 9.12%

Public Relations 2,172 45,000 4.83%

Small Office & Computer Equipment (364) 12,000 -3.03%

Election 3,644 39,000 9.34%

Conference/Travel/Professional Development - 20,500 0.00%

Sub Total 220,659 717,500 30.75%

Personnel/Labor

Wages 232,876 1,214,658 19.17%

Group Insurance 42,021 130,000 32.32%

Worker's Compensation Insurance 8,353 30,000 27.84%

OPEB - ARC - - Not Budgeted

Dental/Vision/Life 7,317 25,887 28.27%

Payroll Taxes 17,402 91,000 19.12%

Pension 102,638 201,148 51.03%

Continuing Education 181 5,000 3.62%

Trustee Fees 6,525 40,000 16.31%

Annuitant Health Care 22,910 91,032 25.17%

BOARD PACKET 
Page 41 of 202

AGENDA ITEM 5.4
ATTACHMENT NO. 1



Sub Total 440,223 1,828,725 24.07%

BOARD PACKET 
Page 42 of 202



Operations

Power 72,072 500,000 14.41%

Supplies/Materials 3,928 25,000 15.71%

Herbicide 91,576 120,000 76.31%

Fuel 8,034 50,000 16.07%

Field Services 3,371 63,100 5.34%

Field Operations Consultants 2,904 20,000 14.52%

Equipment Rental - 5,000 0.00%

Refuse Collection 2,022 30,000 6.74%

Equipment Repair/Service 34 16,000 0.21%

Equipment Parts/Supplies 16,675 60,000 27.79%

Facility Repairs 32,845 211,000 15.57%

Shop Equipment (not vehicles) - 5,000 0.00%

Field Equipment - 14,000 0.00%

Misc/Other 2 - 500 0.00%

Utilities - Field 2,129 11,500 18.51%

Government Fees/Permits - Field - 12,000 0.00%

FEMA Permits - 1,500 0.00%

Sub Total 235,590 1,144,600 20.58%

Equipment

Equipment - - Not Budgeted

Sub Total - - 

Consulting/Contracts/Memberships

Engineering/Technical Consultants 9,254 375,000 2.47%

Security Patrol 7,800 80,000 9.75%

Temporary Admin 14,250 15,000 95.00%

Sub Total 31,304 470,000 6.66%

FMAP Expenditures

LOI/SWIF (Consultants) 9,851 - Not Budgeted

Equipment - 381,337 0.00%

Operations & Maintenance (Field) - 220,000 0.00%

Administrative - - Not Budgeted

Sub Total 9,851 601,337 1.64%

Total A, O & M Expenses 937,627 4,762,162 19.69%

Capital Expenses

Capital Office Upgrades - 20,000 0.00%

Capital RE Acquisition - 50,000 0.00%

Capital Office Facility Repair - 30,000 0.00%

Document Management - - Not Budgeted

Capital - District Server - - Not Budgeted

Capital Facilities (including SCADA) 1,757 2,700,000 0.07%

Sub Total 1,757 2,800,000 0.06%

Total All Expenditures 939,384 7,562,162 12.42%

BOARD PACKET 
Page 43 of 202



RECLAMATION DISTRICT 1000 

Item 6.1 – Page 1 

DATE:  OCTOBER 9, 2020 AGENDA ITEM NO. 6.1 

TITLE: Professional Services Agreement 

SUBJECT: Review and Consider Authorizing the General Manager to Execute a Professional 
Services Agreement with Civil Engineering Solutions, INC for Natomas Basin 
Hydraulic Model Project. 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 

Reclamation District No. 1000 (RD 1000; District) has identified the need to update its Hydraulic 
Model for planning, development processing and operational needs.  Knowing other regional 
flood plain managers within the Natomas Basin had similar needs, the District reached out to the 
City of Sacramento (City) and County of Sacramento (County)  and developed a Request for 
Qualifications (RFQ) to update/develop a Natomas Basin Hydraulic Model (Attachment No. 1).  
The RFQ was released by the District on July 31, 2020.  On August 31, 2020, the District received 
two responses (proposals) to the RFQ. 

The District, along with representative from the City and County, evaluated the proposals, and 
conducted interviews on September 18, 2020.  After careful consideration, the selection 
committee recommended entering into a Professional Services Agreement (Attachment No. 2) 
with Civil Engineering Solutions, INC. (CESI).   

RECOMMENDATION: 

Staff recommends the Board review and consider authorizing the General Manager to execute a 
Professional Services Agreement with Civil Engineering Solutions, INC for Natomas Basin 
Hydraulic Model Project.  Staff further recommends the Board direct the General Manager to 
negotiation, independent, cost share agreements with the City and County. 

FINANCIAL IMPACT: 

The total project cost is $388,566.  The District budgeted $200,000 in Fiscal Year 2020/2021.  CESI 
split the tasks of the project into three (3) phases, each approximately $130K.  The City and 
County have verbally agreed to fund an equal share of the project; however, it may take each 
agency a couple months to enter into an agreement with the District.  

BOARD PACKET 
Page 44 of 202



TITLE:  PSA – CESI Natomas Basin Hydraulic Model Project 

2 
 

ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Request for Qualifications – Natomas Basin Hydraulic Model Project – July 31, 2020 
2. Professional Services Agreement – Civil Engineering Solutions, Inc. 

 

STAFF RESPONSIBLE FOR REPORT: 
 
 
____________________________________________    Date: 10/01/2020 
Kevin L. King, General Manager 

BOARD PACKET 
Page 45 of 202



 

JULY 31, 2020 

RECLAMATION 
DISTRICT 
NO. 1000 

*** 
REQUEST  

FOR 
QUALIFICATIONS 

*** 
Natomas Basin 
Hydraulic Model  

*** 

Reclamation District No. 1000 
1633 Garden Highway 
Sacramento, CA 95833 

(916) 922-1449
www.rd1000.org 

BOARD PACKET 
Page 46 of 202

AGENDA ITEM 6.1
ATTACHMENT NO. 1

http://www.rd1000.org/


Reclamation District No. 1000 
Request for Qualifications – Natomas Basin Hydraulic 
Model  

OFFICERS 

KEVIN L. KING – GENERAL MANAGER 
JOLEEN GUTIERREZ – BOARD SECRETARY/TREASURER 
DOWNEY BRAND, LLP - ATTORNEYS 

TRUSTEES 

JEFF SMITH – BOARD PRESIDENT 
CHRIS BURNS – BOARD VICE PRESIDENT 
NICK AVDIS – TRUSTEE  
JAG BAINS – TRUSTEE  
DAVID CHRISTOPHEL – TRUSTEE  
THOMAS M. GILBERT – TRUSTEE  
ELENA LEE REEDER – TRUSTEE  

BOARD PACKET 
Page 47 of 202



Table of Contents 
Introduction ...............................................................................................................1

General ...................................................................................................................1

Mission Statement ..................................................................................................2

Responsibility Statement ........................................................................................2

Vision Statement ....................................................................................................2

Organizational Chart ...............................................................................................3

Request for Qualifications – Natomas Basin Hydraulic Model Project .........................4

Executive Summary .................................................................................................4

Description of Services / Scope of Work ..............................................................5

Qualification Proposal Deadline ..........................................................................6

Questions ............................................................................................................6

Section A – MINIMUM QUALIFICATIONS .................................................................7

Minimum Qualifications – Natomas Basin Hydraulic Model Project ....................7

Section B – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS & SUBMITTAL REQUIREMENTS .....8

Requirement to Meet All Provisions ....................................................................8

Qualification Proposals .......................................................................................8

Insurance Certificate ...........................................................................................8

Submittal of References ......................................................................................8

Statement of Contract Disqualifications ..............................................................9

Qualification Proposal Withdrawal and Opening .................................................9

Communications .................................................................................................9

Qualification Proposal Retention and Award .......................................................9

Competency and Responsibility of Firm...............................................................9

Contract Requirement .........................................................................................9

Insurance Requirements .....................................................................................9

Failure to Accept Contract ................................................................................. 10

BOARD PACKET 
Page 48 of 202



Section C – QUALIFICATION PROPOSAL CONTENT AND SELECTION PROCESS ........ 11

Qualification Proposal Content ......................................................................... 11

Qualification Proposal Evaluation and Consultant Selection .............................. 13

Section D – FORM OF AGREEMENT ....................................................................... 15

Agreement ........................................................................................................ 15

Section E – SUBMITTAL FORMS ACKNOWLEDGEMENT .......................................... 22

Insurance Certificate ......................................................................................... 22

Statement of Past Contract Disqualifications ..................................................... 23

References ........................................................................................................ 23

Section F – INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS: Consultant Services ............................... 27

BOARD PACKET 
Page 49 of 202



1 | P a g e

Introduction 
General 
Reclamation District No. 1000 (RD1000; District) was organized on April 8, 1911, by special act of the 
California Legislature, and is governed by the Reclamation District Act (California Water Code sections 
50,000 et. seq.).  The District’s affairs are governed by a seven-member Board of Trustees.  At the time 
of formation, the District embarked on the largest privately funded reclamation project in the United 
States. What was accomplished by the District in the twentieth century was truly remarkable.  Today, 
the District’s perimeter levee system consists of 42.6 miles of project levees encircling the District’s 
55,000 acres.  The District also operates and maintains an interior drainage system consisting of 30 miles 
of main drainage canals, approximately 150 miles of drainage ditches and two interior pumping stations. 
The drainage system collects agricultural tailwater, stormwater and drainage and delivers them to the 
pumping plants for disposal in the adjacent rivers and creeks. 

RD 1000 perimeter levees are undergoing the largest rehabilitation since their original construction over 
a hundred years ago. The $1.7 billion Natomas Levee Improvement Project (NLIP) which began in 2007 
and will continue through 2025, will provide the Natomas Basin with two hundred-year flood protection 
when complete.   

As the District moves into its second century, its public safety mission remains its first commitment.  The 
District’s sole purpose and function is to monitor, operate, and maintain the levees and flood control 
infrastructure protecting the more than one hundred thousand people in the Natomas Basin, ensuring 
that the system is ready for the next one hundred years.  

BOARD PACKET 
Page 50 of 202



 

 

2 | P a g e  
 

Mission Statement 
Reclamation District No. 1000’s mission is flood protection for the Natomas Basin providing for the 
public’s health and safety by operating and maintaining the levees, and the District’s canals and pump 
stations in a safe, efficient and responsible manner. 
 

Responsibility Statement 
On behalf of and in communication with the residents of the Natomas Basin, the District meets its flood 
protection Mission by operating and maintaining: 

• The perimeter levee system to prevent exterior floodwaters from entering the Natomas Basin. 
• The District’s interior canal system to collect the stormwater runoff and agricultural drainage 

from within the Natomas Basin. 
• The District’s pump stations to safely discharge interior stormwater and agricultural drainage out 

of the Natomas Basin. 
 

Vision Statement 
In meeting its flood protection Mission, the District shall also:   

• Carry out its responsibilities in a safe, professional, and accountable manner that adheres to the 
principles of good governance and transparency being sensitive to community interests and the 
environment. 

• Continuously identify and implement operational, maintenance, structural and non-structural 
improvements that reduce flood risks in the Natomas Basin. 

• Cooperate with private entities and public agencies (including the United States Army Corps of 
Engineers and the State Central Valley Flood Protection Board) with whom the District shares 
responsibilities, common goals, and objectives for flood protection in the Natomas Basin. 

• Educate the public about the risks of flooding in the Natomas Basin and the District’s efforts to 
minimize those risks. 

  

BOARD PACKET 
Page 51 of 202



3 | P a g e

Organizational Chart 

RECLAMATION DISTRICT NO. 1000 
ORGANIZATIONAL CHART 

BOARD PACKET 
Page 52 of 202



4 | P a g e

Request for Qualifications – Natomas 
Basin Hydraulic Model Project  
Executive Summary 
Reclamation District No. 1000 (RD 1000; District) is requesting qualification proposals for preparation of 
detailed hydrologic and hydraulic analyses, and floodplain mapping for the Natomas Basin (Natomas 
Basin Hydraulic Model), from interested and qualified water resources consultants with a minimum of 
10 years’ experience working with public agencies similar to Reclamation Districts, Water Districts and 
Irrigation Districts in the State of California. The Natomas Basin Hydraulic Model will be used as an 
operational tool for the District to evaluate the performance of the drainage system. The District expects 
the Natomas Basin Hydraulic Model to meet the requirements of the Federal Emergency Management 
Agency (FEMA), resulting in an approved Letter of Map Revision (LOMR). 

In the early 1990’s, the District’s drainage system was modeled utilizing the Environmental Protection 
Agency (EPA) Stormwater Management Model (SWMM) software package.  The model was calibrated 
to the 1986 event and was used to prepare a LOMR application in 1996.  As part of the LOMR, a technical 
support data notebook (TSDN) was prepared to document as-built information and modeling 
assumptions.  However due to the limitation of the EPA-SWMM modeling software, physical parameters 
were modified or exaggerated to develop model runs.  To meet CA Senate Bill 5 requirements, in 2016 
the EPA-SWMM model was converted to XP Solutions XP SWMM modeling software to develop 100-
year and 200-year floodplains for urban areas.  During the modeling conversion process, enhancements 
were made to optimize its performance of the model.  However, the gross assumptions from the EPA 
SWMM model carried forward.  In 2017, the County of Sacramento reviewed the XP SWMM model along 
with a consultant team and discovered input assumptions that are not suitable for floodplain 
management and land use planning.   

The District proposes to select one qualified consultant to develop the Natomas Basin Hydraulic Model. 
The District reserves the right to reject any qualification proposals and full discretion as to the award or 
refusal to award any contract. 

BOARD PACKET 
Page 53 of 202



5 | P a g e

Description of Services / Scope of Work 
The selected consultant will provide data and materials to support a LOMR request for the Natomas 
Basin internal floodplain as part of the exterior levee certification project.  The study area encompasses 
the boundary of RD 1000 which includes portions of the County of Sacramento, City of Sacramento, and 
County of Sutter.  During large, low-frequency storm events, additional flows enter the Natomas Basin 
through an opening in the levee at Sankey Rd. located at the northeast portion of the basin.  All drainage 
exiting the basin is pumped into neighboring rivers and creeks. 

A hydrology model shall be developed utilizing the City / County of Sacramento Hydrology Standards. 
The hydrologic characteristics in the Natomas Basin are unique to the region, with relatively low 
infiltration rates and extremely flat slopes.  The consultant shall review the previous TSDN and XP SWMM 
model to capture assumptions used to address these issues and develop a strategy using the City /County 
Standards to calibrate the hydrology model.  A model calibration effort shall be conducted to establish 
these assumptions.  A system wide model for the Natomas Basin shall be developed for the 10-, 25-, 50-
, 100-, 200-, and 500-year storms.  The District will provide inflow hydrographs into the Natomas Basin 
from Sankey Road.  

The consultant team shall propose to develop the (1D/2D) hydraulic model on either the United states 
Army Corps of Engineers HEC-RAS or XP SWMM software packages.  Topographic data collected by the 
State of California under the Central Valley Flood Evaluation and Delineation (CVFED) program shall be 
utilized to generate the geometric information for the hydraulic model.  As-built and other supporting 
information obtained from the District and other sources shall be used to augment the model.  Additional 
survey may be required to supplement any missing data.  The hydraulic model shall be calibrated to 
ensure reliable results.  The 10-, 25-, 50-, 100-, 200-, and 500-year storms shall be evaluated.  

The hydraulic model shall consider FEMA Levee Analysis and Mapping Process (LAMP) for embankments 
that do not meet 44 CFR 65.10 requirements. Consultant will submit the model to the City of 
Sacramento’s FEMA MT-2 team for review and comment as part of an interior levee certification package 
and the Sacramento Area Flood Control Agency as part of an exterior levee certification package. 
Consultant will work with the District, the City of Sacramento and the City of Sacramento’s consultants 
to resolve any comments from the MT-2 review.  Consultant should anticipate coordinating with the City 
of Sacramento’s consultant team on data needs for interior levee certification. These data needs include, 
but aren’t limited to hydraulic grade lines, water surface profiles, progress updates, and coordination. 
Consultant should anticipate coordinating with the Sacramento Area Flood Control Agency and the 
District on data needs for the exterior levee certification. 

BOARD PACKET 
Page 54 of 202



6 | P a g e

The consultant team shall prepare materials to update the FEMA Flood Insurance Study (FIS) and Flood 
Insurance Rate Maps (FIRM) for the Natomas Basin.  The selected consultant should be familiar with the 
FEMA MT-2 Form application instructions which provide clear details of the documents needed to 
support the request for LOMR.  The mapping for the annotated Work Maps shall be prepared in 
geographic information system (GIS) format suitable for FEMA’s review.  An updated TSDN shall be 
prepared to support the model, mapping, and levee certification.   

All Standards relevant to this project are based on the latest version of FEMA Guidelines for Flood Risk 
Analysis and Mapping.  The consultant team shall prepare all products to these standards and may utilize 
FEMA Technical Reference to assist developing project materials. 

Qualification Proposal Deadline 
All qualification proposals must be received by the District’s office at 1633 Garden Highway, Sacramento, 
CA 95833, or via electronic submittal to kking@rd1000.org by 2:00 P.M. on August 31, 2020. Submittals 
received after said time will not be considered.  

Questions 
Contact General Manager Kevin King at (916) 922-1449 or kking@rd1000.org with any questions 
regarding this Request for Qualifications. 

BOARD PACKET 
Page 55 of 202

mailto:kking@rd1000.org
mailto:kking@rd1000.org


7 | P a g e

Section A – MINIMUM QUALIFICATIONS 
Minimum Qualifications – Natomas Basin Hydraulic Model Project 

1. A description of the organization’s professional qualifications. Provide a description of your firm’s
prior experience and qualifications in engineering, planning and environmental analysis. Also,
please reference the experience of the firm in preparing hydrology and hydraulic models.

2. A statement indicating the number of employees, by level, which will perform the project and
resumes for each employee who will be assigned to the District’s project, including but not limited
to educational/professional credentials and previous relevant experience.

3. A listing of current and prior clients, including the types of services performed and client contact
information so they may serve as references.

4. Indicate availability to proceed with work on or about September 21, 2020, and include a tentative
schedule for completing the project.

5. A written work plan outlining how the consultant proposes to perform the project and any
information pertaining to any area which is customarily reviewed during such a project which has
not been mentioned in the “Scope of Work” section of this solicitation.

BOARD PACKET 
Page 56 of 202



8 | P a g e

Section B – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS & SUBMITTAL 
REQUIREMENTS 
Requirement to Meet All Provisions 
Each consultant submitting qualifications (Consultant) shall meet all the terms, and conditions of the 
Request for Qualifications (RFQ). By virtue of its submittal, the Consultant acknowledges agreement 
with and acceptance of all provisions of the RFQ package. 

Qualification Proposals 
Each qualification proposal must be made on the form(s) provided and accompanied by any other 
required submittals or supplemental materials. Qualification proposals shall be enclosed in an envelope 
that shall be sealed and addressed to Reclamation District No. 1000, 1633 Garden Highway, Sacramento 
CA, 95833. Each qualification proposal shall include one electronic copy of the material in Adobe 
Acrobat format on Universal Serial Bus (USB) Flash Drive. In order to guard against premature opening, 
the qualification proposal should be clearly labeled with the title, name of Consultant, and date and 
time of opening. Alternatively, the proposal may be submitted electronically in Adobe Acrobat format 
to kking@rd1000.org using Adobe Acrobat share function.  No FAX submittals will be accepted. 

To guard against premature opening of hard copy submittals, each qualification proposal shall be 
submitted to the District in a sealed envelope plainly marked with the following: 

• RFQ title (“Request for Qualifications – Natomas Basin Hydraulic Model”)
• Consultant name
• Time and date of the opening (“August 31, 2020 @ 2:00 pm”)

To guard against premature opening of electronic submittals, the proposal shall be submitted using 
Adobe Acrobat share function, which tracks file access, to kking@rd1000.org. 

Insurance Certificate 
Each qualification proposal must include a certificate of insurance showing: 

• The insurance carrier and its A.M. Best rating.
• Scope of coverage and limits.
• Deductibles and self-insured retention.

The purpose of this submittal is to generally assess the adequacy of the Consultants insurance coverage 
during submittal evaluation; as discussed below, endorsements are not required until contract award. 
The District’s insurance requirements are detailed in Section F. 

Submittal of References 
Each proposer shall submit a statement of qualifications and references on the form provided in Section 
E of this RFQ. 

BOARD PACKET 
Page 57 of 202

mailto:kking@rd1000.org
mailto:kking@rd1000.org


9 | P a g e

Statement of Contract Disqualifications 
Each proposer shall submit a statement regarding any past government disqualifications on the form 
provided in Section E of this RFQ. 

Qualification Proposal Withdrawal and Opening 
A Consultant may withdraw its qualification proposal, without prejudice prior to the time specified for 
the opening, by submitting a written request to the District General Manager for its withdrawal, in 
which event the submittal will be returned to the Consultant unopened. No submittal received after 
the time specified or at any place other than that stated in the RFQ will be considered. The opening of 
proposals in response to this RFQ is not subject to attendance by the general public. This restriction is 
necessitated by the fact that the contract award is subject to negotiations, and it would be unfair for 
competing Consultants to know the prices quoted by one another. 

Communications 
All timely requests for information submitted in writing will receive a written response from the District. 
Telephone communications with District staff are not encouraged but will be permitted. However, any 
such oral communication shall not be binding on the District. 

Qualification Proposal Retention and Award 
The District reserves the right to retain all qualification proposals for a period of 60 days for examination 
and comparison. The District also reserves the right to waive non-substantial irregularities in any 
qualification proposal, to reject any or all qualification proposals, to reject or delete one part of a 
qualification proposal and accept the other, except to the extent that proposals are qualified by specific 
limitations.  

Competency and Responsibility of Firm 
The District reserves full discretion to determine the competence and responsibility, professionally 
and/or financially, of Consultants. Consultants will provide, in a timely manner, all information that the 
District deems necessary to make such a decision. 

Contract Requirement 
The Consultant to whom award is made (if any) shall execute a written contract with the District within 
ten (10) calendar days after notice of the award has been sent. The contract shall be made in the form 
adopted by the District and incorporated in this RFQ. 

Insurance Requirements 
The Consultant shall provide proof of insurance in the form, coverages and amounts specified in Section 
F within 10 (ten) calendar days after notice of contract award as a precondition to contract execution. 

BOARD PACKET 
Page 58 of 202



10 | P a g e

Failure to Accept Contract 
The following will occur if the Consultant to whom the award is made (if any) fails to enter into the 
contract: the award will be annulled; and an award may be made to the next highest ranked Consultant 
with whom a responsible compensation is negotiated, who shall fulfill every stipulation as if it were the 
party to whom the first award was made. 

BOARD PACKET 
Page 59 of 202



11 | P a g e

Section C – QUALIFICATION PROPOSAL CONTENT AND SELECTION 
PROCESS 
Qualification Proposal Content 

1. Submittal Forms
a. Acknowledgement
b. Certificate of Insurance
c. References
d. Statement of Past Disqualifications

2. Qualifications
a. A detailed scope of services that reflects the Consultant’s understanding of the District’s

requirements.

b. Written responses to all the subject areas set forth in the “Minimum Qualifications” section,
demonstrating the Consultant’s experience and expertise.

c. Personnel Qualifications: The Proposal shall identify the individual who will be primarily
responsible for providing the services required for the Natomas Basin Hydraulic Model Project.
Please include the qualifications, training, and certifications of lead individual, and all other
staff who will perform the services outlined herein.

d. List of Clients: A list of major public agency clients for each the Consultant has provided similar
services for during the last five (5) years, with contact information (i.e., name of the clients,
addresses, phone numbers, and contact person). The District reserves the right to contact any
of the references.

e. Additional Consultant Information: The Proposal shall include the following: (a) Its scope of
practice (national, regional, statewide, or local), and founding date; (b) Number of Consultant’s
employees; (c) Location of primary office; (d) Number of Consultants clients.

3. Fee Schedule:

a. The cost proposal, must include a not–to-exceed cost estimate adequate to cover the scope of
the project. The cost proposal should be itemized by task and include a list of charge out rates
related to the names of key personnel to be used by the Consultant during this project. Include
time, materials, travel, and other expenses, which may be associated with the duties and
obligations under this RFQ. All costs must be identified. A requested payment schedule should
accompany the work schedule.

BOARD PACKET 
Page 60 of 202



12 | P a g e

4. Qualification Proposal Length and Copies

a. Qualification proposals should be the minimum length to provide the required information.
Proposals shall not exceed 60 pages in length, including required forms.

b. Five (5) copies of the qualification proposal must be submitted, this requirement is waived if
submitting electronically.

c. One PDF format electronic copy must be submitted on a USB Flash Drive, this requirement is
waived if submitting electronically.

BOARD PACKET 
Page 61 of 202



13 | P a g e

Qualification Proposal Evaluation and Consultant Selection 
Qualification proposals will be evaluated by a review committee and contract award process as follows: 

1. Written Proposal Review/Finalist Candidate Selection
Evaluation of the qualification proposals will be based on the following:

a. The consultant’s experience, stability and capability to complete all aspects of the work.
b. Experience and qualifications of personnel assigned to this project and their availability.
c. References from clients with similar projects.
d. The availability of the consultant during the project period.
e. The consultant’s experience with the requirements of FEMA.
f. Price proposal (including expenses) that assumes up to three in-person meetings with the

District Staff and one meeting with the Board.

Qualification proposals will be reviewed by a selection committee and ranked in accordance with 
the above criteria. Where one qualification proposal is rated consistently higher than others, the 
consultant may be selected as the top ranked consultant for purposes of contract negotiation. 

Alternatively, a group of finalist candidates (generally the top 3 to 5 five proposers) may be 
selected for follow-up interviews and presentations, or requests for additional clarifying 
information, before the final top ranked consultants for contract negotiation are determined. 

BOARD PACKET 
Page 62 of 202



14 | P a g e

2. Qualification Proposal Review and Award Schedule

The following is an outline of the anticipated schedule for qualification proposal review and
contract award:

Issue RFQ:  July 31, 2020
Last Day for Questions:  August 21, 2020
Receive qualification proposals:  August 31, 2020
Selection Committee:  September 1 – September 10, 2020

• The Selection Committee will conduct a Level I review that will consist of evaluating the
proposals for the purpose of establishing the most qualified consultants. The Selection
Committee may decide on a recommendation for awarding the contract upon
completion of the Level I review.

• If needed, the Selection Committee will conduct a Level II review. The Level II review will
be conducted to select the finalist from a small pool of candidates. This level may include
a request for a presentation from the finalists, proposal fact finding and negotiation of
contract terms and conditions.

Complete evaluation:  September 10, 2020 
Award contract:  September 11, 2020 

BOARD PACKET 
Page 63 of 202



15 | P a g e

Section D – FORM OF AGREEMENT 
Agreement 

THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into in the City of Sacramento on [day, date, year] by and 
between RECLAMATION DISTRICT NO. 1000, a public entity of the State of California, hereinafter 
referred to as District, and [CONSULTANT’S NAME IN CAPITAL LETTERS], hereinafter referred to as 
Consultant. 

W I T N E S S E T H 

WHEREAS, on July 31, 2020, the District requested qualification proposals for Natomas Basin Hydraulic 
Model Project. 

WHEREAS, pursuant to said request, Consultant submitted a proposal that was accepted by District for 
said services. 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of their mutual promises, obligations and covenants hereinafter 
contained, the parties hereto agree as follows: 

1. Term. The term of this Agreement shall be from the date this Agreement is made and entered, as
first written above until Project Completion date _________________________.

2. Termination. If, during the term of the contract, the District determines that the Consultant is not
faithfully abiding by any term or condition contained herein, the District may notify the Consultant
in writing of such defect or failure to perform. This notice must give the Consultant a 10 (ten)
calendar day notice of time thereafter in which to perform said work or cure the deficiency.

If the Consultant has not performed the work or cured the deficiency within the ten days specified
in the notice, such shall constitute a breach of the contract and the District may terminate the
contract immediately by written notice to the Consultant to said effect. Thereafter, neither party
shall have any further duties, obligations, responsibilities, or rights under the contract except,
however, any and all obligations of the Consultant’s surety shall remain in full force and effect,
and shall not be extinguished, reduced, or in any manner waived by the termination thereof.

In said event, the Consultant shall be entitled to the reasonable value of its services performed
from the beginning date in which the breach occurs up to the day it received the District’s Notice
of Termination, minus any offset from such payment representing the District’s damages from
such breach. "Reasonable value" includes fees or charges for goods or services as of the last
milestone or task satisfactorily delivered or completed by the Consultant as may be set forth in

BOARD PACKET 
Page 64 of 202



16 | P a g e

the Agreement payment schedule; compensation for any other work, services or goods 
performed or provided by the Consultant shall be based solely on the District’s assessment of the 
value of the work-in-progress in completing the overall work scope. 

The District reserves the right to delay any such payment until completion or confirmed 
abandonment of the project, as may be determined in the District’s sole discretion, so as to permit 
a full and complete accounting of costs. In no event, however, shall the Consultant be entitled to 
receive in excess of the compensation quoted in its proposal. 

The District also reserves the right to terminate the contract for convenience, providing a 30 
(thirty) calendar day notice, at any time upon a determination by the General Manager that 
termination of the contract is in the best interest of the District. In this case the Consultant will be 
paid compensation due and payable to the date of termination. 

3. Ability to Perform. The Consultant warrants that it possesses, or has arranged through
subcontracts, all capital and other equipment, labor, materials, and licenses necessary to carry
out and complete the work hereunder in compliance with any and all applicable federal, state,
county, city, and special district laws, ordinances, and regulations.

4. Sub-contract Provisions. No portion of the work pertinent to this contract shall be subcontracted
without written authorization by the District, except that which is expressly identified in the
Consultant’s qualification proposal. Any substitution of sub-consultants must be approved in
writing by the District. For any sub-contract for services in excess of $25,000, the subcontract shall
contain all provisions of this agreement.

5. Contract Assignment. The Consultant shall not assign, transfer, convey or otherwise dispose of
the contract, or its right, title or interest, or its power to execute such a contract to any individual
or business entity of any kind without the previous written consent of the District.

6. Inspection. The Consultant shall furnish District with every reasonable opportunity for District to
ascertain that the services of the Consultant are being performed in accordance with the
requirements and intentions of this contract. All work done and all materials furnished, if any,
shall be subject to the District’s inspection and approval. The inspection of such work shall not
relieve Consultant of any of its obligations to fulfill its contract requirements.

7. Record Retention and Audit. For the purpose of determining compliance with various laws and
regulations as well as performance of the contract, the Consultant and sub-consultants shall
maintain all books, documents, papers, accounting records and other evidence pertaining to the
performance of the contract, including but not limited to the cost of administering the contract.

BOARD PACKET 
Page 65 of 202



17 | P a g e

Materials shall be made available at their respective offices at all reasonable times during the 
contract period and for three years from the date of final payment under the contract. Authorized 
representatives of the District shall have the option of inspecting and/or auditing all records.  

8. Conflict of Interest. The Consultant shall disclose any financial, business, or other relationship
with the District that may have an impact upon the outcome of this contract, or any ensuing
District project. The Consultant shall also list current clients who may have a financial interest in
the outcome of this contract, or any ensuing District project which will follow. The Consultant staff
shall provide a Conflict of Interest Statement where determined necessary by the District.

The Consultant covenants that it presently has no interest, and shall not acquire any interest—
direct, indirect or otherwise—that would conflict in any manner or degree with the performance
of the work hereunder. The Consultant further covenants that, in the performance of this work,
no sub-consultant or person having such an interest shall be employed. The Consultant certifies
that no one who has or will have any financial interest in performing this work is an officer or
employee of the District.

9. Rebates, Kickbacks or Other Unlawful Consideration. The Consultant warrants that this contract
was not obtained or secured through rebates, kickbacks or other unlawful consideration, either
promised or paid to any District employee. For breach or violation of the warranty, the District
shall have the right in its discretion; to terminate the contract without liability; to pay only for the
value of the work actually performed; to deduct from the contract price; or otherwise recover the
full amount of such rebate, kickback or other unlawful consideration.

10. Covenant Against Contingent Fees. The Consultant warrants by execution of this contract that no
person or selling agency has been employed, or retained, to solicit or secure this contract upon
an agreement or understanding, for a commission, percentage, brokerage, or contingent fee,
excepting bona fide employees or bona fide established commercial or selling agencies
maintained by the Consultant for the purpose of securing business. For breach or violation of this
warranty, the District has the right to annul this contract without liability; pay only for the value
of the work actually performed, or in its discretion, to deduct from the contract price or
consideration, or otherwise recover the full amount of such commission, percentage, brokerage,
or contingent fee.

11. Compliance with Laws and Wage Rates. The Consultant shall keep itself fully informed of and
shall observe and comply with all applicable state and federal laws and county and City of
Sacramento ordinances, regulations and adopted codes during its performance of the work.

BOARD PACKET 
Page 66 of 202



 

 

18 | P a g e  
 

12. Payment of Taxes. The contract prices shall include full compensation for all taxes that the 
Consultant is required to pay. 

 
13. Immigration Act of 1986. The Consultant warrants on behalf of itself and all sub-consultants 

engaged for the performance of this work that only persons authorized to work in the United 
States pursuant to the Immigration Reform and Control Act of 1986 and other applicable laws 
shall be employed in the performance of the work hereunder. 

 
14. Consultant Non-Discrimination. In the award of subcontracts or in performance of this work, the 

Consultant agrees that it will not engage in, nor permit such sub-consultants as it may employ, to 
engage in discrimination in employment of persons on any basis prohibited by State or Federal 
law. 

 
15. Indemnification for Professional Liability. To the fullest extent permitted by law, the Consultant 

shall indemnify, protect, defend and hold harmless the District and any and all of its officials, 
employees and agents (“Indemnified Parties”) from and against any and all losses, liabilities, 
damages, costs and expenses, including attorney’s fees and cost which arise out of, pertain to, or 
relate to the negligence, recklessness, or willful misconduct of the Consultant. 

 
16. Non-Exclusive Contract. The District reserves the right to contract for the services listed in this 

RFQ from other consultants during the contract term. 
 

17. Release of Reports and Information. Any reports, information, data, or other material given to, 
prepared by or assembled by the Consultant as part of the work or services under these 
specifications shall be the property of District and shall not be made available to any individual or 
organization by the Consultant without the prior written approval of the District. 

 
The Consultant shall not issue any news release or public relations item of any nature, whatsoever, 
regarding work performed or to be performed under this contract without prior review of the 
contents thereof by the District and receipt of the District’s written permission. 
 

18. Consultant Invoices. The Consultant shall deliver a monthly invoice to the District, itemized by 
task. Invoice must include a breakdown of hours billed and miscellaneous charges and any sub-
consultant invoices, similarly broken down, as supporting detail. 
 

19. Payment. For providing services as specified in this Agreement, Consultant shall be reimbursed 
for hours worked at the hourly rates attached to this agreement. Hourly rates include direct salary 
costs, employee benefits, overhead and fee. In addition, the Consultant shall be reimbursed for 
direct costs other than salary and vehicle cost that have been identified and are attached to this 

BOARD PACKET 
Page 67 of 202



19 | P a g e

agreement. The Consultant’s personnel shall be reimbursed for per diem expenses at a rate not 
to exceed that currently authorized for State employees under State Department of Personnel 
Administration rules. 

20. Payment Terms. The District’s payment terms are 30 days from the receipt and approval by the
District of an original invoice and acceptance by the District of the services provided by the
Consultant (Net 30).

21. Resolution of Disputes.  Any dispute, other than audit, concerning a question of fact arising under
this contract that is not disposed of by agreement shall be decided by a committee consisting of
the District’s General Manager and the District’s Administrative Services Manager, who may
consider written or verbal information submitted by the Consultant. Not later than thirty (30) days
after completion of all deliverables necessary to complete the project, the Consultant may request 
review by the District Board of Trustees of unresolved claims or disputes.

Any dispute concerning a question of fact arising under an audit of this contract that is not
disposed of by agreement, shall be reviewed by the District’s Administrative Services Manager.
Not later than thirty (30) days after issuance of the final audit report, the Consultant may request
a review by the District’s Administrative Services Manager of unresolved audit issues. The request
for review must be submitted in writing.

Neither the pendency of a dispute, nor its consideration by the District will excuse the Consultant
from full and timely performance in accordance with the terms of this contract.

22. Agreement Parties.

District:  Kevin L. King 
General Manager 
Reclamation District No. 1000 
1633 Garden Highway 
Sacramento, CA 95833 

Consultant: 

All written notices to the parties hereto shall be sent by United States mail, postage prepaid by 
registered or certified mail addressed as shown above. 

BOARD PACKET 
Page 68 of 202



20 | P a g e

23. Incorporation by Reference. District Request for Qualifications – Natomas Basin Hydraulic Model
Project and Consultant's qualification proposal, are hereby incorporated in and made a part of
this Agreement.

24. Amendments. Any amendment, modification or variation from the terms of this Agreement shall
be in writing and shall be effective only upon approval by the District General Manager.

25. Working Out of Scope. If, at any time during the project, the Consultant is directed to do work by
persons other than the District General Manager and the firm believes that the work is outside of
the scope of the original contract, the Consultant shall inform the General Manager immediately.
If the General Manager and Consultant both agree that the work is outside of the project scope
and is necessary to the successful completion of the task, then a fee will be established for such
work based on Consultant’s hourly billing rates or a lump sum price agreed upon between the
District and the Consultant. Any extra work performed by Consultant without prior written
approval from the District General Manager shall be at Consultant’s own expense.

26. Complete Agreement. This written agreement, including all writings specifically incorporated
herein by reference, shall constitute the complete agreement between the parties hereto. No oral
agreement, understanding or representation not reduced to writing and specifically incorporated
herein shall be of any force or effect, nor shall any such oral agreement, understanding or
representation be binding upon the parties hereto. For and in consideration of the payments and
agreements hereinbefore mentioned to be made and performed by District, Consultant agrees
with District to do everything required by this Agreement.

27. Authority to Execute Agreement. Both District and Consultant do covenant that each individual
executing this agreement on behalf of each party is a person duly authorized and empowered to
execute Agreements for such party.

BOARD PACKET 
Page 69 of 202



21 | P a g e

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this instrument to be executed the day and year 
first above written. 

RECLAMATION DISTRICT NO. 1000: CONSULTANT: 
Name of Consultant By: 

Kevin L. King, General Manager Name of Principal,  Its: Principal 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

Rebecca Smith, District Counsel 

BOARD PACKET 
Page 70 of 202



22 | P a g e

Section E – SUBMITTAL FORMS ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 
The undersigned declares that she or he: 

 Has carefully examined the Request for Qualifications – Natomas Basin Hydraulic Model Project
 Is thoroughly familiar with its content
 Is authorized to represent the proposing Consultant; and
 Agrees to perform the work as set forth in this qualification proposal.

Consultant Name and Address: 

Contact Name: 

Email: Fax: Phone: 

Signature of Authorized Representative: Date: 

Insurance Certificate 

 Insurance Company’s A.M. Best Rating 

Certificate of insurance attached 

BOARD PACKET 
Page 71 of 202



 

 

23 | P a g e  
 

Statement of Past Contract Disqualifications 
The Consultant shall state whether it or any of its officers or employees who have a proprietary interest 
in it, has ever been disqualified, removed, or otherwise prevented from bidding on, or completing a 
federal, state, or local government project because of the violation of law, a safety regulation, or for 
any other reason, including but not limited to financial difficulties, project delays, or disputes regarding 
work or product quality, and if so to explain the circumstances. 
 

Do you have any disqualification as described in the above paragraph to 
declare? 
 

Yes No 

If yes, explain the circumstances.   
 

 

 

 

 

 
 
Executed on    at                 under penalty of perjury of the laws of the State of 
California, that the foregoing is true and correct. 
 

 
Signature of Authorized Consultant Representative 
 
References 
Number of years engaged in providing the services included within the scope of the specifications under 
the present business name:     
 
Describe fully the last three (3) contracts performed by Consultant that demonstrate the ability to 
provide the services included with the scope of the RFQ.  Attach additional pages if required. The District 
reserves the right to contact each of the references listed for additional information regarding your 
qualifications. 
  

BOARD PACKET 
Page 72 of 202



24 | P a g e

Reference No. 1 

Customer Name 
Contact 
Individual 
Telephone & 
Email 
Street Address 
City, State, Zip 
Code 
Date of Services 
Contract 
Amount 
Description of Services 

Project Outcome 

BOARD PACKET 
Page 73 of 202



25 | P a g e

Reference No. 2 

Customer Name 
Contact 
Individual 
Telephone & 
Email 
Street Address 
City, State, Zip 
Code 
Date of Services 
Contract 
Amount 
Description of Services 

Project Outcome 

BOARD PACKET 
Page 74 of 202



 

 

26 | P a g e  
 

Reference No. 3 
 

Customer Name  
Contact 
Individual 

 

Telephone & 
Email 

 

Street Address  
City, State, Zip 
Code 

 

Date of Services  
Contract 
Amount 

 

Description of Services 

Project Outcome 

BOARD PACKET 
Page 75 of 202



27 | P a g e

Section F – INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS: Consultant Services 
The Consultant shall procure and maintain for the duration of the contract insurance against claims for 
injuries to persons or damages to property which may arise from or in connection with the performance 
of the work hereunder by the Consultants, its agents, representatives, employees or sub-consultants. 

Minimum Scope of Insurance. Coverage shall be at least as broad as: 
1. Insurance Services Office Commercial General Liability coverage (occurrence form CG 20 10 Prior

to 1993 or CG 20 10 07 04 with CG 20 37 10 01 or the exact equivalent as determined by the
District).

2. Insurance Services Office form number CA 0001 (Ed. 1/87) covering Automobile Liability, code 1
(any auto).

3. Workers' Compensation insurance as required by the State of California and Employer's Liability
Insurance.

4. Errors and Omissions Liability insurance as appropriate to the consultant's profession.

Minimum Limits of Insurance. Consultant shall maintain limits no less than: 
1. General Liability: $1,000,000 per occurrence for bodily injury, personal injury and property

damage. If Commercial General Liability or other form with a general aggregate limit is used, either
the general aggregate limit shall apply separately to this project/location or the general aggregate
limit shall be twice the required occurrence limit.

2. Automobile Liability: $1,000,000 per accident for bodily injury and property damage.
3. Employer's Liability: $1,000,000 per accident for bodily injury or disease.
4. Errors and Omissions Liability: $1,000,000 per occurrence.

Deductibles and Self-Insured Retentions. Any deductibles or self-insured retentions must be declared 
to and approved by the District. At the option of the District, either: the insurer shall reduce or eliminate 
such deductibles or self-insured retentions as respects the District, its officers, officials, employees and 
volunteers; or the Consultant shall procure a bond guaranteeing payment of losses and related 
investigations, claim administration and defense expenses. 

Other Insurance Provisions. The general liability and automobile liability policies are to contain, or be 
endorsed to contain, the following provisions: 

1. The District, its officers, officials, employees, agents and volunteers are to be covered as insureds
as respects: liability arising out of activities performed by or on behalf of the Consultant; products
and completed operations of the Consultant; premises owned, occupied or used by the Consultant;
or automobiles owned, leased, hired or borrowed by the Consultant. The coverage shall contain
no special limitations on the scope of protection afforded to the District, its officers, official,
employees, agents or volunteers.

BOARD PACKET 
Page 76 of 202



28 | P a g e

2. For any claims related to this project, the Consultant’s insurance coverage shall be primary
insurance as respects the District, its officers, officials, employees, agents and volunteers. Any
insurance or self-insurance maintained by the District, its officers, officials, employees, agents or
volunteers shall be excess of the Consultant’s insurance and shall not contribute with it.

3. The Consultant’s insurance shall apply separately to each insured against whom claim is made or
suit is brought, except with respect to the limits of the insurer's liability.

4. Each insurance policy required by this clause shall be endorsed to state that coverage shall not be
suspended, voided, canceled by either party, reduced in coverage or in limits except after thirty
(30) days prior written notice by certified mail, return receipt requested, has been given to the
District. The Consultant agrees to notify the District in the event that the policy is suspended,
voided or reduced in coverage or limits. A minimum of thirty (30) days prior written notice by
certified mail, return receipt requested, will be provided.

5. Insurance is to be placed with insurers with a current A.M. Best's rating of no less than A:VII.

Verification of Coverage. Consultant shall furnish the District with a certificate of insurance showing 
maintenance of the required insurance coverage. Original endorsements effecting general liability and 
automobile liability coverage required by this clause must also be provided. The endorsements are to be 
signed by a person authorized by that insurer to bind coverage on its behalf. All endorsements are to be 
received and approved by the District before work commences. 

BOARD PACKET 
Page 77 of 202



Page 1 of 8 

Name of Project: Natomas Basin Hydraulic Model Project  

RECLAMATION DISTRICT NO. 1000 

AGREEMENT FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 

THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into in the City of Sacramento on _____________ 
by and between RECLAMATION DISTRICT NO. 1000, a public entity of the State of California, 
hereinafter referred to as District, and CIVIL ENGINEERING SOLUTIONS, INC, hereinafter 
referred to as Consultant. 

W I T N E S S E T H 

WHEREAS, on July 31, 2020, the District requested qualification proposals for Natomas Basin 
Hydraulic Model Project. 

WHEREAS, pursuant to said request, Consultant submitted a proposal that was accepted by 
District for said services. 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of their mutual promises, obligations and covenants 
hereinafter contained, the parties hereto agree as follows: 

1. Scope of Services. The District hereby engages the Consultant, and the Consultant
agrees to perform the services described in Exhibit A (the “Services”), in
accordance with the terms of this Agreement.  In case of conflict between this
Agreement and any Exhibit hereto, this Agreement shall control over any Exhibit.

2. Compensation. Compensation for the Services shall be as follows:  Lump-sum fixed
price of $388,566 which includes labor, materials, equipment and supervision
necessary to perform the work as described in Exhibit A.  Additional services
requested at the discretion of District for work not contemplated by this
Agreement shall be billed on a time and materials basis per the rate schedule.

3. Term. The term of this Agreement shall be from the date this Agreement is made and
entered, as first written above until Project Completion date
_________________________.

BOARD PACKET 
Page 78 of 202

AGENDA ITEM 6.1
ATTACHMENT NO. 2



Page 2 of 8 

4. Termination. If, during the term of the contract, the District determines that the
Consultant is not faithfully abiding by any term or condition contained herein, the District
may notify the Consultant in writing of such defect or failure to perform. This notice must
give the Consultant a 10 (ten) calendar day notice of time thereafter in which to perform
said work or cure the deficiency.

If the Consultant has not performed the work or cured the deficiency within the ten days
specified in the notice, such shall constitute a breach of the contract and the District may
terminate the contract immediately by written notice to the Consultant to said effect.
Thereafter, neither party shall have any further duties, obligations, responsibilities, or
rights under the contract except, however, any and all obligations of the Consultant’s
surety shall remain in full force and effect, and shall not be extinguished, reduced, or in
any manner waived by the termination thereof.

In said event, the Consultant shall be entitled to the reasonable value of its services
performed from the beginning date in which the breach occurs up to the day it received
the District’s Notice of Termination, minus any offset from such payment representing the
District’s damages from such breach. "Reasonable value" includes fees or charges for
goods or services as of the last milestone or task satisfactorily delivered or completed by
the Consultant as may be set forth in the Agreement payment schedule; compensation
for any other work, services or goods performed or provided by the Consultant shall be
based solely on the District’s assessment of the value of the work-in-progress in
completing the overall work scope.

The District reserves the right to delay any such payment until completion or confirmed
abandonment of the project, as may be determined in the District’s sole discretion, so as
to permit a full and complete accounting of costs. In no event, however, shall the
Consultant be entitled to receive in excess of the compensation quoted in its proposal.

The District also reserves the right to terminate the contract for convenience, providing a
30 (thirty) calendar day notice, at any time upon a determination by the General Manager
that termination of the contract is in the best interest of the District. In this case the
Consultant will be paid compensation due and payable to the date of termination.

5. Ability to Perform. The Consultant warrants that it possesses, or has arranged through
subcontracts, all capital and other equipment, labor, materials, and licenses necessary to
carry out and complete the work hereunder in compliance with any and all applicable
federal, state, county, city, and special district laws, ordinances, and regulations.

BOARD PACKET 
Page 79 of 202



Page 3 of 8 

6. Sub-contract Provisions. No portion of the work pertinent to this contract shall be
subcontracted without written authorization by the District, except that which is
expressly identified in the Consultant’s qualification proposal. Any substitution of sub-
consultants must be approved in writing by the District. For any sub-contract for services
in excess of $25,000, the subcontract shall contain all provisions of this agreement.

7. Contract Assignment. The Consultant shall not assign, transfer, convey or otherwise
dispose of the contract, or its right, title or interest, or its power to execute such a
contract to any individual or business entity of any kind without the previous written
consent of the District.

8. Inspection. The Consultant shall furnish District with every reasonable opportunity for
District to ascertain that the services of the Consultant are being performed in accordance
with the requirements and intentions of this contract. All work done and all materials
furnished, if any, shall be subject to the District’s inspection and approval. The inspection
of such work shall not relieve Consultant of any of its obligations to fulfill its contract
requirements.

9. Record Retention and Audit. For the purpose of determining compliance with various
laws and regulations as well as performance of the contract, the Consultant and sub-
consultants shall maintain all books, documents, papers, accounting records and other
evidence pertaining to the performance of the contract, including but not limited to the
cost of administering the contract. Materials shall be made available at their respective
offices at all reasonable times during the contract period and for three years from the
date of final payment under the contract. Authorized representatives of the District shall
have the option of inspecting and/or auditing all records.

10. Conflict of Interest. The Consultant shall disclose any financial, business, or other
relationship with the District that may have an impact upon the outcome of this contract,
or any ensuing District project. The Consultant shall also list current clients who may have
a financial interest in the outcome of this contract, or any ensuing District project which
will follow. The Consultant staff shall provide a Conflict of Interest Statement where
determined necessary by the District.

The Consultant covenants that it presently has no interest, and shall not acquire any
interest— direct, indirect or otherwise—that would conflict in any manner or degree with
the performance of the work hereunder. The Consultant further covenants that, in the

BOARD PACKET 
Page 80 of 202



Page 4 of 8 

performance of this work, no sub-consultant or person having such an interest shall be 
employed. The Consultant certifies that no one who has or will have any financial interest 
in performing this work is an officer or employee of the District.  

11. Rebates, Kickbacks or Other Unlawful Consideration. The Consultant warrants that this
contract was not obtained or secured through rebates, kickbacks or other unlawful
consideration, either promised or paid to any District employee. For breach or violation of
the warranty, the District shall have the right in its discretion; to terminate the contract
without liability; to pay only for the value of the work actually performed; to deduct from
the contract price; or otherwise recover the full amount of such rebate, kickback or other
unlawful consideration.

12. Covenant Against Contingent Fees. The Consultant warrants by execution of this contract
that no person or selling agency has been employed, or retained, to solicit or secure this
contract upon an agreement or understanding, for a commission, percentage, brokerage,
or contingent fee, excepting bona fide employees or bona fide established commercial or
selling agencies maintained by the Consultant for the purpose of securing business. For
breach or violation of this warranty, the District has the right to annul this contract
without liability; pay only for the value of the work actually performed, or in its discretion,
to deduct from the contract price or consideration, or otherwise recover the full amount
of such commission, percentage, brokerage, or contingent fee.

13. Compliance with Laws and Wage Rates. The Consultant shall keep itself fully informed of
and shall observe and comply with all applicable state and federal laws and county and
City of Sacramento ordinances, regulations and adopted codes during its performance of
the work.

14. Payment of Taxes. The contract prices shall include full compensation for all taxes that
the Consultant is required to pay.

15. Immigration Act of 1986. The Consultant warrants on behalf of itself and all sub-
consultants engaged for the performance of this work that only persons authorized to
work in the United States pursuant to the Immigration Reform and Control Act of 1986
and other applicable laws shall be employed in the performance of the work hereunder.

16. Consultant Non-Discrimination. In the award of subcontracts or in performance of this
work, the Consultant agrees that it will not engage in, nor permit such sub-consultants as

BOARD PACKET 
Page 81 of 202



Page 5 of 8 

it may employ, to engage in discrimination in employment of persons on any basis 
prohibited by State or Federal law. 

17. Indemnification for Professional Liability. To the fullest extent permitted by law, the
Consultant shall indemnify, protect, defend and hold harmless the District and any and all
of its officials, employees and agents (“Indemnified Parties”) from and against any and all
losses, liabilities, damages, costs and expenses, including attorney’s fees and cost which
arise out of, pertain to, or relate to the negligence, recklessness, or willful misconduct of
the Consultant.

18. Non-Exclusive Contract. The District reserves the right to contract for the services listed in
this RFQ from other consultants during the contract term.

19. Release of Reports and Information. Any reports, information, data, or other material
given to, prepared by or assembled by the Consultant as part of the work or services
under these specifications shall be the property of District and shall not be made available
to any individual or organization by the Consultant without the prior written approval of
the District.

The Consultant shall not issue any news release or public relations item of any nature,
whatsoever, regarding work performed or to be performed under this contract without
prior review of the contents thereof by the District and receipt of the District’s written
permission.

20. Consultant Invoices. The Consultant shall deliver a monthly invoice to the District,
itemized by task. Invoice must include a breakdown of hours billed and miscellaneous
charges and any sub-consultant invoices, similarly broken down, as supporting detail.

21. Payment. For providing services as specified in this Agreement, Consultant shall be
reimbursed for hours worked at the hourly rates attached to this agreement. Hourly rates
include direct salary costs, employee benefits, overhead and fee. In addition, the
Consultant shall be reimbursed for direct costs other than salary and vehicle cost that
have been identified and are attached to this agreement. The Consultant’s personnel shall
be reimbursed for per diem expenses at a rate not to exceed that currently authorized for
State employees under State Department of Personnel Administration rules.

BOARD PACKET 
Page 82 of 202



Page 6 of 8 

22. Payment Terms. The District’s payment terms are 30 days from the receipt and approval
by the District of an original invoice and acceptance by the District of the services
provided by the Consultant (Net 30).

23. Resolution of Disputes.  Any dispute, other than audit, concerning a question of fact
arising under this contract that is not disposed of by agreement shall be decided by a
committee consisting of the District’s General Manager and the District’s Administrative
Services Manager, who may consider written or verbal information submitted by the
Consultant. Not later than thirty (30) days after completion of all deliverables necessary
to complete the project, the Consultant may request review by the District Board of
Trustees of unresolved claims or disputes.

Any dispute concerning a question of fact arising under an audit of this contract that is
not disposed of by agreement, shall be reviewed by the District’s Administrative Services
Manager. Not later than thirty (30) days after issuance of the final audit report, the
Consultant may request a review by the District’s Administrative Services Manager of
unresolved audit issues. The request for review must be submitted in writing.

Neither the pendency of a dispute, nor its consideration by the District will excuse the
Consultant from full and timely performance in accordance with the terms of this
contract.

24. Agreement Parties.

District: 
Kevin L. King 
General Manager 
Reclamation District No. 1000 
1633 Garden Highway 
Sacramento, CA 95833 

Consultant: 
Thomas S. Plumber, P.E. 
Project Director 
Civil Engineering Solutions, Inc. 
590 E. Street 
Lincoln, CA 9564 

All written notices to the parties hereto shall be sent by United States mail, postage 
prepaid by registered or certified mail addressed as shown above. 

25. Incorporation by Reference. District Request for Qualifications – Natomas Basin Hydraulic
Model Project and Consultant's qualification proposal, are hereby incorporated in and
made a part of this Agreement.

BOARD PACKET 
Page 83 of 202



Page 7 of 8 

26. Amendments. Any amendment, modification or variation from the terms of this
Agreement shall be in writing and shall be effective only upon approval by the District
General Manager.

27. Working Out of Scope. If, at any time during the project, the Consultant is directed to do
work by persons other than the District General Manager and the firm believes that the
work is outside of the scope of the original contract, the Consultant shall inform the
General Manager immediately. If the General Manager and Consultant both agree that
the work is outside of the project scope and is necessary to the successful completion of
the task, then a fee will be established for such work based on Consultant’s hourly billing
rates or a lump sum price agreed upon between the District and the Consultant. Any extra
work performed by Consultant without prior written approval from the District General
Manager shall be at Consultant’s own expense.

28. Complete Agreement. This written agreement, including all writings specifically
incorporated herein by reference, shall constitute the complete agreement between the
parties hereto. No oral agreement, understanding or representation not reduced to
writing and specifically incorporated herein shall be of any force or effect, nor shall any
such oral agreement, understanding or representation be binding upon the parties
hereto. For and in consideration of the payments and agreements hereinbefore
mentioned to be made and performed by District, Consultant agrees with District to do
everything required by this Agreement.

29. Authority to Execute Agreement. Both District and Consultant do covenant that each
individual executing this agreement on behalf of each party is a person duly authorized
and empowered to execute Agreements for such party.

BOARD PACKET 
Page 84 of 202



Page 8 of 8 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this instrument to be executed 
the day and year first above written. 

RECLAMATION DISTRICT NO. 1000: CIVIL ENGINEERING SOLUTIONS, INC. 

Kevin L. King, General Manager Thomas, S. Plumber, Project Director 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

Rebecca Smith, District Counsel 

BOARD PACKET 
Page 85 of 202



CESI TEAM
OF QUALIFICATIONS

CESI TEAM STATEMENT 
OF QUALIFICATIONS

August 31, 2020

STATEMENT 
OF QUALIFICATIONS 

August 31, 2020 

For: 

BOARD PACKET 
Page 86 of 202

"EXHIBIT A"



BOARD PACKET 
Page 87 of 202



Contents  

Cover Letter 

Submitted Forms ................................................................................. 2

Qualifications ........................................................................................ 2

Fee Schedule ......................................................................................... 2

Appendix A – Staff Resumes

Appendix B – Assignment Agreement

BOARD PACKET 
Page 88 of 202



Statement of Qualifications for Natomas Basin Hydraulic Model 

Civil Engineering Solutions, Inc. 1 Reclmation District No. 1000 

 This proposal prepared by the CESI Team which includes both GEI Consultants and RFE Engineering 
follows the layout as requested on page 11 in the Request for Qualifications dated July 31, 2020.  Section 
1 includes the Submittal Forms; Section 2 includes the qualifications; Section 3 includes the Fee Schedule. 

The following is the required forms as requested: 

 Acknowledgement

 Certificate of Insurance

 Statement of Past Disqualifications

 References for Civil Engineering Solutions, Inc. and GEI Consultants, Inc.

BOARD PACKET 
Page 89 of 202



Statement of Qualifications for Natomas Basin Hydraulic Model 

Civil Engineering Solutions, Inc. 2 Reclmation District No. 1000 BOARD PACKET 
Page 90 of 202



Statement of Qualifications for Natomas Basin Hydraulic Model 

Civil Engineering Solutions, Inc. 3 Reclmation District No. 1000 BOARD PACKET 
Page 91 of 202



Statement of Qualifications for Natomas Basin Hydraulic Model 

Civil Engineering Solutions, Inc. 4 Reclmation District No. 1000 BOARD PACKET 
Page 92 of 202



Statement of Qualifications for Natomas Basin Hydraulic Model 
 

Civil Engineering Solutions, Inc. 5 Reclmation District No. 1000 

 

BOARD PACKET 
Page 93 of 202



Statement of Qualifications for Natomas Basin Hydraulic Model 

Civil Engineering Solutions, Inc. 6 Reclmation District No. 1000 BOARD PACKET 
Page 94 of 202



Statement of Qualifications for Natomas Basin Hydraulic Model 

Civil Engineering Solutions, Inc. 7 Reclmation District No. 1000 

CESI REFERENCE FORMS 

BOARD PACKET 
Page 95 of 202



Statement of Qualifications for Natomas Basin Hydraulic Model 

Civil Engineering Solutions, Inc. 8 Reclmation District No. 1000 BOARD PACKET 
Page 96 of 202



Statement of Qualifications for Natomas Basin Hydraulic Model 
 

Civil Engineering Solutions, Inc. 9 Reclmation District No. 1000 BOARD PACKET 
Page 97 of 202



Statement of Qualifications for Natomas Basin Hydraulic Model 

Civil Engineering Solutions, Inc. 10 Reclmation District No. 1000 

GEI REFERENCE FORMS 

BOARD PACKET 
Page 98 of 202



Statement of Qualifications for Natomas Basin Hydraulic Model 

Civil Engineering Solutions, Inc. 11 Reclmation District No. 1000 BOARD PACKET 
Page 99 of 202



Statement of Qualifications for Natomas Basin Hydraulic Model 
 

Civil Engineering Solutions, Inc. 12 Reclmation District No. 1000 

  

BOARD PACKET 
Page 100 of 202



Statement of Qualifications for Natomas Basin Hydraulic Model 

Civil Engineering Solutions, Inc. 13 Reclmation District No. 1000 

RD1000 System Map 

A. Project Understanding and Detailed Scope of Services
As discussed in the Request for Qualifications (RFQ), 
the Natomas Basin is surrounded by four leveed 
channel reaches (Sacramento River, American River, 
Natomas Cross Canal, Natomas East Main Drain) 
that are in the process of improvement in order to 
gain levee accreditation by the Federal Emergency 
Management Agency (FEMA). The goal of this RFQ 
is to assist the Reclamation District No. 1000 
(RD1000) with its public safety mission to protect 
more than 100,000 residents and employees within 
the Natomas Basin by providing modeling and 
mapping products which meet the current state of 
the art, and will be usable into the future.  

This proposal presents the CESI Team qualifications 
to complete the process from start to finish. The 
CESI Team members have developed large system 
models, and been through the complete FEMA 
process for numerous projects in the Sacramento and 

Central Valley Region.  Lead Consultant/Project Director Civil Engineering Solutions Inc, (CESI) 
produced the South Lincoln LOMR, the Elder and Gerber Creeks LOMR, and the Placer County CTP1 
PMR.  The CESI Team’s main sub-consultant GEI Consultants performed the  American River in 2004, 
the City’s South Streams (Morrison, Unionhouse, Florin, Elder) LOMR approval in 2012 and the GEI 
geotechnical team provided certification for the Three Rivers Levee Improvement Authority (TRLIA) 
located in Butte County for the Feather and Bear River setbacks. Currently, the CESI Team is involved 
with several FEMA LOMR projects including Placer County CTP3 PMR, Lincoln 270 CLOMR, the 
Sacramento River Levee Evaluation, City of Merced LOMR, and the City of Palmdale Amargosa Creek 
LOMR. Additionally Mr. Chris Ferrari, the proposed project manager, is providing the Sacramento 
County Department of Water Resources with a third-party review of the Grandpark Natomas Basin 
hydraulic model, included as an option to be used for this project. CESI is currently finalizing the 
development of the hydraulic model under review for the Natomas Basin. 

Based on review of the scope of services included in the RFQ to develop a hydraulic model for the 
Natomas basin, the CESI Team will develop a detailed work plan to cover all the items necessary to 
complete the RFQ. Additional items and assumptions for the RFQ not included in the RFQ are included 
in the project understanding below.  

Purpose: To assist RD1000 with its public safety mission to protect more than 100,000 residents and 
employees within the Natomas Basin by providing modeling and mapping products which meet the 
current state-of-the-art, and will be usable into the future. 

BOARD PACKET 
Page 101 of 202



Statement of Qualifications for Natomas Basin Hydraulic Model 

Civil Engineering Solutions, Inc. 14 Reclmation District No. 1000 

The following is the CESI Team detailed scope of services to complete the project. 

TASK 1. PROJECT MANAGEMENT 

 Thomas Plummer (CESI) will be the lead consultant serving as the Project Director.  CESI will
take the lead on model development tasks, utilizing GEI’s staff to assist in the preparation of the
model and other tasks.

 Mr. Ferrari of GEI will provide project management and work closely with CESI for
coordination with each agency. Initial coordination with FEMA will be very critical to discuss the
approach of the submittal of the Natomas model.

 Both Mr. Plummer and Mr. Ferrari have developed and gained approval for several hydrologic
and hydraulic models and projects within the County of Sacramento.  Based on previous
experience with FEMA review and approval, the CESI Team recommends that the HEC-RAS
software modeling tool will be used for the effective model. As indicated in the RFQ and based
on current review of the XPSWMM model, there are parameters that likely will not pass FEMAs
technical review. The CESI Team believes the use of the HEC-RAS software for the hydraulic
modeling will provide the most direct path through the FEMA Technical Review process.  The
CESI teams initial review of the Grandpark Natomas Basin Wide  HEC-RAS model currently
under development would pass the FEMA’s reviews once completed for FEMA submittals.. The
model is a combined 1D and 2D based model, and GEI recently gained FEMA approval for a
HEC-RAS 1D/2D hydraulic model for the City of Merced.

 The CESI Team will follow FEMA guidance on the modeling of Levees and non-accredited
levee like features, based on the 2019 Manual.  In some cases embankments will be modeled in
their existing conditions, and in other cases the “natural valley procedures” described in the
LAMP guidelines will be applied.

 The CESI Team will propose two options of the development of a Basin Wide Model. The first
option (Option 1) will be to use the existing Basin Wide Models developed by the Grandpark
Project. The second option (Option 2) would be to develop new models from scratch. The work
plan presented later in this proposal, presents the full work scope described in Option 2, and
would need to be modified if Option 1 is selected.  Cost Estimates and Schedules are presented
for both options.

 Monthly status reports will be provided as needed with monthly invoicing by the Project
Director and Project Manager..

 Coordinate with SAFCA for Exterior Levee Certification, with City’s interior Levee Certification
Consultant, with County Levee Certification Consultant

• Data Coordination:
• Hydraulic Grade Line Information
• Water Surface Profiles
• GIS Data
• Progress updates and Schedules

BOARD PACKET 
Page 102 of 202



Statement of Qualifications for Natomas Basin Hydraulic Model 
 

Civil Engineering Solutions, Inc. 15 Reclmation District No. 1000 

TASK 2: DATA COLLECTION AND FIELD RECONNAISSANCE 

1. DATA COLLECTION 

 The CESI Team has collected most of the data required to provide a complete assessment.  

 The CESI Team will provide a document which summarizes findings and missing data to the 
City. This document will include proposed locations for borings or cone penetration testing 
(CPT).  

2. FIELD RECONNAISSANCE 

 The CESI Team has a significant amount of experience with condition assessments, levee and 
erosion evaluations. 

 The CESI Team will develop and has experience providing 
FEMA background data. The CESI Team also has experience 
with obtaining the necessary permits and coordinating 
property access. This effort will be verified with the first 
coordination meeting with FEMA staff. This task also 
includes exploration oversight, permits, photo 
documentation, and measurements.   

3.  SURVEY 

The CESI Team has included RFE Engineering, Inc. for as-
needed survey.  

a. May be required to supplement missing data 
i. Documentation of structures 
ii. Documentation of Levee heights 
iii. Documentation of channel geometry 

TASK 3: HYDROLOGY 

a. Option to Purchase: An Option (#1) to purchase the “Current Conditions Analysis” of the 
Grandpark Basin Wide Hydrology Model, which has already assessed most of the 
Hydrologic factors requested in the RFQ, is included as an option to save time and costs. 
However, if the terms of that acquisition are deemed unacceptable, we have also included an 
optional (#2) effort to redevelop the Basin Wide Hydrology from scratch. (See section on 
Model Purchase Option for more information) 

b. Utilize City/County Hydrology Standards: The Hydrology 
Standards for the City of Sacramento and County of 
Sacramento will be utilized to develop the Hydrologic 
Modeling, including the use of the SACCALC software. 
Hydrographs for runoff will be created for each watershed, 
for the 10-day storm events for the 10-(10%), 25-(4%)< 50-
(2%), 100-(1%), 200-(0.5%), 500-year storm(0.2%). 

c. Documentation of low infiltration rates: The current 
XPSWMM model includes calibrated Volume of runoff 
assessments from previous large events in the 1980’s and 
1990’s. The new Basin Wide Hydrology model will include an 
assessment of identifying infiltration rates in order to match 

Hydrologic Soils Groups for 

Natomas 

BOARD PACKET 
Page 103 of 202



Statement of Qualifications for Natomas Basin Hydraulic Model 
 

Civil Engineering Solutions, Inc. 16 Reclmation District No. 1000 

runoff volumes predicted in that model. We note that in current calibrations of the Basin 
Wide Grandpark Model, it was noted for the 2017 event that Type D soil infiltration rates 
matching the Current City/County Standards provided the best Calibration. The event was 
categorized as a 10-year event. It is believed that in smaller events where saturation and 
groundwater exfiltration are not present, these rates published in the standards will be 
necessary. And that in less frequent larger events, the volume calibrated based rates will be 
more applicable. 

d. Considers flat slopes present in the basin: The Basin Wide Hydrology model needs to 
account for the response lag timing from rainfall hitting the ground until it enters drainage 
features. For non-urbanized areas of the basin we propose to accomplish this with 2D 
surfaces representing the existing ground surfaces. For Urbanized areas draining to detention 
basins, this is less of an issue, but will be accounted for in Lag times if storm drain 
conveyance times are thought to be significant. 

e. Review RD1000 XPSWMM model to capture data: The CESI Team is unique in that we 
have working experience with the current RD1000 XPSWMM model and have previously 
provided an extensive and detailed review the model for the issues identified in this RFQ. 
Significant data identified in this model will be transferred to the new hydraulic model, such 
as culvert sizes, channel inverts (below ordinary water observed in the CVFED LiDAR), and 
pump stations.   

f. Calibration: A Calibration effort will be provided as 
requested in the RFQ. Since the proposed Basin Wide 
Model is a composite of a Hydrology Model and an 
Unsteady State Hydraulics Model the results are 
coordinated with both efforts. The 2017 event provided 
the basin with nearly a 10-year event rainfall over an 
extended series of storms. This is the best and largest 
storm event of record since the interior level of 
development and improvements have operated in the 
current conditions (roughly 2009 to 2020). There is one 
stream gage in the basin with stage records, for this event, 
and several gages with precipitation records. But 
additional stage records are available at the RD1000 pump 
stations where sump stages were recorded by District 
Staff during the event. District Staff also recorded pump 
operations on/off during the event.  

g. Meet FEMA Requirements: The Basin Wide Modeling will need to be produced to meet 
FEMA requirements. The City/County of Sacramento Standards and methodologies have 
previously been used in many FEMA submittals. With Calibration, these standards will 
provide a good basis for the development of Hydrology for the basin. We note that 
Sacramento County is currently involved in an effort to update the precipitation rates of 
these standards, and documenting and possibly adapting to the findings of that effort will 
assist with the FEMA determinations. 

h. Other Materials: There are a number of other resources which will assist in the preparation 
of the Hydrology Model. For example, RD1000 has a watershed map for the basin, the City 

 

Rain Gage Application for 2017 

calibration event – Natomas Basin 

BOARD PACKET 
Page 104 of 202



Statement of Qualifications for Natomas Basin Hydraulic Model 

Civil Engineering Solutions, Inc. 17 Reclmation District No. 1000 

Draft Grandpark 100-year Current 

Conditions Floodplain 

of Sacramento has a watershed map for the urbanized areas, and there are discrepancies 
between these maps which will need to be resolved as part of this effort. The RD1000 
Facilities Map will also be a very informative and useful tool in this effort. There are a 
number of available GIS layers from RD1000, City of Sacramento, County of Sacramento 
for Land Use and facility identification which will also be utilized in this effort.  

TASK 4: HYDRAULICS 

a. Option to Purchase (#1): An option to purchase the “Current
Conditions Analysis and backup data” of the Grandpark Basin
Wide Hydraulics Model, which includes many of the factors
requested in this RFQ, and is already substantially peer
reviewed by GEI is included as an option to save time and
costs for this project. However, if the terms of that acquisition
are deemed unacceptable, we have also included an optional
effort to redevelop the Basin Wide Hydraulics model from
scratch. (See section on Model Purchase Option for more
information)

b. Unsteady State Combined 1D/2D model: The CESI Team
proposes to prepare the Hydraulics Model using HEC-RAS
(latest version), including 1-dimensional and 2-dimensional
elements in unsteady state. Most of the RD1000 Drainage 
Canal system will be represented in 1D channels with cross 
sections. These 1D elements will be connected to the 2D mesh areas by “lateral weirs” 
representing the highest fround separating them. Storage areas will be utilized at pump 
station sumps, and detention basins within the model Area. Pump stations will be modeled 
using their published pumping rates, and on/off stages documented or observed during 
operations.  

c. Review RD1000 XPSWMM model to capture data: The CESI Team has already performed
extensive review of the RD1000 XPSWMM model, and the TSDN materials from the
previous FEMA submittal, to capture data for this
modeling effort.

d. Calibration : A Calibration effort will be provided as
requested in the RFQ. Since the proposed Basin Wide
Model is a composite of a Hydrology Model and an
Unsteady State Hydraulics Model the results are
coordinated with both efforts. The 2017 event provided the
basin with nearly a 10-year event rainfall over an extended
series of storms. This is the best and largest storm event of
record since the interior level of development and
improvements have operated in the current conditions
(roughly 2009 to 2020). There is one stream gage in the
basin with stage records, for this event, and several gages
with precipitation records. But additional stage records are
available at the RD1000 pump stations where sump stages
were recorded by District Staff during the event. District Proposed 2D Regions 

BOARD PACKET 
Page 105 of 202



Statement of Qualifications for Natomas Basin Hydraulic Model 

Civil Engineering Solutions, Inc. 18 Reclmation District No. 1000 

Staff also recorded pump operations on/off during the event. Our team has already 
prepared a Calibration Analysis for a Natomas Basin Wide Model and are prepared to add 
additional calibration events to that information as requested. 

e. Meet FEMA requirements:  In order to present a model to FEMA to support a mapping
effort, several additional items need to be performed:

f. For a HEC-RAS model, the software cHECkRAS must be executed on the model, and the
model should be corrected for errors and warnings detected, or an explanation needs to be
provided, if correction is not appropriate.

g. As-built Levee Elevations need to be added for any certified levees.

h. Non-accredited embankments: FEMA issued a Guidance document for mapping and
analyzing floodplains for levees and embankments that are not accredited.

i. Floodway Analysis is Required

j. Produce Results for Events: The floodplain modeling and mapping effort will include results
for the following events: 10-(10%), 25-(4%)< 50-(2%), 100-(1%), 200-(0.5%), 500-year
storm (0.2%).

k. HEC-RAS or XP SWMM: As previously indicated, the CESI Team intends to use the
existing RD1000 XPSWMM model as a reference, but will provide all new modeling in
SACCALC for Hydrology and HEC-RAS for Hydraulics.

l. Use Terrain data from CVFED: The RFQ directs
to use CVFED Terrain. Our Team has already
generated CVFED based Terrain for the model
area, modified for improved data from other
sources, such as improving the below water
elevations based on the XP-SWMM model.

m. Incorporate As-built data from District and others:
We expect to incorporate as-built data from others
into the model for the following list and other
items as they are presented:

i. Pump Stations,
ii. Terrain,
iii. Existing facilities such as pipes, etc.
iv. Culverts
v. Bridges
vi. Gates,
vii. Levee Elevations
viii. Erosion Sites
ix. Vegetation

n. In addition, we have included some services for field reconnaissance to photo document and
measure undocumented features for the TSDN documentation

CVFED LiDAR Terrain Rendering 

BOARD PACKET 
Page 106 of 202



Statement of Qualifications for Natomas Basin Hydraulic Model 

Civil Engineering Solutions, Inc. 19 Reclmation District No. 1000 

TASK 5: MAPPING 

There are 25 existing FEMA panels in the Natomas Basin. 
The following are the scales for the current effective 
FIRM panels. 

a. 6 FEMA FIRMs are at 1 inch. = 500 ft
b. 17 FEMA FIRMs are at 1 inch. = 1000 ft
c. 2 FEMA FIRMs are at 1 inch. = 2000 ft

After the hydraulic model scenarios are finalized, the CESI 
Team will prepare work maps to be submitted with the 
hydrologic and hydraulic modeling for peer review. After 
the modeling is approved by the peer review teams, the 
CESI team will develop annotated FIRM Panels per the 
FEMA requirements.  The CESI team will coordinate with 
RD1000 and all stake holders to determine and evaluate to 
confirm flood extents, FEMA zoning (AE, AH, AO) and 
scales for each panel. Potentially there could be a total of 
55 panels if the scale is 1 in = 500 ft. 

TASK 6: TSDN DOCUMENTATION 

The CESI team will collect and provide all relevant supporting data from Task 1 through 5 in a 
Technical Support Data Notebook (TSDN) as requested by FEMA to present and publish the 
flood maps. The CESI Team will coordinate with the FEMA team to provide the large data sets in 
the requested Mapping Information Platform (MIP). 

Current FEMA FIRM Panel 
Locations in Blue 

BOARD PACKET 
Page 107 of 202



Statement of Qualifications for Natomas Basin Hydraulic Model

Civil Engineering Solutions, Inc. 

B. Written Responses to “Minimum Qualifications”
The following is the CESI Team firm qualification to perform the work as described in the RD100 RFQ.

FIRMS QUALIFICATIONS 

CIVIL ENGINEERING SOLUTIONS, INC. (CESI)

CESI is a Civil Engineering consulting firm specializing in the fields of hydrology, hydraulics,
drainage master plans, and floodplain management. The firm was founded in December of 1995
to provide engineering services and software developmen
Business Enterprise. 

CESI focuses on floodplain management practices. The staff has prepared numerous floodplain analysis
studies including bridge analysis. CESI also produces numerous drainage master plans for their
and private clients. For many of their public sector clients, CESI also provides floodplain management
guidance and project review services. CESI has processed numerous FEMA related studies including
CLOMR/LOMR and Physical Map Revision (PMR). CESI
approaches in our work and invests in the training of our staff to maintain working knowledge with the
most state of the art solutions to modern drainage issues.

CESI is also continuously innovating software tools f
2D pre- and post- processors, HEC
processors, velocity and depth animators, drainage system analysis, SWQ Calculators, CAD tools, and 
other miscellaneous utilities. CESI releases most of our common tools into the public domain for the
benefit of the entire engineering community, reserving some tools in
development, giving us a slight competitive advantage. Most recently, CESI updat
PDP software (new version PDP2) and prepared the Dry Creek and Pleasant Grove Toolbox software
packages which are now in use. 

CESI is uniquely qualified to participate in this modeling effort having recently developed Natomas Basin 
Wide H&H Modeling for the Grandpark project in Sacramento County. CESI has already performed
thorough investigations of the available data and built state of the art H&H calibrated models of the
Natomas Basin. CESI’s knowledge gained in this previous experien
ready for FEMA mapping, and the community needs.

GEI CONSULTANTS 

Established in 1970, GEI is a national employee
owned consulting engineering and environmental 
firm with 42 offices throughout North America.
GEI provides engineering, environmental, water

resources, and geotechnical consulting services, and devotes
a major portion of its resources to evaluate and improve
California and U.S. water supplies and flood protection. Our
services are built on the expertise
than 900 employees nationwide, including 240 in California.
GEI has proven experience managing complex water
projects and our decades-long work in our water practice has

Statement of Qualifications for Natomas Basin Hydraulic Model 

20 

Written Responses to “Minimum Qualifications”
Team firm qualification to perform the work as described in the RD100 RFQ.

LUTIONS, INC. (CESI) – THOMAS PLUMMER 

CESI is a Civil Engineering consulting firm specializing in the fields of hydrology, hydraulics,
drainage master plans, and floodplain management. The firm was founded in December of 1995
to provide engineering services and software development. CESI is a California

CESI focuses on floodplain management practices. The staff has prepared numerous floodplain analysis
studies including bridge analysis. CESI also produces numerous drainage master plans for their
and private clients. For many of their public sector clients, CESI also provides floodplain management
guidance and project review services. CESI has processed numerous FEMA related studies including
CLOMR/LOMR and Physical Map Revision (PMR). CESI emphasizes computer modeling and design
approaches in our work and invests in the training of our staff to maintain working knowledge with the
most state of the art solutions to modern drainage issues. 

CESI is also continuously innovating software tools for common engineering solutions, including FLO
processors, HEC-1 pre- and post- processors, and HEC-RAS pre- and post

processors, velocity and depth animators, drainage system analysis, SWQ Calculators, CAD tools, and 
utilities. CESI releases most of our common tools into the public domain for the

benefit of the entire engineering community, reserving some tools in-house which are still in 
development, giving us a slight competitive advantage. Most recently, CESI updated the Placer County
PDP software (new version PDP2) and prepared the Dry Creek and Pleasant Grove Toolbox software

CESI is uniquely qualified to participate in this modeling effort having recently developed Natomas Basin 
e H&H Modeling for the Grandpark project in Sacramento County. CESI has already performed

thorough investigations of the available data and built state of the art H&H calibrated models of the
Natomas Basin. CESI’s knowledge gained in this previous experience will be critical to creating modeling
ready for FEMA mapping, and the community needs. 

Established in 1970, GEI is a national employee-
owned consulting engineering and environmental 
firm with 42 offices throughout North America. 

rovides engineering, environmental, water 
resources, and geotechnical consulting services, and devotes 
a major portion of its resources to evaluate and improve 
California and U.S. water supplies and flood protection. Our 
services are built on the expertise and teamwork of more 
than 900 employees nationwide, including 240 in California. 
GEI has proven experience managing complex water 

long work in our water practice has 

Reclmation District No. 1000 

Written Responses to “Minimum Qualifications”
Team firm qualification to perform the work as described in the RD100 RFQ. 

CESI is a Civil Engineering consulting firm specializing in the fields of hydrology, hydraulics, 
drainage master plans, and floodplain management. The firm was founded in December of 1995 

t. CESI is a California-certified Small 

CESI focuses on floodplain management practices. The staff has prepared numerous floodplain analysis 
studies including bridge analysis. CESI also produces numerous drainage master plans for their public 
and private clients. For many of their public sector clients, CESI also provides floodplain management 
guidance and project review services. CESI has processed numerous FEMA related studies including 

emphasizes computer modeling and design 
approaches in our work and invests in the training of our staff to maintain working knowledge with the 

or common engineering solutions, including FLO-
and post- 

processors, velocity and depth animators, drainage system analysis, SWQ Calculators, CAD tools, and 
utilities. CESI releases most of our common tools into the public domain for the 

house which are still in 
ed the Placer County 

PDP software (new version PDP2) and prepared the Dry Creek and Pleasant Grove Toolbox software 

CESI is uniquely qualified to participate in this modeling effort having recently developed Natomas Basin 
e H&H Modeling for the Grandpark project in Sacramento County. CESI has already performed 

thorough investigations of the available data and built state of the art H&H calibrated models of the 
ce will be critical to creating modeling 

BOARD PACKET 
Page 108 of 202



Statement of Qualifications for Natomas Basin Hydraulic Model 

Civil Engineering Solutions, Inc. 21 Reclmation District No. 1000 

afforded what many clients and regulatory agencies view as unique insight in developing strategic 
approaches leading to cost-effective and reliable projects. 

GEI has worked on hundreds of water resources projects in the West Region for local, state, federal and 
reclamation districts. The GEI projects cover hydrology and hydraulic 1D/2D/3D models, FEMA 
floodplain evaluations, levee and dam inundation mapping for local, state and federal agencies, dams and 
spillways condition assessment and structural evaluations, pipelines, canals, wells, pump stations, water 
quality and habitat enhancement. GEIs staff qualifications includes development of the Sacramento River 
and tributary 850-mile system model using the United States Corps of Engineers Hydrologic and 
Hydraulic programs for DWR. GEI staff have worked for the City of Sacramento Department of 
Utilities and the County of Sacramento Department of Water Resources over the last 20 years preparing 
hydrologic and hydraulic modeling, floodplain maps, project quality control review and Letter of Map 
Revisions (LOMR). 

ENGINEERING AND DESIGN 

Our civil design services support diverse client sectors including state and municipal water agencies; 
electric utilities, developers, industrial and institutional owners, and others. Project types vary, such as 
water conveyance, including dams, and dam related structures, levees, canals, pipelines, pumping stations, 
and wastewater systems. We use proven methods of coordination and collaboration with strict 
management of quality, value, schedule and cost. Our engineering and design services range from 
planning and permitting through preliminary and detailed design to construction and commissioning. 

WATER RESOURCES 

GEI’s engineers and scientists are highly experienced in all aspects of water resources planning to address 
urban, agricultural and environmental water supply needs, and our expertise is unsurpassed in planning 
for flood protection. We have conducted hundreds of feasibility studies for water supply projects, and 
developed numerous integrated regional water management plans, agriculture and urban water 
management plans, groundwater sustainability plans, water quality evaluations, and flood risk 
assessments. Our staff bring not only advanced skills in surface and groundwater modeling and other 
technical skills, but also the capacity to lead stakeholders to develop collaborative approaches to multi-
benefit projects. 

HYDRAULICS AND HYDROLOGY 

GEI’s engineers are very experienced with up-to-date water resources planning and analysis techniques as 
applied to urban (and urbanizing) watersheds, natural rivers and channels, man-altered stream and 
channels, low-impact development, and water quality. We routinely use HEC-HMS, SWMM, and the 
NRCS watershed models for surface water hydrology and HEC-RAS 1D/2D, FLO-3D (CFD), XP-
SWMM and EPA-SWMM for hydraulic analysis. 

GEI’s experience includes, hydrologic analysis, hydraulic modeling of various sizes of stormwater 
drainage facilities that include detention ponds, multi-span bridges, box culverts, storm drain systems, 
Low Impact Development (LID), Water Quality (WQ) and hydraulics and hydrology (H&H) study and 
modeling. We are sensitive to the concerns of property owners in urban areas and provide creative 
solutions to infrastructure issues in both urban and rural areas. We also provide flood inundation 
mapping, erosion control, detention basin design, scour design, construction plan production, technical 
reports, design or specifications, and construction cost estimates. 

BOARD PACKET 
Page 109 of 202



Statement of Qualifications for Natomas Basin Hydraulic Model

Civil Engineering Solutions, Inc. 

We utilize ArcGIS functions such as ArcHYDRO and ArcGEO
prepare CLOMR/LOMR using GIS FEMA data base layers. We hydraulically analyze and design our
systems using FHWA HY-8 for culverts, GEOPAK DRAINAGE for pipe systems, HEC
bridge class crossings and stream modeling and EPA SWMM for LID and WQ evaluation

ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES

Today’s environmental regulations are complex and ever
expert assistance to navigate through the labyrinth of regulatory compliance requirements. GEI has the
qualified staff and expertise to help your project get permitted and built to specifications while staying on 
budget and schedule. Environmental services offered by GEI include C
Act/National Environmental Policy Act (CEQA/N
resources and monitoring, environmental permitting, ecological restoration, water quality/hydrology, air
quality/noise/climate change, environmental management and policy, and visual simulations and 3D
modeling. 

RFE ENGINEERING, INC

RFE is a Civil Engineering, Planning and Surveying firm serving primarily
Northern California since 2003, with a convenient, centrally located office
in Roseville, California.

Arizona, Oregon, and Connecticut. The firm has over 100 years of combined experience of key
personnel prepared to deliver a professional, accurate and superior quality product on a timely basis and 
within an established budget. RFE’s
closely to ensure you have all the necessary tools to successfully transform your project from concept to 
reality. RFE provides Land Surveying services to commercial, residential and municipal clients through 
the Land Surveying Services Division.
McKinney P.L.S. With over 43 years of industry experience,
land surveying and has been licensed in California since 1979.
data collection technology to serve

C. Personnel Qualifications
The greatest factor for success of any project is the experience, commitment, and communication skills
of the project management team. Recognizing this,
possesses great knowledge of the 
Sacramento, Sutter County, Sacramento County, FEMA,
USACE. Most importantly, The CESI T
agencies with significant roles in evaluating flood
Ferrari are a hands-on project manager
project and will be attending all meetings and communicating with the
Manager.. the CESI Team is committed and will be available through the proje

Statement of Qualifications for Natomas Basin Hydraulic Model 

22 

We utilize ArcGIS functions such as ArcHYDRO and ArcGEO-RAS to expedite H&H modeling and
repare CLOMR/LOMR using GIS FEMA data base layers. We hydraulically analyze and design our

8 for culverts, GEOPAK DRAINAGE for pipe systems, HEC
bridge class crossings and stream modeling and EPA SWMM for LID and WQ evaluation

ES 

Today’s environmental regulations are complex and ever-changing. Project owners and operators need 
expert assistance to navigate through the labyrinth of regulatory compliance requirements. GEI has the

e to help your project get permitted and built to specifications while staying on 
budget and schedule. Environmental services offered by GEI include California Environmental Quality

ational Environmental Policy Act (CEQA/NEPA) compliance, cultural resources, biological 
resources and monitoring, environmental permitting, ecological restoration, water quality/hydrology, air
quality/noise/climate change, environmental management and policy, and visual simulations and 3D

RFE ENGINEERING, INC. (RFE) – SURVEY SUPPORT

RFE is a Civil Engineering, Planning and Surveying firm serving primarily
Northern California since 2003, with a convenient, centrally located office
in Roseville, California. RFE is currently licensed in California, Nevada,

regon, and Connecticut. The firm has over 100 years of combined experience of key
personnel prepared to deliver a professional, accurate and superior quality product on a timely basis and 
within an established budget. RFE’s Civil Engineering Division and Survey Division work together
closely to ensure you have all the necessary tools to successfully transform your project from concept to 
reality. RFE provides Land Surveying services to commercial, residential and municipal clients through 

Services Division. RFE’s Land Surveying Division is led by surveyor William F.
S. With over 43 years of industry experience, he has extensive knowledge in the area of

land surveying and has been licensed in California since 1979. Their survey field crews utilize modern 
data collection technology to serve their clients with a high level of accuracy and efficiency.

Personnel Qualifications
The greatest factor for success of any project is the experience, commitment, and communication skills

he project management team. Recognizing this, CESI has assembled an exceptional project team that
possesses great knowledge of the Natomas Basin drainage and has relationships with the City of

Sutter County, Sacramento County, FEMA, State of California, DWR, CVFPB,
The CESI Team already has a strong working relationship with 

with significant roles in evaluating flood conditions in the Natomas Basin. Mr. Plummer and 
project managers who will be responsible for the day-to-day management of this

project and will be attending all meetings and communicating with the Stakeholder Team and District
is committed and will be available through the project completion.

Reclmation District No. 1000 

RAS to expedite H&H modeling and 
repare CLOMR/LOMR using GIS FEMA data base layers. We hydraulically analyze and design our 

8 for culverts, GEOPAK DRAINAGE for pipe systems, HEC-RAS for 
bridge class crossings and stream modeling and EPA SWMM for LID and WQ evaluations. 

changing. Project owners and operators need 
expert assistance to navigate through the labyrinth of regulatory compliance requirements. GEI has the 

e to help your project get permitted and built to specifications while staying on 
alifornia Environmental Quality 

ources, biological 
resources and monitoring, environmental permitting, ecological restoration, water quality/hydrology, air 
quality/noise/climate change, environmental management and policy, and visual simulations and 3D 

SURVEY SUPPORT 

RFE is a Civil Engineering, Planning and Surveying firm serving primarily 
Northern California since 2003, with a convenient, centrally located office 

RFE is currently licensed in California, Nevada, 
regon, and Connecticut. The firm has over 100 years of combined experience of key 

personnel prepared to deliver a professional, accurate and superior quality product on a timely basis and 
urvey Division work together 

closely to ensure you have all the necessary tools to successfully transform your project from concept to 
reality. RFE provides Land Surveying services to commercial, residential and municipal clients through 

Land Surveying Division is led by surveyor William F. 
has extensive knowledge in the area of 

field crews utilize modern 
clients with a high level of accuracy and efficiency. 

The greatest factor for success of any project is the experience, commitment, and communication skills 
has assembled an exceptional project team that 

the City of 
lifornia, DWR, CVFPB, and the 

eam already has a strong working relationship with all of these 
Mr. Plummer and Mr. 

day management of this 
Stakeholder Team and District 

ct completion. 

BOARD PACKET 
Page 110 of 202



Statement of Qualifications for Natomas Basin Hydraulic Model 

Civil Engineering Solutions, Inc. 23 Reclmation District No. 1000 

CESI PROJECT TEAM 

All the team members shown in our Organization Chart (Figure 1) will be committed to supporting the 
RD1000 through the duration of the contract. Mr. Plummer and Mr. Ferrari are committed to begin 
work immediately with RD1000’s project manager upon the Notice to Proceed. The CESI Team 
anticipates six main staff to participate in the development of the proposed to update the Natomas Basin 
LOMR 

FIGURE 1. PROJECT TEAM ORGANIZATION 

KEY TEAM MEMBER QUALIFICATIONS 

The following are description of the anticipated roles for our key team members, and we have included 
detailed resumes for each team member shown in our Organization Chart in the Appendix A.  

TOM PLUMMER, P.E., C.F.M. – PROJECT DIRECTOR - HYDROLOGIC AND 

HYDRAULIC MODELING AND ANALYSIS  

B.S., Civil Engineering; Professional Engineer, CA No. 49582; Certified Floodplain 

Manager No. ASFPM US-05-01493 

Mr. Plummer founded CESI in December of 1995 to provide engineering services and to produce 
engineering software. His main field of expertise is hydraulics, hydrology and computer applications in 
civil engineering. Under his direct supervision Civil Solutions has already released several software 
packages which perform hydraulic calculations, backwater calculations, roadway design, and earthwork 
analysis. Mr. Plummer also has extensive experience in the preparation of engineering studies for public 
facilities. Those experiences included roadway improvements and highway design, floodplain analysis and 
mapping, levee and dam breach analysis, drainage studies (including HEC-1, HEC-HMS, EPA-SWMM, 
XP-SWMM (2D), PC-SWMM, SMS, WMS, TR-55, HEC-2, HEC-RAS, HEC-RAS2D, FLO-2D, 
TUFLOW and CS DRAINAGE STUDIO software models), water transmission, and irrigation pipeline 

BOARD PACKET 
Page 111 of 202



Statement of Qualifications for Natomas Basin Hydraulic Model 

Civil Engineering Solutions, Inc. 24 Reclmation District No. 1000 

replacement. He has also processed a number of small and large scale project (Conditional) “Letters of 
Map Revision” and “Physical Map Revision” applications with FEMA.  

CHRIS FERRARI, P.E., C.F.M. – PROJECT MANAGER 

Education/Registration: BS, Civil Engineering; Professional Engineer, CA No. 

53226; Certified Floodplain Manager, No. US-14-07917  

Mr. Ferrari has 32 years of comprehensive civil engineering experience in both the public and 
private sectors. During his 27 years in the private sector, he has developed, evaluated, and provided 
quality control on several water resource projects for city, county, and flood control agencies; California 
Delta Reclamation Districts; the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, Sacramento District (USACE); FEMA; 
and DWR. Mr. Ferrari’s range of expertise includes development of the Sacramento and San Joaquin 
system hydraulic models for DWR, Levee Failure Flood Evacuation Mapping for the City and County of 
Sacramento, and Flood Insurance Mapping reports for FEMA. He has been recognized by the 
Consulting Engineers and Land Surveyors of California (CELSOC) and the American Public Works 
Association (APWA) for the City/County of Sacramento Emergency Rescue and Evacuation mapping 
project in 2006.  

Mr. Ferrari’s expertise in various software applications has been used to provide watershed analysis and 
evaluations to delineate floodplains, provide channel and pump designs, bridges and culvert evaluations 
including scour, and design of underground drainage systems for several master plan developments in the 
Central Valley region. His expertise in various software applications include: HEC-1, HEC-HMS, HEC-2, 
HEC-RAS, FLOW3D, XPSWMM, AutoCAD, ArcView and Haestad computer applications.  

MARK FORTNER, P.E. – PEER REVIEW 

Education/Registration: BS, Civil Engineering; Professional Engineer, CA No. 

48266; Professional Land Surveyor, CA No. 7342 

Mr. Fortner will provide quality control for this project. He has provided engineering design 
support for Dam Safety projects, Flood Emergency for the State DWR, and Sacramento County. He is 
currently providing consulting services for the Suisun Marsh, South Sutter Water District, and Bethel 
Island Municipal Improvement District in Contra Costa County. His knowledge will play a key role in 
quality control, funding, and assisting on Operation and Maintenance issues. 

Mr. Fortner has 30 years of experience and his primary expertise is in the area of drainage systems, flood 
control, flood insurance studies, flood protection planning, and regulatory permitting (USACE Section 
404 and Section 10, Reclamation Board, Reclamation Districts, County Use Permits, Regional Water 
Quality Boards [Waste Discharge Requirements], and U.S. Department of Fish and Game Streambed 
Alternation Permits).  

Specific work includes hydrologic and hydraulic modeling, design and preparation of master plans and 
applications for reclamation districts, water districts, levees, and infrastructure works. He has conducted 
hydraulic analyses of rivers and streams for a variety of projects involving adjacent habitat impacts, 
jurisdictional waters, evaluation of historic gage data, calibration, and monitoring water levels for flood 
operations. Responsibilities include representing clients at various agency or organizational meetings, and 
coordinating environmental issues and environmental documents. 

BOARD PACKET 
Page 112 of 202



Statement of Qualifications for Natomas Basin Hydraulic Model 

Civil Engineering Solutions, Inc. 25 Reclmation District No. 1000 

YI SHEN, PH.D., TX. P.E. – HYDROLOGIC AND HYDRAULIC MODELING AND 

ANALYSIS  

EDUCATION/REGISTRATION: PH.D., WATER RESOURCES ENGINEERING; B.S., 

HYDRAULIC AND HYDROPOWER CONSTRUCTION ENGINEERING, P.E., TX NO. 

101271 

Dr. Shen is a Water Resources Engineer with 14 years of experience. He has managed multiple 
projects for federal, private, city, county, and state clients. He has multiple responsibilities, including 
business development, project management, and training junior staff. 

MICHAEL PANTELL, P.E., C.F.M. – HYDROLOGIC AND HYDRAULIC MODELING 

AND ANALYSIS 

Education/Registration: M.S., Civil Engineering, B.S., Geology; Professional 

Engineer, CA. No. 89649, Certified Floodplain Manager 

Mr. Pantell is a civil engineer in GEI’s Sacramento office. He is experienced in project management, 
hydraulic and hydrological modeling, economic and life risk analyses, levee accreditation, feasibility study 
analyses, storm drain network analyses, and levee design. In previous positions he has coordinated and 
directed meetings regarding various flood control related issues with Federal, State, and local stakeholders 
including USACE, DWR, San Joaquin Area Flood Control, Sutter Butte Flood Control Agency, and 
county governments. He has managed and guided staff engineers in completing a wide variety hydraulic, 
hydrologic, and life risk analysis related tasks. He has experience developing storm drain models using 
United States Environmental Protection Agency Stormwater Management Model, FLO2D, and HEC 
RAS to determine existing infrastructure capacity, map residual flooding, and determine infrastructure 
improvements needed. He has developed HEC HMS models for determining various frequency rainfall 
events. He has a strong technical understanding of modern hydrologic methods including the CVHS and 
the 2017 CVFPP climate change analysis. 

JENNIFER BUCHANAN, G.I.S.P., ENV SP – HYDROLOGIC AND HYDRAULIC 

MODELING AND ANALYSIS  

Education/Registration: BS, Mechanical Engineering; GISP No. 62663; Certified 

ENV SP 

Ms. Buchanan is a Certified Geographic Information Systems Professional (GISP) and received a GIS 
Certificate of Achievement. She has over 20 years of years of experience as a Water Resources Engineer 
and GIS Specialist. Ms. Buchanan specializes in stormwater and water quality, integrating GIS and CAD 
data with various Hydrologic and Hydraulic modeling software, creating floodplains, profiles, base flood 
elevations, land use and roughness assumptions, documentation, deliverables, automation, and a wide 
variety of maps and data. 

Her experience includes development of hydrology and planning studies, hydrologic and hydraulic 
modeling, detention routing, environmental compliance, scour assessments, and FEMA CLOMR/LOMR 
Preparation. Key projects and demonstrations have been related to water supply/distribution, water 
resources flood control systems and facilities, dam inundation, levee certification, flood risk analysis, 
flood impact analysis, low impact development, mitigation, drainage studies, and emergency 
preparedness.  

BOARD PACKET 
Page 113 of 202



Statement of Qualifications for Natomas Basin Hydraulic Model 

Civil Engineering Solutions, Inc. 26 Reclmation District No. 1000 

Her knowledge includes, but is not limited to, the following: ArcGIS, Cartography, Spatial Analysis, 
Spatial Databases, Geoprocessing, Georeferencing, Geocoding, Queries, Floodplain Delineation, 
Hydrologic and Hydraulic Modeling, Plan and Profiles, Model Builder, Python, Visual Basic, SQL Server, 
3D Analyst, Spatial Analyst, Creating Surfaces, DFIRMs, Remote Sensing, Data Acquisition, LP 360, 
Metadata, HEC-RAS 1D/2D, HEC-GeoRAS, HEC-HMS, PC-SWSMM 2D, XP-SWMM, EPA SWMM, 
RASPLOT, MIKE FLOOD, FLO-2D, FLOW-3D, SMS, Global Mapper, Microsoft Office (Word, 
EXCEL, ACCESS, PowerPoint), LiDAR, Problem Solving, Code Compliance, Presentations, 
Troubleshooting, Training, Research, Data Management, Permitting, Documentation, AutoCAD, Civil 
3D, BricsCAD, Rhino, Calculations, Deliverables, and Animations. 

D. List of Clients and References
The CESI Team client references are summarized here from the detailed descriptions provided in the 
Forms at the beginning of this document. We encourage you to contact the clients about the quality of 
our performance.  

Civil Engineering Solutions, Inc. 

Reference and Contact 
Information 

Project Name Representative Picture 

Placer County Flood Control and 
Water Conservation District 
Brad Brewer 
530 745 7592 
bbrewer@placer.ca.gov 
3091 County Center Drive, Suite 
220 
Auburn CA 95603 

 Dry Creek
Watershed Update
Plan

 CTP 1 PMR

 CTP 3 PMR

City of Lincoln 
Ray Leftwich 
916 434 2456 
Ray.leftwich@lincolnca.gov 
600 Sixth Street 
Lincoln, CA 95648 

 Unofficial City
Hydrologist

 Plan Check various
projects

 South Lincoln
LOMR

 E Street Trunk
Grandpark Ownership Group 
Steve Letterly 
949 422 2860 
sletterly@letterlymgmt.com 
1278 Glenneyre Street #130 
Laguna Beach, CA 92651-3103 

 Grandpark
Natomas Basin
Wide Hydrology
and Hydraulics
Model (included
here because of
Option #1 plan)

BOARD PACKET 
Page 114 of 202



Statement of Qualifications for Natomas Basin Hydraulic Model 
 

Civil Engineering Solutions, Inc. 27 Reclmation District No. 1000 

GEI Consultants, Inc. 

Reference and Contact Information Project Name Picture 
City of Sacramento Department of 
Utilities 
Connie Perkins (now with CVFPB) 
916 480 5386 
Constance.perkinsgutowsky@cvflood.ca.
gov 
3310 El Camino Avenue, Suite 170 
Sacramento, CA 95821 

 200-yr 
floodplain 
evaluation 

 
City of Sacramento, Depart of Utilities 
Rosa Millino, Associate Project Engineer 
916 808 1451 
rmillino@cityofsacramento.org 
1395 35th Avenue 
Sacramento, CA 95822 

 Secondary 
Levee 
Evaluation 

 
County of Sacramento, Department of 
Water Resources 
Michael Johnson, Senior Civil Engineer 
916 874 8646 
johnsonm@saccounty.net 
827 7th Street, Suite 301 
Sacramento, CA 95814 
 

 Third party 
Project Peer 
Reviews. 
(Includes 
Peer Review 
of 
Grandpark 
Model) 

 

 

  

BOARD PACKET 
Page 115 of 202



Statement of Qualifications for Natomas Basin Hydraulic Model 

Civil Engineering Solutions, Inc. 28 Reclmation District No. 1000 

E. Availability
The CESI Team has availability to begin work on September 21, 2020 as requested in the RFQ.
As discussed in 3a, the CESI team is in the position to purchase the existing condition hydrologic
and hydraulic model for the Natomas Basin prepared by the Grandpark project. Therefore, two
schedules are provided for review in the SCHEDULE section of this proposal. The advantage of
purchasing the models from the Grandpark project is to accelerate the schedule and reduce the
overall cost. If purchasing the models are not an acceptable option, the CESI team also included a
schedule which will start the hydrologic and hydraulic models from scratch.  For either option,
the CESI team will be able to complete the tasks as discussed in the scope of services.

The timing of this RFQ could not be better as CESI is nearly complete with its work on the
Grandpark project, with only a few Technical Memorandums for cumulative conditions analysis
remaining to be prepared. The CESI Team is ready to start on this effort.

GRANDPARK NATOMAS BASIN WIDE H&H MODELING AND DOCUMENTATION

OPTION:

The CESI Team believes it would be both a cost savings and schedule savings to execute the
included agreement (Appendix B) with the Grandpark owners to acquire all rights to their
“Current Conditions” (pre-project) Hydrology and Hydraulics modeling. We believe the total cost
savings to be $58,000 and the schedule savings would be approximately 3 to 4 months.

When this RFQ was posted, CESI approached the Grandpark ownership group about the
availability of the model. We had heard that they had been negotiating with various entities about
the purchase of certain rights to the modeling.

The Grandpark owners have invested significant dollars into the development of the modeling.
Their thoughts are that if some portion is to be used for the public benefit on other works, they
should receive some compensation.

We approached this negotiation with the understanding that they would be relinquishing all rights
to the “Current Conditions” H&H modeling, mapping and background data such that it would
transfer to the public agencies and public domain. We pointed out they could retain their rights to
their project and other modeling efforts and recover those costs via their project fee program at a
later date. The Grandpark Ownership Group has agreed to release to CESI exclusively, their
rights to the Current Conditions Hydrology and Hydraulics Modeling for a fee of $100,000. They
have already signed the agreement, and it is waiting for CESI’s signatures and a check to be
finalized.

Once executed, CESI would immediately transmit the current draft of the data to RD1000 and
the other stakeholders, a full working copy of the models and current related documentation for
review. CESI could also provide results information to the City’s consultant for their work to
proceed. Once executed all parties would consider the model “in the public domain” or the
property of RD1000 and the City however, you desire it.

The model would still need work to be ready for FEMA technical review as we have indicated in
our work plan, however, execution of this clause will bypass all of the initial model building items
of work.

BOARD PACKET 
Page 116 of 202



Statement of Qualifications for Natomas Basin Hydraulic Model 

Civil Engineering Solutions, Inc. 29 Reclmation District No. 1000 

If the purchase is deemed to not be desired by RD1000 and the Stakeholders, and any remaining 
issues cannot be resolved, CESI has included the option to perform the full scope from scratch. 

F. CESI Team Workplan

The CESI team will provide a detailed work plan that will follow the scope of services and 
schedule provide in this RFQ. The workplan will include the detailed workflow: 

1. Project Management:

a. Management of Task Assignments:  The CESI Team Project Director will manage
Task Assignments to staff and sub-consultants.

i. Schedule Management:  The CESI Team Project Manager will manage the
project schedule, verifying work progress, making updates and providing
those updates to stakeholders as the project proceeds.

ii. Budget Management:  The CESI Team Project Director will manage the
item by item project budget providing monthly billings and updates to the
client.

iii. Client Management: The CESI Team Project Director and Project
Manager will coordinate directly with the District Director, District Staff,
and Stakeholders on the project progress, and deliverables.

b. Coordination Meetings, Agendas, Meeting Notes:  The CESI Team will prepare
meeting agendas, Attend meetings with appropriate personnel, take meeting notes
and provide them to attendees in post meeting correspondence..

i. FEMA Coordination:  A coordination meeting with the FEMA Region IX
Engineer is recommended early in this process to review:

1. How frequently he/she desires to be updated on the progress.  If
they desire progress review prior to the official submittal.

2. Submittal Process : Methods of providing FEMA modeling and
documentation

3. LAMP/non-accredited levee like features

4. Terrain Modification Items

5. Floodway Analysis: Unsteady state based modeling and agree to
limits of Floodway Analysis

6. Sankey Spill Mapping Methodology.

7. 2-D Domain Floodplain and Floodway  items

8. Other procedural issues

ii. Coordination with Client and Stakeholders: RD-1000, City of Sacramento,
County of Sacramento, County of Sutter, SAFCA:  It is noted that review
of deliverables will be performed by the City of Sacramento MT-2 staff and

BOARD PACKET 
Page 117 of 202



Statement of Qualifications for Natomas Basin Hydraulic Model 

Civil Engineering Solutions, Inc. 30 Reclmation District No. 1000 

stakeholders.  We also note that coordination with SAFCA  and SAFCA’s 
consultant will be necessary on determining the Sankey Spill rates for each 
event, and documenting that critical issue. 

iii. Coordination with Internal Levee Certification Stakeholders: City of
Sacramento, County of Sacramento and their consultants.  Certification of
the internal levees will be a critical component to the FEMA Mapping
update.  Initially, the CESI Team needs to provide FEMA basis 100-year
flood elevations along these levee systems for certification analysis
purposes.  Later in the project, the CESI Team will need to incorporate
Top of Levee information into the Hydraulic Modeling and Flood Profiles.

2. Data Collection:

a. Review of Data already collected:  The CESI Team will assemble, review and
catalogue all data already collected and subsequently provided as we work through
this project, for inclusion in project documentation and the TSDN.  The CESI
Team has already obtained the previous TSDN, City Pump information, RD-1000
Facility information, 2017 Rain gage and pump operations information, CVFED
LiDAR, RD-1000 XP SWMM Model, Terrain runoff directions, culvert
information,

b. Identification of Data Gaps:  Based on FEMA requirements for data to support
LOMR applications, the CESI Team will identify undocumented facilities, and items
which require additional documentation.  Some known data needs are listed:

i. We expect some culverts and bridges will require additional data to meet
FEMA data requirements.

ii. Top of Levee information still needs to be obtained per the current
conditions.

iii. Levee Certification information would be provided by stakeholders at a
future date.

iv. SAFCA:  What will be the final condition of the Sankey Gap?  Will the
Sankey spill modeling have additional revisions and require additional
documentation.

c. Research for Data:  The CESI Team will research for as-built information for the
missing data with Stakeholders and other entities.  For example records searches
may be needed with Caltrans for Highway Culverts, the Airport for Airport
Improvements, or local agencies for development improvements.  SAFCA is also
performing improvements which may be present on recent aerial images but that
were not built at the time the CVFED LiDAR was flown.

d. Identification of Field Reconnaissance Needs: Remaining Data Gaps will be referred
for Field Reconnaissance surveys after all available data is obtained.

3. Field Reconnaissance Surveys: A combination of Engineer Inspections and Land Surveyor
Reconnaissance efforts will be employed to obtain remaining missing documentation of

BOARD PACKET 
Page 118 of 202



Statement of Qualifications for Natomas Basin Hydraulic Model 
 

Civil Engineering Solutions, Inc. 31 Reclmation District No. 1000 

existing facilities, depending on the type of information that is missing.  If we need to obtain 
measurements and photographs, an engineer will be sent to obtain that type of information.  
If precise elevation or location information is needed, RFE Engineering will obtain that 
information. 

4. Hydrologic Model Development and Review 

a. Initial Hydrology Model Build 

i. GP Option:  An option is offered to obtain data for the “Current 
Conditions” Grandpark Basin Wide Hydrology Model and background data 
for a fee.  This option will save both budget and schedule time, providing 
nearly all of the Initial Build efforts up front.  Alternatively the CESI Team 
has provided a second option to rebuild the Hydrology Model from scratch. 

ii. Watershed Maps:  Watershed Maps have been obtained from multiple 
sources, which are in conflict with each other for boundaries.  These 
conflicts need to be resolved.  Additionally some refinement of watersheds 
are needed based on terrain information, and in some areas additional detail 
will be added.  GIS shapefiles will be developed for the final watershed 
maps. 

iii. Land Use:  GIS based Land use information is available from multiple 
sources.  There is conflicting information which needs to be resolved by 
comparison to aerial photos.  The GEI Team proposes to use County 
based Land Use Codes (1-18) to identify land use for each land use area.  
We will add a 19th code for Canals, so that the land use file can also be used 
to identify n-values in the hydraulic models.  The Land use information is 
intersected with the watershed maps and soils information to provide the 
input factors for SACCALC. 

iv. Soils Infiltration Factors: GIS based Hydrologic Soils Group data will be 
obtained for the Hydrologic Model area.  This data is believed to be suitable 
for use in the 10-year event and smaller storms.  For large storm events like 
the 100-year and larger, final soils infiltration rates will be determined by 
performing a separate analysis of the rates used in the RD-1000 XPSWMM 
model which showed best volumetric calibration when calibrating to large 
events like the 1986 storm, 1995 storm and 1997 storm events.  It is 
believed that the clay soils found in the district will saturate and accept 
substantially less water in large storm events.  It is also believed that 
high/perched groundwater has been witnessed to exfiltrate onto ground 
surfaces and runoff into the interior basin drainage facilities during large 
events. The final infiltration rates will be specified in SACCALC using an 
override attribute SACCALC allows to be set which overrides the factors 
developed based on soils and land use.. 

v. SACCALC Model:   The Land Use GIS information is intersected with the 
watershed GIS  and soils GIS to provide the input factors for the 
SACCALC hydrology software.  The SACCALC software applies preset 

BOARD PACKET 
Page 119 of 202



Statement of Qualifications for Natomas Basin Hydraulic Model 

Civil Engineering Solutions, Inc. 32 Reclmation District No. 1000 

precipitation to the watershed factors and develops HEC-1 modeling, 
executes the HEC-1 modeling and produces DSS files which will provide 
the input flows for the Hydraulic Models directly. 

vi. Peer Review & Improvements:  The Hydrology Model Initial Build will be
reviewed by CESI Team members and comments will be made and
addressed by our project team.

b. Final Hydrology Model Build

i. Review by Stakeholders:  The products of the Initial Build task will be
provided to the Project Stakeholder Review Staff for their review.

ii. Revisions Following Review:  Comments from Stakeholder Reviews will be
addressed and incorporated into a final Hydrology Model.

5. Hydraulic Model Development and Review

a. Initial Hydraulics Model Build

i. GP Option: An option is offered to obtain data for the “Current
Conditions” Grandpark Basin Wide Hydraulics Model and background data
for a fee.  This option will save both budget and schedule time, providing
nearly all of the Initial Build efforts up front.  Alternatively The CESI Team
has provided a second option to rebuild the Hydraulics Model from scratch.

ii. Terrains:  A base Terrain will be developed for a 2 foot horizontal point
spacing NAVD 88 vertical datum.  The initial terrain will be developed
from the CVFED LiDAR “Bare Earth” data.  The Terrain will include a
number of improvements for:

1. Below water THALWEG information (Including canals and
existing detention basins per As-built plans)

2. Cuts through non-accredited features for spillage (this will emulate
features such as rice check gates without needing to input the gate
information and increasing probabilities of instabilities in the
model.

3. Freeway Interchange As-built information at Elverta Road.

4. Other existing Terrain modifications since 2010 when the CVFED
LiDAR was flown.

iii. 1-Dimension Model Components: The Hydraulics model will include both
1D and 2D components and will be performed in the latest(stable) edition
of HEC-RAS   The below lists the types of 1D features that will be
documented in this effort and input into the model.

1. Streams: Stream lines will be drawn for the 1D Streams

2. Junctions: Junction elements will connect the 1D stream lines.

BOARD PACKET 
Page 120 of 202



Statement of Qualifications for Natomas Basin Hydraulic Model 

Civil Engineering Solutions, Inc. 33 Reclmation District No. 1000 

3. Cross Sections: Cross Sections will be added to the 1D model at a
suitable spacing for the details of each reach and area of the model.

4. Inline Structures:  Inline Structures such as Bridges and Culverts
will be input based on As-built information, aerial imagery, and
terrain information.

5. Storage Areas:  Storage areas will be used at all pump station
locations to represent the detention areas or sumps of the pump
stations. Additionally storage areas will be used to connect
upstream limits of 1D streams to other features.  Storage areas will
use the terrain to develop their storage v. elevation information.  In
some cases additional as-built data may be used to include
subsurface storage areas such as at pump sumps.

6. Pump Stations:  Many pump stations exist within and at the
boundaries of the Natomas Basin.  Some are used to pump runoff
from development areas into the internal RD-1000 system of
channels.  Others are used to pump flood waters from the RD-
1000 Channels into the surrounding rivers.  The CESI Team will
use as-built and agency provided operations information to input
pump rates and stage on/off elevations into the model.

7. Lateral Weirs:  Lateral Weirs are used to connect 1D features to 2D
features where the 2D feature runs along the edge of the bank of
the 1D stream.  The laterals weirs will be defined at the high
ground between the 1D and 2D items.  The elevations will be
obtained from the terrain data.  Side channel cut elevation
information will be obtained from the terrain information.
Culverts through lateral weirs will be modeled, per the existing
culvert information if possible, however, in some cases culverts will
generate an instability, in these cases the culvert will be modeled as
a side channel cut. Lateral Weir Coefficients will be determined
based on State Guidance developed during the CVFED modeling
effort.  Values range from 0.1 to 2.0.  In some cases a properly
selected lateral weir coefficient will be unstable in the model, and
need to be reduced in order to become stable.

iv. 2-Dimension Model Components: The Hydraulics model will include both
1D and 2D components and will be performed in the latest(stable) edition
of HEC-RAS   The below lists the types of 2D features that will be
documented in this effort and input into the model.

1. 2D Mesh(s) Domains:  A 2D domain will include an internal mesh
of elements.  For this effort, some mesh elements may be as large
as 400 feet by 400 feet, and as small as 10 feet by 10 feet.  The size
and location of the elements created is controlled by the
Refinement Breaklines and Regions.

BOARD PACKET 
Page 121 of 202



Statement of Qualifications for Natomas Basin Hydraulic Model 
 

Civil Engineering Solutions, Inc. 34 Reclmation District No. 1000 

a. 2D Mesh Domain Boundaries:  A 2D Domain Boundary is 
defined in the Hydraulic Model for each 2D Domain.  
This model will include multiple domains separated by 
terrain features such as the District Channel system.  
Default mesh element sizes and factors are set for each 
domain. 

b. 2D Mesh(s) Refinement Breaklines and Regions:  Within 
each 2D domain, mesh refinement breakines and regions 
are defined to for mesh element size and alignment to 
match ground features and model needs.. 

2. 2D Connections:  2D areas that are connected to each other 
require 2D connections, essentially a lateral weir along their 
common boundary.  These are developed with culvert and channel 
cuts similar to the lateral weir methodology previously described. 

3. 1D connections to 2D Mesh(s):  Some of the 2D Domains will 
connect to the 1D systems.  As previously mentioned lateral weirs 
will perform these connections along the channel edges.  However, 
there can also be direct connections at upstream or downstream 
limits of the 1D channels which require special care.  These 
connections can be unstable, and sometimes require other features 
such as a “dummy” weir to be defined to help stabilize the model. 

4. 2D Mesh N-Values:  As previously mentioned, the 2D-Mesh N 
values will be obtained from the Land Use shape file.  Higher and 
lower values will also be tested in the Calibration analysis to 
determine the best calibrated values to use for the system. 

5. Culverts/Bridges:  In some cases, Bridges or Culverts may need to 
be directly input into the interior of a 2D Domain. 

v. Internal/External Boundary Conditions: Boundary conditions are input to 
provide the inflows from the hydrology model, and to set downstream 
water surface elevations. 

1. Locations for Boundary Conditions Applications:  Based on the 
hydrology model, locations for internal boundary conditions will be 
identified.  Some locations will occur within a 2D domain, at the 
edge of a 2D domain (Sankey  Gap for example) or within a 1D 
channel.  Where connecting to a 2D domain a Boundary condition 
line is developed.  For this project and in general these need to be 
developed to distribute inflows across different field areas so that 
the timing of the runoff will be appropriate in the calibration 
analysis. 

2. Apply Hydrology to Model:  References to the Hydrology data 
contained in the DSS files are input in the “Unsteady Flow Data” 
editor.  Additionally initial flow conditions at the start of the model 

BOARD PACKET 
Page 122 of 202



Statement of Qualifications for Natomas Basin Hydraulic Model 

Civil Engineering Solutions, Inc. 35 Reclmation District No. 1000 

are set, such as detention basin starting water surface elevations, 
and starting inflows.  In some cases minimum flows are also set at 
inflow locations to set a minimum flow rate at that location so that 
the model won’t go unstable in low flow conditions.  Because the 
volumetric calibration of this model is important, the use of 
minimum contributing flows will be minimized.   

vi. Debug:  Debugging the model to resolve instabilities and runtime warnings
is a large effort process. Especially for this model which provides a high
level of detail across the 83 square mile Natomas Basin.  There are a lot of
elements in the model, and HEC-RAS can develop instabilities from
numerous input issues.  Debugging the model is an iterative process, where
resolution of one stability can result in another.  This model is expected to
require 4-6 hours to compute on the fastest computer systems available
currently.

b. Final Hydraulics Model Build for FEMA Compliance and Reviews

i. Preliminary Floodway Analysis:  A preliminary Floodway Analysis will be
performed which meets FEMA criteria.

ii. cHECkRAS: FEMA requires that HEC-RAS models be reviewed by the
cHECkRAS software prior to submittal and that all issues be resolved or
comments be submitted providing valid reasons why some issues presented
by cHECkRAS cannot be resolved.  The Floodway Analysis is usually
performed at the same time as the cHECkRAS step as many of the
comments produced by cHECkRAS relate to the floodway analysis.

iii. Debug – Final Model Debug with the added information from the
cHECkRAS and Floodway analysis will be  performed

iv. Review by Stakeholders:  The Hydraulic model will be reviewed by
Stakeholders including RD-1000, the City of Sacramento MT2 personnel/

v. Revisions Following Review:  The CESI Team will respond to comments
received by the Stakeholder Review, and update the modeling analysis as
necessary.

vi. Produce: Final Hydraulics Model:  Ready for final Modeling and Mapping
tasks.

1. Finalize Hydraulics Model: incorporating comments from
Stakeholder Review.  Provide Final Modeling Hydrology and
Hydraulics files to the District.

2. Finalize Model Calibration and Documentation

3. Finalize Floodway Analysis

4. Finalize Profile Generation

BOARD PACKET 
Page 123 of 202



Statement of Qualifications for Natomas Basin Hydraulic Model 

Civil Engineering Solutions, Inc. 36 Reclmation District No. 1000 

6. Floodplain Mapping:  Data developed within the HEC-RAS model will be utilized to develop
floodplain limits, flood elevations, cross section data and floodway limits for the floodplain
mapping effort.

a. Work Maps – The CESI Team will develop Work Maps consistent with FEMA
requirements

b. Annotated FIRM – The CESI Team will develop Annotated FIRM exhibits
consistent with FEMA requirements.

c. GIS Files – GIS files of the Mapping products will be provided to the District

7. Internal Quality Control: The CESI Team member GEI will be providing quality control
and quality assurance to ensure that a qualified engineer will review each step to verify
that the evaluation is defensible. GEI has provide quality control review of the
existing hydraulic model for Option No. 1 which is a significant time saver. If the
option is chosen to start the hydraulic model from scratch, GEI will provide the
necessary quality control checks for FEMA LOMR documentation.

8. External Quality Control: The CESI Team member GEI will coordinate all external Quality
Control reviews through the process starting with data collection review, hydrologic and
hydraulic model review, FEMA work maps and annotated maps and draft and final TSDN
documentation.

9. TSDN: The CESI team will develop the TSDN report which includes all the necessary
documentation which will include the following:

a. MT-2 Forms: The CESI team will fill out the MT-2 form. The form is stamped and
signed by a licensed professional engineer from the CESI Team. CESI will arrange
signature from RD1000. The MT-2 form is used for revisions to effective FIS
reports. These forms are intended to provide FEMA with assurance that all
pertinent data relating to the revision are included in the submittal.

b. Supporting  Data: As built and operations data: The CESI team will organize the
supporting documentation (topographic data; record drawings for all structures,
GIS, model data, etc.) in an easy to follow format.

c. TSDN Narrative: The CESI team will prepare the necessary documentation of the
project details, methodology, model development and details about the model
results. The narrative will include documentation for the mapping scenarios.

d. Flood Flow Summary Tables: The
CESI team will include flood flow
summary tables for each storm
frequency (10-, 50-, 100-, 500-year).
The flood flow tables are intended to
show the flow distributions and water
surface elevations depths for each of
the identified 1D channel segments.
There are a significant amount of 2D

BOARD PACKET 
Page 124 of 202



Statement of Qualifications for Natomas Basin Hydraulic Model 
 

Civil Engineering Solutions, Inc. 37 Reclmation District No. 1000 

areas in the hydraulic model that will also be included and summarized in tables.  

e. Floodway Data Tables: The CESI team will prepare the floodway data tables per 
FEMA guidelines.  All numbers in the table are based on the hydraulic models 
calculated at each floodplain cross section. The first two columns under “Flooding 
Source” identify the stream name and the cross sections used in the FIS, and the 
distance of the given cross section from a known reference point. The reference 
point is usually designated by the mouth of the flooding source, a corporate limit, or 
a county boundary. The footnotes at the bottom of the Floodway Data Table 
identify this reference point. 

f. Flood Profiles: The CESI 
team will extract and develop 
flood profiles representing 
the storm frequencies for 
each of the study streams as 
shown. The flood profiles 
will be developed and scaled 
per the FEMA guidance 
documents.  

  

BOARD PACKET 
Page 125 of 202



RD 1000

To
m

 P
lu

m
m

er
, 

Pr
oj

ec
t D

ire
ct

or
, 

H
yd

ro
lo

gi
c 

an
d 

H
yd

ra
ul

ic
 S

up
po

rt

D
es

ig
n 

En
gi

ne
er

M
ar

k 
Fo

rt
ne

r, 
Q

C

C
hr

is
 F

er
ra

ri,
 

Pr
oj

ec
t M

an
ag

er
 

H
yd

ro
lo

gy
 &

 
H

yd
ra

ul
ic

s

Yi
 S

he
n,

 H
yd

ro
lo

gy
 

an
d 

H
yd

ra
ul

ic
s

M
ic

ha
el

 P
an

te
ll,

 
H

yd
ro

lo
gy

 a
nd

 
H

yd
ra

ul
ic

s

Je
nn

ife
r B

uc
ha

na
n,

 
G

IS
/M

ap
pi

ng

A
dm

in

Er
ik

 F
an

su
la

u,
 D

at
a 

C
ol

le
ct

io
n/

 P
um

p 
St

a.

Su
rv

ey
 T

ea
m

Hourly Billing Rate: 245$             115$  297$  265$          165$   223$   166$   110$   175$       400$     

I. Project Management

Project Management 24 24  $          5,880 2 24 26  $             6,954 0  $ -   50 12,834$               

Coordination & Board Meetings 24 24  $          5,880 2 24 8 8 8 8 58  $           12,266 8 8  $           1,400 90 19,546$               

FEMA Coordination 16 16  $          3,920 2 16 18  $             4,834 0  $ -   34 8,754$

FEMA Modeling/Mapping Coordination 16 16  $          3,920 2 16 18  $             4,834 0  $ -   34 8,754$

Coordination with SAFCA/External Levee Certification 
and Sankey Rd. 

8 8  $          1,960 8 8  $             2,120 0  $ -   16 4,080$

Coordination with City/City's Consultant/Internal Levee 
Certification Issues/ Revisons, Project Identification/ 
Certificatinon Issues

8 8  $          1,960 8 8  $             2,120 0  $ -   16 4,080$

Sum Total - Project Management and Meetings 96 0 96  $        23,520 8 96 8 8 8 8 136  $           33,128 8 0 8  $           1,400 240  $ 58,048 

IIA. Data Collection

Collect Record Drawings 2 12 14  $          1,870 1 2 2 2 2 9  $             1,935 0  $ -   23 3,805$

Pump Station Data 2 12 14  $          1,870 1 2 3  $ 827 16 16  $           2,800 33 5,497$
IIB. Field Reconnaissance/Survey

Culvert/Bridge Data 2 16 18  $          2,330 1 2 16 16 16 51  $             9,691 16 16  $           2,800 85 14,821$               

Survey 2 2  $             490 1 1 2  $ 562 25 25  $         10,000 29 11,052$               

Sum Total - Data Collection/Field Reconnaissance 8 48  $          6,560 4 7 18 18 18 0 65  $           13,015 32 25 57  $         15,600 170  $ 35,175 

Hydrology and Hydraulcs Model Purchase(Hydrology Portioo) 20,000$               

Watershed Maps ‐ Resolve Inconsistencies between City and RD‐
1000 watershed limits, GIS Layers 0  $ -   1 2 0 0 16 19  $             3,483 19 3,483$

Land Use Layer ‐ Resolve Current Land Uses from Various Source  
GIS Data 0  $ -   1 2 0 0 0 3  $ 827 3 827$

Resolve Infiltration Factors for Large Events to match RD‐1000 
Volumetrically 0  $ -   1 2 0 0 0 3  $ 827 3 827$

Input Data into SACCALC Model 0  $ -   1 2 0 0 0 3  $ 827 3 827$

Peer Review Responses 12 12  $          2,940 4 24 16 16 8 68  $           15,084 80 18,024$               

Proposed Scope of Work Budget for the Natomas Basin Hydraulic Model ‐ Option No. 1 ‐ Purchase and Use the Grand Park Model
TOTAL BUDGET

Civil Solutions GEI Staff RFE GRAND TOTAL

To
ta

l H
ou

rs

C
S 

LA
B

O
R

 C
O

ST
S

To
ta

l H
ou

rs

G
EI

 L
A

B
O

R
 C

O
ST

S

To
ta

l H
ou

rs

R
FE

 L
A

B
O

R
 C

O
ST

S

To
ta

l H
ou

rs

TO
TA

L 
LA

B
O

R
 C

O
ST

S

III. Hydrology

BOARD PACKET 
Page 126 of 202



RD 1000

To
m

 P
lu

m
m

er
, 

Pr
oj

ec
t D

ire
ct

or
, 

H
yd

ro
lo

gi
c 

an
d 

H
yd

ra
ul

ic
 S

up
po

rt

D
es

ig
n 

En
gi

ne
er

M
ar

k 
Fo

rt
ne

r, 
Q

C

C
hr

is
 F

er
ra

ri,
 

Pr
oj

ec
t M

an
ag

er
 

H
yd

ro
lo

gy
 &

 
H

yd
ra

ul
ic

s

Yi
 S

he
n,

 H
yd

ro
lo

gy
 

an
d 

H
yd

ra
ul

ic
s

M
ic

ha
el

 P
an

te
ll,

 
H

yd
ro

lo
gy

 a
nd

 
H

yd
ra

ul
ic

s

Je
nn

ife
r B

uc
ha

na
n,

 
G

IS
/M

ap
pi

ng

A
dm

in

Er
ik

 F
an

su
la

u,
 D

at
a 

C
ol

le
ct

io
n/

 P
um

p 
St

a.

Su
rv

ey
 T

ea
m

Hourly Billing Rate: 245$             115$  297$  265$          165$   223$   166$   110$   175$       400$     

Proposed Scope of Work Budget for the Natomas Basin Hydraulic Model ‐ Option No. 1 ‐ Purchase and Use the Grand Park Model                              
TOTAL BUDGET

Civil Solutions GEI Staff RFE GRAND TOTAL

To
ta

l H
ou

rs

C
S 

LA
B

O
R

 C
O

ST
S

To
ta

l H
ou

rs

G
EI

 L
A

B
O

R
 C

O
ST

S

To
ta

l H
ou

rs

R
FE

 L
A

B
O

R
 C

O
ST

S

To
ta

l H
ou

rs

TO
TA

L 
LA

B
O

R
 C

O
ST

S

 

Sum Total - Hydrology 12 0 12  $          2,940 8 32 16 16 24 0 96  $           21,048 0 0 0  $                 -   108  $               43,988 

IV. Hydraulics
Hydrology and Hydraulcs Model Purchase(Hydraulics Portioo) 80,000$               

Terrains ‐1D/2D Cut in Thalweg ‐ 2D Areas ‐ Identify rice checks, 
culverts which will not be modeled, Document and modify Terrain, 
Convert to HEC format. 

0  $               -   1 1  $                297 1 297$                    

Draw Streams 0  $               -   1 1  $                297 1 297$                    

Draw and Re‐cut Cross Sections 0  $               -   1 1  $                297 1 297$                    

Draw 2D Domains boundaries, create domains,  0  $               -   1 1  $                297 1 297$                    

Add Break Lines ‐ Add Terrain based mesh improvements, resolve 8 
side issues

4 4  $             980 2 4 8 14  $             2,982 18 3,962$                 

Input Culverts/Bridges And AS‐Built data identified by agencies 0  $               -   0  $                   -   0 -$                         

Internal/External Boundary Conditions (hydrology inflows, Sankey 
gap, etc.) 0  $               -   0  $                   -   0 -$                         

Internal Pumps 0  $               -   0  $                   -   0 -$                         

External Pumps 0  $               -   0  $                   -   0 -$                         

Add Surveyed Levee Elevations 8 8  $          1,960 8 8 16  $             3,104 24 5,064$                 

RE‐trace Weirs/Lateral Weirs into Domain. 0  $               -   0  $                   -   0 -$                         

Apply Hydrology to HEC‐RAS and Document 0  $               -   0  $                   -   0 -$                         

cHECkRAS and Resolve Issues for FEMA Compliant 24 24  $          5,880 1 2 24 24 51  $           10,139 75 16,019$               

Floodway Analysis 40 40  $          9,800 16 8 24  $             3,968 64 13,768$               

Debug 4 4  $             980 0  $                   -   4 980$                    

Peer Review 8 8  $          1,960 2 2 8 8 20  $             4,228 28 6,188$                 

Model Calibration 24 24  $          5,880 1 2 16 16 35  $             7,035 59 12,915$               
Respond to Peer Review and Agency Comments and Re‐compute, 
and Re‐debug as needed.

40 40  $          9,800 1 2 8 8 19  $             3,931 59 13,731$               

Sum Total - Hydraulics 152 152  $        37,240 11 12 80 64 16 0 183  $           36,575 0 0 0  $                 -   335  $             153,815 

V. Mapping

Draft Work Map (No. of Panels) 16 16  $          3,920 1 2 80 0 83  $           14,107 99 18,027$               

FEMA LOMR Panels 16 16  $          3,920 1 2 40 0 43  $             7,467 59 11,387$               

`

BOARD PACKET 
Page 127 of 202



RD 1000

To
m

 P
lu

m
m

er
, 

Pr
oj

ec
t D

ire
ct

or
, 

H
yd

ro
lo

gi
c 

an
d 

H
yd

ra
ul

ic
 S

up
po

rt

D
es

ig
n 

En
gi

ne
er

M
ar

k 
Fo

rt
ne

r, 
Q

C

C
hr

is
 F

er
ra

ri,
 

Pr
oj

ec
t M

an
ag

er
 

H
yd

ro
lo

gy
 &

 
H

yd
ra

ul
ic

s

Yi
 S

he
n,

 H
yd

ro
lo

gy
 

an
d 

H
yd

ra
ul

ic
s

M
ic

ha
el

 P
an

te
ll,

 
H

yd
ro

lo
gy

 a
nd

 
H

yd
ra

ul
ic

s

Je
nn

ife
r B

uc
ha

na
n,

 
G

IS
/M

ap
pi

ng

A
dm

in

Er
ik

 F
an

su
la

u,
 D

at
a 

C
ol

le
ct

io
n/

 P
um

p 
St

a.

Su
rv

ey
 T

ea
m

Hourly Billing Rate: 245$             115$  297$  265$          165$   223$   166$   110$   175$       400$     

Proposed Scope of Work Budget for the Natomas Basin Hydraulic Model ‐ Option No. 1 ‐ Purchase and Use the Grand Park Model
TOTAL BUDGET

Civil Solutions GEI Staff RFE GRAND TOTAL

To
ta

l H
ou

rs

C
S 

LA
B

O
R

 C
O

ST
S

To
ta

l H
ou

rs

G
EI

 L
A

B
O

R
 C

O
ST

S

To
ta

l H
ou

rs

R
FE

 L
A

B
O

R
 C

O
ST

S

To
ta

l H
ou

rs

TO
TA

L 
LA

B
O

R
 C

O
ST

S

Organize FEMA Files 16 16  $          3,920 1 2 40 0 43  $             7,467 59 11,387$               

FEMA Profiles 16 16  $          3,920 1 2 60 0 63  $           10,787 79 14,707$               

Sum Total - Mapping 64 64  $        15,680 4 8 0 0 220 0 232  $           39,828 0 0 0  $ -   296  $ 55,508 

VI. TSDN Documentation

Draft Report 60 60  $        14,700 2 20 16 8 46  $             9,430 106 24,130$               

Final Report 40 40  $          9,800 2 20 8 8 38  $             8,102 78 17,902$               

Sum Total - Documentation 100 100  $        24,500 4 40 0 0 24 16 84  $           17,532 0 0 0  $ -   184  $ 42,032 

BOARD PACKET 
Page 128 of 202



RD 1000

To
m

 P
lu

m
m

er
, 

Pr
oj

ec
t D

ire
ct

or
, 

H
yd

ro
lo

gi
c 

an
d 

H
yd

ra
ul

ic
 S

up
po

rt

D
es

ig
n 

En
gi

ne
er

M
ar

k 
Fo

rt
ne

r, 
Q

C

C
hr

is
 F

er
ra

ri,
 

Pr
oj

ec
t M

an
ag

er
 

H
yd

ro
lo

gy
 &

 
H

yd
ra

ul
ic

s

Yi
 S

he
n,

 H
yd

ro
lo

gy
 

an
d 

H
yd

ra
ul

ic
s

M
ic

ha
el

 P
an

te
ll,

 
H

yd
ro

lo
gy

 a
nd

 
H

yd
ra

ul
ic

s

Je
nn

ife
r B

uc
ha

na
n,

 
G

IS
/M

ap
pi

ng

A
dm

in

Er
ik

 F
an

su
la

u,
 D

at
a 

C
ol

le
ct

io
n/

 P
um

p 
St

a.

Su
rv

ey
 T

ea
m

Hourly Billing Rate: 245$             115$  297$  265$          165$   223$   166$   110$   175$       400$     

Proposed Scope of Work Budget for the Natomas Basin Hydraulic Model ‐ Option No. 1 ‐ Purchase and Use the Grand Park Model
TOTAL BUDGET

Civil Solutions GEI Staff RFE GRAND TOTAL

To
ta

l H
ou

rs

C
S 

LA
B

O
R

 C
O

ST
S

To
ta

l H
ou

rs

G
EI

 L
A

B
O

R
 C

O
ST

S

To
ta

l H
ou

rs

R
FE

 L
A

B
O

R
 C

O
ST

S

To
ta

l H
ou

rs

TO
TA

L 
LA

B
O

R
 C

O
ST

S

Total Hours of All Tasks Requested 432 472 39 195 122 106 310 24 796 40 25 65 1,333
TOTAL PROJECT COSTS of REQUESTED TASKS  $      110,440  $         161,126  $         17,000  $             388,566 

BOARD PACKET 
Page 129 of 202



RD 1000

To
m

 P
lu

m
m

er
, 

Pr
oj

ec
t D

ire
ct

or
, 

H
yd

ro
lo

gi
c 

an
d 

H
yd

ra
ul

ic
 S

up
po

rt

D
es

ig
n 

En
gi

ne
er

M
ar

k 
Fo

rt
ne

r, 
Q

C

C
hr

is
 F

er
ra

ri,
 

Pr
oj

ec
t M

an
ag

er
 

H
yd

ro
lo

gy
 &

 
H

yd
ra

ul
ic

s

Yi
 S

he
n,

 H
yd

ro
lo

gy
 

an
d 

H
yd

ra
ul

ic
s

M
ic

ha
el

 P
an

te
ll,

 
H

yd
ro

lo
gy

 a
nd

 
H

yd
ra

ul
ic

s

Je
nn

ife
r B

uc
ha

na
n,

 
G

IS
/M

ap
pi

ng

A
dm

in

Er
ik

 F
an

su
la

u,
 D

at
a 

C
ol

le
ct

io
n/

 P
um

p 
St

a.

Su
rv

ey
 T

ea
m

Hourly Billing Rate: 245$             115$   297$   265$          165$     223$    166$    110$      175$       400$     

I. Project Management

Project Management 7.999992 0 8  $          1,960 0.6667 7.999992 0 0 0 0 8.667  $             2,318 0 0 0  $ -   17 4,278$  

Coordination & Board Meetings 7.999992 0 8  $          1,960 0.6667 7.999992 2.666664 2.66666 2.66666 2.666664 19.33  $             4,089 2.666664 0 2.6667  $              467 30 6,515$  

FEMA Coordination 3.2 0 3.2  $             784 0.4 3.2 0 0 0 0 3.6  $ 967 0 0 0  $ -   7 1,751$  

FEMA Modeling/Mapping Coordination 3.2 0 3.2  $             784 0.4 3.2 0 0 0 0 3.6  $ 967 0 0 0  $ -   7 1,751$  

Coordination with SAFCA/External Levee Certification and 
Sankey Rd. 

1.6 0 1.6  $             392 0 1.6 0 0 0 0 1.6  $ 424 0 0 0  $ -   3 816$

Coordination with City/City's Consultant/Internal Levee 
Certification Issues/ Revisons, Project Identification/ 
Certificatinon Issues

1.6 0 1.6  $             392 0 1.6 0 0 0 0 1.6  $ 424 0 0 0  $ -   3 816$

Sum Total - Project Management and Meetings 25.599984 0 25.6  $          6,272 2.1333 25.599984 2.666664 2.66666 2.66666 2.666664 38.4  $             9,188 2.666664 0 2.6667  $              467 66.66662  $ 15,927 

IIA. Data Collection

Collect Record Drawings 0 0 0  $ -   0 0 0 0 0 0 0  $ -   0 0 0  $ -   0 -$

Pump Station Data 0.4 2.4 2.8  $             374 0.2 0.4 0 0 0 0 0.6  $ 165 0 0 0  $ -   3 539$

IIB. Field Reconnaissance/Survey

Culvert/Bridge Data 0 0 0  $ -   0 0 0 0 0 0 0  $ -   0 0 0  $ -   0 -$

Survey 0 0 0  $ -   0 0 0 0 0 0 0  $ -   0 0 0  $ -   0 -$  

Sum Total - Data Collection/Field Reconnaissance 0.4 2.8  $             374 0.2 0.4 0 0 0 0 0.6  $ 165 0 0 0  $ -   3.4  $ 539 

Hydrology and Hydraulcs Model Purchase(Hydrology Portioo) 20000

Watershed Maps ‐ Resolve Inconsistencies between City and RD‐
1000 watershed limits, GIS Layers

0 0 0  $ -   0.2 0.4 0 0 3.2 0 3.8  $ 697 0 0 4 697$

Land Use Layer ‐ Resolve Current Land Uses from Various Source  GIS 
Data

0 0 0  $ -   0.2 0.4 0 0 0 0 0.6  $ 165 0 0 1 165$

Resolve Infiltration Factors for Large Events to match RD‐1000 
Volumetrically

0 0 0  $ -   0.2 0.4 0 0 0 0 0.6  $ 165 0 0 1 165$

Input Data into SACCALC Model 0 0 0  $ -   0.2 0.4 0 0 0 0 0.6  $ 165 0 0 1 165$

Peer Review Responses 2.4 0 2.4  $             588 0.8 4.8 3.2 3.2 1.6 0 13.6  $             3,017 0 0 16 3,605$  

Proposed Scope of Work Budget for the Natomas Basin Hydraulic Model ‐ Option No. 1 ‐ Purchase and Use the Grand Park Model PHASE 1 
‐ DRAFT MODEL DELIVERY AND STAKEHOLDER REVIEW

Civil Solutions GEI Staff RFE GRAND TOTAL

To
ta

l H
ou

rs

C
S 

LA
B

O
R

 C
O

ST
S

To
ta

l H
ou

rs

G
EI

 L
A

B
O

R
 C

O
ST

S

To
ta

l H
ou

rs

R
FE

 L
A

B
O

R
 C

O
ST

S

To
ta

l H
ou

rs

TO
TA

L 
LA

B
O

R
 C

O
ST

S

III. Hydrology

BOARD PACKET 
Page 130 of 202



RD 1000

To
m

 P
lu

m
m

er
, 

Pr
oj

ec
t D

ire
ct

or
, 

H
yd

ro
lo

gi
c 

an
d 

H
yd

ra
ul

ic
 S

up
po

rt

D
es

ig
n 

En
gi

ne
er

M
ar

k 
Fo

rt
ne

r, 
Q

C

C
hr

is
 F

er
ra

ri,
 

Pr
oj

ec
t M

an
ag

er
 

H
yd

ro
lo

gy
 &

 
H

yd
ra

ul
ic

s

Yi
 S

he
n,

 H
yd

ro
lo

gy
 

an
d 

H
yd

ra
ul

ic
s

M
ic

ha
el

 P
an

te
ll,

 
H

yd
ro

lo
gy

 a
nd

 
H

yd
ra

ul
ic

s

Je
nn

ife
r B

uc
ha

na
n,

 
G

IS
/M

ap
pi

ng

A
dm

in

Er
ik

 F
an

su
la

u,
 D

at
a 

C
ol

le
ct

io
n/

 P
um

p 
St

a.

Su
rv

ey
 T

ea
m

Hourly Billing Rate: 245$             115$   297$   265$          165$     223$    166$    110$      175$       400$     

Proposed Scope of Work Budget for the Natomas Basin Hydraulic Model ‐ Option No. 1 ‐ Purchase and Use the Grand Park Model PHASE 1 
‐ DRAFT MODEL DELIVERY AND STAKEHOLDER REVIEW

Civil Solutions GEI Staff RFE GRAND TOTAL

To
ta

l H
ou

rs

C
S 

LA
B

O
R

 C
O

ST
S

To
ta

l H
ou

rs

G
EI

 L
A

B
O

R
 C

O
ST

S

To
ta

l H
ou

rs

R
FE

 L
A

B
O

R
 C

O
ST

S

To
ta

l H
ou

rs

TO
TA

L 
LA

B
O

R
 C

O
ST

S

Sum Total - Hydrology 2.4 0 2.4  $             588 1.6 6.4 3.2 3.2 4.8 0 19.2  $             4,210 0 0 0  $ -   22  $ 24,798 

IV. Hydraulics
Hydrology and Hydraulcs Model Purchase(Hydraulics Portioo) 80000

Terrains ‐1D/2D Cut in Thalweg ‐ 2D Areas ‐ Identify rice checks, 
culverts which will not be modeled, Document and modify Terrain, 
Convert to HEC format. 

0 0 0  $ -   1 0 0 0 0 0 1  $ 297 1 297$

Draw Streams 0 0 0  $ -   1 0 0 0 0 0 1  $ 297 1 297$

Draw and Re‐cut Cross Sections 0 0 0  $ -   1 0 0 0 0 0 1  $ 297 1 297$

Draw 2D Domains boundaries, create domains,  0 0 0  $ -   1 0 0 0 0 0 1  $ 297 1 297$

Add Break Lines ‐ Add Terrain based mesh improvements, resolve 8 
side issues

0.8 0 0.8  $             196 0.4 0.8 0 0 1.6 0 2.8  $ 596 4 792$

Input Culverts/Bridges And AS‐Built data identified by agencies 0 0 0  $ -   0 0 0 0 0 0 0  $ -   0 -$

Internal/External Boundary Conditions (hydrology inflows, Sankey 
gap, etc.)

0 0 0  $ -   0 0 0 0 0 0 0  $ -   0 -$

Internal Pumps 0 0 0  $ -   0 0 0 0 0 0 0  $ -   0 -$

External Pumps 0 0 0  $ -   0 0 0 0 0 0 0  $ -   0 -$

Add Surveyed Levee Elevations 0 0 0  $ -   0 0 0 0 0 0 0  $ -   0 -$

RE‐trace Weirs/Lateral Weirs into Domain. 0 0 0  $ -   0 0 0 0 0 0 0  $ -   0 -$

Apply Hydrology to HEC‐RAS and Document 0 0 0  $ -   0 0 0 0 0 0 0  $ -   0 -$

cHECkRAS and Resolve Issues for FEMA Compliant 0 0 0  $ -   0 0 0 0 0 0 0  $ -   0 -$

Floodway Analysis 0 0 0  $ -   0 0 0 0 0 0 0  $ -   0 -$

Debug 0 0 0  $ -   0 0 0 0 0 0 0  $ -   0 -$

Peer Review 4 0 4  $             980 1 1 4 4 0 0 10  $             2,114 14 3,094$  

Model Calibration 0 0 0  $ -   0 0 0 0 0 0 0  $ -   0 -$
Respond to Peer Review and Agency Comments and Re‐compute, 
and Re‐debug as needed.

0 0 0  $ -   0 0 0 0 0 0 0  $ -   0 -$

Sum Total - Hydraulics 4.8 4.8  $          1,176 5.4 1.8 4 4 1.6 0 16.8  $             3,898 0 0 0  $ -   21.6  $ 85,074 

V. Mapping

Draft Work Map (No. of Panels) 0 0 0  $ - 0 0 0 0 0 0 0  $ -   0 -$

FEMA LOMR Panels 0 0 0  $ - 0 0 0 0 0 0 0  $ -   0 -$

`

BOARD PACKET 
Page 131 of 202



RD 1000

To
m

 P
lu

m
m

er
, 

Pr
oj

ec
t D

ire
ct

or
, 

H
yd

ro
lo

gi
c 

an
d 

H
yd

ra
ul

ic
 S

up
po

rt

D
es

ig
n 

En
gi

ne
er

M
ar

k 
Fo

rt
ne

r, 
Q

C

C
hr

is
 F

er
ra

ri,
 

Pr
oj

ec
t M

an
ag

er
 

H
yd

ro
lo

gy
 &

 
H

yd
ra

ul
ic

s

Yi
 S

he
n,

 H
yd

ro
lo

gy
 

an
d 

H
yd

ra
ul

ic
s

M
ic

ha
el

 P
an

te
ll,

 
H

yd
ro

lo
gy

 a
nd

 
H

yd
ra

ul
ic

s

Je
nn

ife
r B

uc
ha

na
n,

 
G

IS
/M

ap
pi

ng

A
dm

in

Er
ik

 F
an

su
la

u,
 D

at
a 

C
ol

le
ct

io
n/

 P
um

p 
St

a.

Su
rv

ey
 T

ea
m

Hourly Billing Rate: 245$             115$   297$   265$          165$     223$    166$    110$      175$       400$     

Proposed Scope of Work Budget for the Natomas Basin Hydraulic Model ‐ Option No. 1 ‐ Purchase and Use the Grand Park Model PHASE 1 
‐ DRAFT MODEL DELIVERY AND STAKEHOLDER REVIEW

Civil Solutions GEI Staff RFE GRAND TOTAL

To
ta

l H
ou

rs

C
S 

LA
B

O
R

 C
O

ST
S

To
ta

l H
ou

rs

G
EI

 L
A

B
O

R
 C

O
ST

S

To
ta

l H
ou

rs

R
FE

 L
A

B
O

R
 C

O
ST

S

To
ta

l H
ou

rs

TO
TA

L 
LA

B
O

R
 C

O
ST

S

Organize FEMA Files 0 0 0  $ - 0 0 0 0 0 0 0  $ -   0 -$

FEMA Profiles 0 0 0  $ - 0 0 0 0 0 0 0  $ -   0 -$

Sum Total - Mapping 0 0  $ -   0 0 0 0 0 0 0  $ -   0 0 0  $ -   0  $ -   

VI. TSDN Documentation

Draft Report 15 0 15  $          3,675 0.5 5 0 0 4 2 11.5  $             2,358 27 6,033$  

Final Report 0 0 0  $ - 0 0 0 0 0 0 0  $ -   0 -$

Sum Total - Documentation 15 15  $          3,675 0.5 5 0 0 4 2 11.5  $             2,358 0 0 0  $ -   26.5  $ 6,033 

BOARD PACKET 
Page 132 of 202



RD 1000

To
m

 P
lu

m
m

er
, 

Pr
oj

ec
t D

ire
ct

or
, 

H
yd

ro
lo

gi
c 

an
d 

H
yd

ra
ul

ic
 S

up
po

rt

D
es

ig
n 

En
gi

ne
er

M
ar

k 
Fo

rt
ne

r, 
Q

C

C
hr

is
 F

er
ra

ri,
 

Pr
oj

ec
t M

an
ag

er
 

H
yd

ro
lo

gy
 &

 
H

yd
ra

ul
ic

s

Yi
 S

he
n,

 H
yd

ro
lo

gy
 

an
d 

H
yd

ra
ul

ic
s

M
ic

ha
el

 P
an

te
ll,

 
H

yd
ro

lo
gy

 a
nd

 
H

yd
ra

ul
ic

s

Je
nn

ife
r B

uc
ha

na
n,

 
G

IS
/M

ap
pi

ng

A
dm

in

Er
ik

 F
an

su
la

u,
 D

at
a 

C
ol

le
ct

io
n/

 P
um

p 
St

a.

Su
rv

ey
 T

ea
m

Hourly Billing Rate: 245$             115$   297$   265$          165$     223$    166$    110$      175$       400$     

Proposed Scope of Work Budget for the Natomas Basin Hydraulic Model ‐ Option No. 1 ‐ Purchase and Use the Grand Park Model PHASE 1 
‐ DRAFT MODEL DELIVERY AND STAKEHOLDER REVIEW

Civil Solutions GEI Staff RFE GRAND TOTAL

To
ta

l H
ou

rs

C
S 

LA
B

O
R

 C
O

ST
S

To
ta

l H
ou

rs

G
EI

 L
A

B
O

R
 C

O
ST

S

To
ta

l H
ou

rs

R
FE

 L
A

B
O

R
 C

O
ST

S

To
ta

l H
ou

rs

TO
TA

L 
LA

B
O

R
 C

O
ST

S

Total Hours of All Tasks Requested 48 51 10 39 10 10 13 5 86 3 0 3 140
TOTAL PROJECT COSTS of REQUESTED TASKS  $        12,085  $           19,819  $              467  $             132,371 

BOARD PACKET 
Page 133 of 202



RD 1000

To
m

 P
lu

m
m

er
, 

Pr
oj

ec
t D

ire
ct

or
, 

H
yd

ro
lo

gi
c 

an
d 

H
yd

ra
ul

ic
 S

up
po

rt

D
es

ig
n 

En
gi

ne
er

M
ar

k 
Fo

rt
ne

r, 
Q

C

C
hr

is
 F

er
ra

ri,
 

Pr
oj

ec
t M

an
ag

er
 

H
yd

ro
lo

gy
 &

 
H

yd
ra

ul
ic

s

Yi
 S

he
n,

 H
yd

ro
lo

gy
 

an
d 

H
yd

ra
ul

ic
s

M
ic

ha
el

 P
an

te
ll,

 
H

yd
ro

lo
gy

 a
nd

 
H

yd
ra

ul
ic

s

Je
nn

ife
r B

uc
ha

na
n,

 
G

IS
/M

ap
pi

ng

A
dm

in

Er
ik

 F
an

su
la

u,
 D

at
a 

C
ol

le
ct

io
n/

 P
um

p 
St

a.

Su
rv

ey
 T

ea
m

Hourly Billing Rate: 245$             115$  297$  265$          165$   223$   166$   110$   175$       400$     

I. Project Management

Project Management 7.999992 0 8  $          1,960 0.6667 7.999992 0 0 0 0 8.667  $             2,318 0 0 0  $ -   17 4,278$

Coordination & Board Meetings 7.999992 0 8  $          1,960 0.6667 7.999992 2.6667 2.6667 2.6667 2.6667 19.33  $             4,089 2.666664 0 2.6667  $              467 30 6,515$

FEMA Coordination 3.2 0 3.2  $             784 0.4 3.2 0 0 0 0 3.6  $ 967 0 0 0  $ -   7 1,751$

FEMA Modeling/Mapping Coordination 3.2 0 3.2  $             784 0.4 3.2 0 0 0 0 3.6  $ 967 0 0 0  $ -   7 1,751$

Coordination with SAFCA/External Levee Certification 
and Sankey Rd. 

1.6 0 1.6  $             392 0 1.6 0 0 0 0 1.6  $ 424 0 0 0  $ -   3 816$

Coordination with City/City's Consultant/Internal Levee 
Certification Issues/ Revisons, Project Identification/ 
Certificatinon Issues

4 0 4  $             980 0 4 0 0 0 0 4  $             1,060 0 0 0  $ -   8 2,040$

Sum Total - Project Management and Meetings 27.999984 0 28  $          6,860 2.1333 27.999984 2.6667 2.6667 2.6667 2.6667 40.8  $             9,824 2.666664 0 2.6667  $              467 71.46662  $ 17,151 

IIA. Data Collection

Collect Record Drawings 2 12 14  $          1,870 1 2 2 2 2 0 9  $             1,935 0 0 0  $ -   23 3,805$

Pump Station Data 1.6 9.6 11.2  $          1,496 0.8 1.6 0 0 0 0 2.4  $ 662 16 0 16  $           2,800 30 4,958$
IIB. Field Reconnaissance/Survey

Culvert/Bridge Data 2 16 18  $          2,330 1 2 16 16 16 0 51  $             9,691 16 0 16  $           2,800 85 14,821$               

Survey 2 0 2  $             490 1 1 0 0 0 0 2  $ 562 0 25 25  $         10,000 29 11,052$               

Sum Total - Data Collection/Field Reconnaissance 7.6 45.2  $          6,186 3.8 6.6 18 18 18 0 64.4  $           12,850 32 25 57  $         15,600 166.6  $ 34,636 

Hydrology and Hydraulcs Model Purchase(Hydrology Portioo) 0

Watershed Maps ‐ Resolve Inconsistencies between City and RD‐
1000 watershed limits, GIS Layers 0 0 0  $ -   0.8 1.6 0 0 12.8 0 15.2  $             2,786 15 2,786$

Land Use Layer ‐ Resolve Current Land Uses from Various Source  
GIS Data

0 0 0  $ -   0.8 1.6 0 0 0 0 2.4  $ 662 2 662$

Resolve Infiltration Factors for Large Events to match RD‐1000 
Volumetrically 0 0 0  $ -   0.8 1.6 0 0 0 0 2.4  $ 662 2 662$

Input Data into SACCALC Model 0 0 0  $ -   0.8 1.6 0 0 0 0 2.4  $ 662 2 662$

Peer Review Responses 9.6 0 9.6  $          2,352 3.2 19.2 12.8 12.8 6.4 0 54.4  $           12,067 64 14,419$               

Proposed Scope of Work Budget for the Natomas Basin Hydraulic Model ‐ Option No. 1 ‐ Purchase and Use the Grand Park Model
PHASE 2 ‐ DATA IDENTIFICATION/ACQUISITION MODEL REVISIONS AND DOCUMENTATION

Civil Solutions GEI Staff RFE GRAND TOTAL

To
ta

l H
ou

rs

C
S 

LA
B

O
R

 C
O

ST
S

To
ta

l H
ou

rs

G
EI

 L
A

B
O

R
 C

O
ST

S

To
ta

l H
ou

rs

R
FE

 L
A

B
O

R
 C

O
ST

S

To
ta

l H
ou

rs

TO
TA

L 
LA

B
O

R
 C

O
ST

S

III. Hydrology

BOARD PACKET 
Page 134 of 202



RD 1000

To
m

 P
lu

m
m

er
, 

Pr
oj

ec
t D

ire
ct

or
, 

H
yd

ro
lo

gi
c 

an
d 

H
yd

ra
ul

ic
 S

up
po

rt

D
es

ig
n 

En
gi

ne
er

M
ar

k 
Fo

rt
ne

r, 
Q

C

C
hr

is
 F

er
ra

ri,
 

Pr
oj

ec
t M

an
ag

er
 

H
yd

ro
lo

gy
 &

 
H

yd
ra

ul
ic

s

Yi
 S

he
n,

 H
yd

ro
lo

gy
 

an
d 

H
yd

ra
ul

ic
s

M
ic

ha
el

 P
an

te
ll,

 
H

yd
ro

lo
gy

 a
nd

 
H

yd
ra

ul
ic

s

Je
nn

ife
r B

uc
ha

na
n,

 
G

IS
/M

ap
pi

ng

A
dm

in

Er
ik

 F
an

su
la

u,
 D

at
a 

C
ol

le
ct

io
n/

 P
um

p 
St

a.

Su
rv

ey
 T

ea
m

Hourly Billing Rate: 245$             115$  297$  265$          165$   223$   166$   110$   175$       400$     

Proposed Scope of Work Budget for the Natomas Basin Hydraulic Model ‐ Option No. 1 ‐ Purchase and Use the Grand Park Model
PHASE 2 ‐ DATA IDENTIFICATION/ACQUISITION MODEL REVISIONS AND DOCUMENTATION

Civil Solutions GEI Staff RFE GRAND TOTAL

To
ta

l H
ou

rs

C
S 

LA
B

O
R

 C
O

ST
S

To
ta

l H
ou

rs

G
EI

 L
A

B
O

R
 C

O
ST

S

To
ta

l H
ou

rs

R
FE

 L
A

B
O

R
 C

O
ST

S

To
ta

l H
ou

rs

TO
TA

L 
LA

B
O

R
 C

O
ST

S

Sum Total - Hydrology 9.6 0 9.6  $          2,352 6.4 25.6 12.8 12.8 19.2 0 76.8  $           16,838 0 0 0  $ -   86  $ 19,190 

IV. Hydraulics
Hydrology and Hydraulcs Model Purchase(Hydraulics Portioo) 0

Terrains ‐1D/2D Cut in Thalweg ‐ 2D Areas ‐ Identify rice checks, 
culverts which will not be modeled, Document and modify Terrain, 
Convert to HEC format. 

0 0 0  $ -   0 0 0 0 0 0 0  $ -   0 -$  

Draw Streams 0 0 0  $ -   0 0 0 0 0 0 0  $ -   0 -$  

Draw and Re‐cut Cross Sections 0 0 0  $ -   0 0 0 0 0 0 0  $ -   0 -$  

Draw 2D Domains boundaries, create domains,  0 0 0  $ -   0 0 0 0 0 0 0  $ -   0 -$  

Add Break Lines ‐ Add Terrain based mesh improvements, resolve 8 
side issues

3.2 0 3.2  $             784 1.6 3.2 0 0 6.4 0 11.2  $             2,386 14 3,170$

Input Culverts/Bridges And AS‐Built data identified by agencies 0 0 0  $ -   0 0 0 0 0 0 0  $ -   0 -$  

Internal/External Boundary Conditions (hydrology inflows, Sankey 
gap, etc.) 0 0 0  $ -   0 0 0 0 0 0 0  $ -   0 -$  

Internal Pumps 0 0 0  $ -   0 0 0 0 0 0 0  $ -   0 -$  

External Pumps 0 0 0  $ -   0 0 0 0 0 0 0  $ -   0 -$  

Add Surveyed Levee Elevations 0 0 0  $ -   0 0 0 0 0 0 0  $ -   0 -$  

RE‐trace Weirs/Lateral Weirs into Domain. 0 0 0  $ -   0 0 0 0 0 0 0  $ -   0 -$  

Apply Hydrology to HEC‐RAS and Document 0 0 0  $ -   0 0 0 0 0 0 0  $ -   0 -$  

cHECkRAS and Resolve Issues for FEMA Compliant 12 0 12  $          2,940 0.5 1 12 12 0 0 25.5  $             5,070 38 8,010$

Floodway Analysis 0 0 0  $ -   0 0 0 0 0 0 0  $ -   0 -$  

Debug 2 0 2  $             490 0 0 0 0 0 0 0  $ -   2 490$

Peer Review 4 0 4  $             980 1 1 4 4 0 0 10  $             2,114 14 3,094$

Model Calibration 24 0 24  $          5,880 1 2 16 16 0 0 35  $             7,035 59 12,915$               
Respond to Peer Review and Agency Comments and Re‐compute, 
and Re‐debug as needed.

20 0 20  $          4,900 0.5 1 4 4 0 0 9.5  $             1,966 30 6,866$

Sum Total - Hydraulics 65.2 65.2  $        15,974 4.6 8.2 36 36 6.4 0 91.2  $           18,570 0 0 0  $ -   156.4  $ 34,544 

V. Mapping

Draft Work Map (No. of Panels) 8 0 8  $          1,960 0.5 1 0 0 40 0 41.5  $             7,054 50 9,014$

FEMA LOMR Panels 0 0 0  $ - 0 0 0 0 0 0 0  $ -   0 -$  

`

BOARD PACKET 
Page 135 of 202



RD 1000

To
m

 P
lu

m
m

er
, 

Pr
oj

ec
t D

ire
ct

or
, 

H
yd

ro
lo

gi
c 

an
d 

H
yd

ra
ul

ic
 S

up
po

rt

D
es

ig
n 

En
gi

ne
er

M
ar

k 
Fo

rt
ne

r, 
Q

C

C
hr

is
 F

er
ra

ri,
 

Pr
oj

ec
t M

an
ag

er
 

H
yd

ro
lo

gy
 &

 
H

yd
ra

ul
ic

s

Yi
 S

he
n,

 H
yd

ro
lo

gy
 

an
d 

H
yd

ra
ul

ic
s

M
ic

ha
el

 P
an

te
ll,

 
H

yd
ro

lo
gy

 a
nd

 
H

yd
ra

ul
ic

s

Je
nn

ife
r B

uc
ha

na
n,

 
G

IS
/M

ap
pi

ng

A
dm

in

Er
ik

 F
an

su
la

u,
 D

at
a 

C
ol

le
ct

io
n/

 P
um

p 
St

a.

Su
rv

ey
 T

ea
m

Hourly Billing Rate: 245$             115$  297$  265$          165$   223$   166$   110$   175$       400$     

Proposed Scope of Work Budget for the Natomas Basin Hydraulic Model ‐ Option No. 1 ‐ Purchase and Use the Grand Park Model
PHASE 2 ‐ DATA IDENTIFICATION/ACQUISITION MODEL REVISIONS AND DOCUMENTATION

Civil Solutions GEI Staff RFE GRAND TOTAL

To
ta

l H
ou

rs

C
S 

LA
B

O
R

 C
O

ST
S

To
ta

l H
ou

rs

G
EI

 L
A

B
O

R
 C

O
ST

S

To
ta

l H
ou

rs

R
FE

 L
A

B
O

R
 C

O
ST

S

To
ta

l H
ou

rs

TO
TA

L 
LA

B
O

R
 C

O
ST

S

Organize FEMA Files 0 0 0  $ - 0 0 0 0 0 0 0  $ -   0 -$  

FEMA Profiles 0 0 0  $ - 0 0 0 0 0 0 0  $ -   0 -$  

Sum Total - Mapping 8 8  $          1,960 0.5 1 0 0 40 0 41.5  $             7,054 0 0 0  $ -   49.5  $ 9,014 

VI. TSDN Documentation

Draft Report 24 0 24  $          5,880 0.8 8 0 0 6.4 3.2 18.4  $             3,772 42 9,652$

Final Report 0 0 0  $ - 0 0 0 0 0 0 0  $ -   0 -$  

Sum Total - Documentation 24 24  $          5,880 0.8 8 0 0 6.4 3.2 18.4  $             3,772 0 0 0  $ -   42.4  $ 9,652 

BOARD PACKET 
Page 136 of 202



RD 1000

To
m

 P
lu

m
m

er
, 

Pr
oj

ec
t D

ire
ct

or
, 

H
yd

ro
lo

gi
c 

an
d 

H
yd

ra
ul

ic
 S

up
po

rt

D
es

ig
n 

En
gi

ne
er

M
ar

k 
Fo

rt
ne

r, 
Q

C

C
hr

is
 F

er
ra

ri,
 

Pr
oj

ec
t M

an
ag

er
 

H
yd

ro
lo

gy
 &

 
H

yd
ra

ul
ic

s

Yi
 S

he
n,

 H
yd

ro
lo

gy
 

an
d 

H
yd

ra
ul

ic
s

M
ic

ha
el

 P
an

te
ll,

 
H

yd
ro

lo
gy

 a
nd

 
H

yd
ra

ul
ic

s

Je
nn

ife
r B

uc
ha

na
n,

 
G

IS
/M

ap
pi

ng

A
dm

in

Er
ik

 F
an

su
la

u,
 D

at
a 

C
ol

le
ct

io
n/

 P
um

p 
St

a.

Su
rv

ey
 T

ea
m

Hourly Billing Rate: 245$             115$  297$  265$          165$   223$   166$   110$   175$       400$     

Proposed Scope of Work Budget for the Natomas Basin Hydraulic Model ‐ Option No. 1 ‐ Purchase and Use the Grand Park Model
PHASE 2 ‐ DATA IDENTIFICATION/ACQUISITION MODEL REVISIONS AND DOCUMENTATION

Civil Solutions GEI Staff RFE GRAND TOTAL

To
ta

l H
ou

rs

C
S 

LA
B

O
R

 C
O

ST
S

To
ta

l H
ou

rs

G
EI

 L
A

B
O

R
 C

O
ST

S

To
ta

l H
ou

rs

R
FE

 L
A

B
O

R
 C

O
ST

S

To
ta

l H
ou

rs

TO
TA

L 
LA

B
O

R
 C

O
ST

S

Total Hours of All Tasks Requested 142 180 18 77 69 69 93 6 333 35 25 60 573
TOTAL PROJECT COSTS of REQUESTED TASKS  $        39,212  $           68,907  $         16,067  $             124,186 

BOARD PACKET 
Page 137 of 202



RD 1000

To
m

 P
lu

m
m

er
, 

Pr
oj

ec
t D

ire
ct

or
, 

H
yd

ro
lo

gi
c 

an
d 

H
yd

ra
ul

ic
 S

up
po

rt

D
es

ig
n 

En
gi

ne
er

M
ar

k 
Fo

rt
ne

r, 
Q

C

C
hr

is
 F

er
ra

ri,
 

Pr
oj

ec
t M

an
ag

er
 

H
yd

ro
lo

gy
 &

 
H

yd
ra

ul
ic

s

Yi
 S

he
n,

 H
yd

ro
lo

gy
 

an
d 

H
yd

ra
ul

ic
s

M
ic

ha
el

 P
an

te
ll,

 
H

yd
ro

lo
gy

 a
nd

 
H

yd
ra

ul
ic

s

Je
nn

ife
r B

uc
ha

na
n,

 
G

IS
/M

ap
pi

ng

A
dm

in

Er
ik

 F
an

su
la

u,
 D

at
a 

C
ol

le
ct

io
n/

 P
um

p 
St

a.

Su
rv

ey
 T

ea
m

Hourly Billing Rate: 245$             115$  297$  265$          165$   223$   166$   110$   175$       400$     

I. Project Management

Project Management 8.000016 0 8  $          1,960 0.6667 8.000016 0 0 0 0 8.667  $             2,318 0 0 0  $ -   17 4,278$

Coordination & Board Meetings 8.000016 0 8  $          1,960 0.6667 8.000016 2.6667 2.6667 2.6667 2.6667 19.33  $             4,089 2.666672 0 2.6667  $              467 30 6,515$

FEMA Coordination 9.6 0 9.6  $          2,352 1.2 9.6 0 0 0 0 10.8  $             2,900 0 0 0  $ -   20 5,252$

FEMA Modeling/Mapping Coordination 9.6 0 9.6  $          2,352 1.2 9.6 0 0 0 0 10.8  $             2,900 0 0 0  $ -   20 5,252$

Coordination with SAFCA/External Levee Certification 
and Sankey Rd. 

4.8 0 4.8  $          1,176 0 4.8 0 0 0 0 4.8  $             1,272 0 0 0  $ -   10 2,448$

Coordination with City/City's Consultant/Internal Levee 
Certification Issues/ Revisons, Project Identification/ 
Certificatinon Issues

2.4 0 2.4  $             588 0 2.4 0 0 0 0 2.4  $ 636 0 0 0  $ -   5 1,224$

Sum Total - Project Management and Meetings 42.400032 0 42.4  $        10,388 3.7333 42.400032 2.6667 2.6667 2.6667 2.6667 56.8  $           14,115 2.666672 0 2.6667  $              467 101.86676  $ 24,970 

IIA. Data Collection

Collect Record Drawings 0 0 0  $ -   0 0 0 0 0 0 0  $ -   0 0 0  $ -   0 -$  

Pump Station Data 0 0 0  $ -   0 0 0 0 0 0 0  $ -   0 0 0  $ -   0 -$  
IIB. Field Reconnaissance/Survey

Culvert/Bridge Data 0 0 0  $ -   0 0 0 0 0 0 0  $ -   0 0 0  $ -   0 -$  

Survey 0 0 0  $ -   0 0 0 0 0 0 0  $ -   0 0 0  $ -   0 -$  

Sum Total - Data Collection/Field Reconnaissance 0 0  $ -   0 0 0 0 0 0 0  $ -   0 0 0  $ -   0  $ -   

Hydrology and Hydraulcs Model Purchase(Hydrology Portioo) 0

Watershed Maps ‐ Resolve Inconsistencies between City and RD‐
1000 watershed limits, GIS Layers 0 0 0  $ -   0 0 0 0 0 0 0  $ -   0 -$  

Land Use Layer ‐ Resolve Current Land Uses from Various Source  
GIS Data

0 0 0  $ -   0 0 0 0 0 0 0  $ -   0 -$  

Resolve Infiltration Factors for Large Events to match RD‐1000 
Volumetrically 0 0 0  $ -   0 0 0 0 0 0 0  $ -   0 -$  

Input Data into SACCALC Model 0 0 0  $ -   0 0 0 0 0 0 0  $ -   0 -$  

Peer Review Responses 0 0 0  $ -   0 0 0 0 0 0 0  $ -   0 -$  

Proposed Scope of Work Budget for the Natomas Basin Hydraulic Model ‐ Option No. 1 ‐ Purchase and Use the Grand Park Model
PHASE 3 ‐ FINAL MODELING, MAPPING AND FEMA RELATED DOCUMENTATION

Civil Solutions GEI Staff RFE GRAND TOTAL

To
ta

l H
ou

rs

C
S 

LA
B

O
R

 C
O

ST
S

To
ta

l H
ou

rs

G
EI

 L
A

B
O

R
 C

O
ST

S

To
ta

l H
ou

rs

R
FE

 L
A

B
O

R
 C

O
ST

S

To
ta

l H
ou

rs

TO
TA

L 
LA

B
O

R
 C

O
ST

S

III. Hydrology

BOARD PACKET 
Page 138 of 202



RD 1000

To
m

 P
lu

m
m

er
, 

Pr
oj

ec
t D

ire
ct

or
, 

H
yd

ro
lo

gi
c 

an
d 

H
yd

ra
ul

ic
 S

up
po

rt

D
es

ig
n 

En
gi

ne
er

M
ar

k 
Fo

rt
ne

r, 
Q

C

C
hr

is
 F

er
ra

ri,
 

Pr
oj

ec
t M

an
ag

er
 

H
yd

ro
lo

gy
 &

 
H

yd
ra

ul
ic

s

Yi
 S

he
n,

 H
yd

ro
lo

gy
 

an
d 

H
yd

ra
ul

ic
s

M
ic

ha
el

 P
an

te
ll,

 
H

yd
ro

lo
gy

 a
nd

 
H

yd
ra

ul
ic

s

Je
nn

ife
r B

uc
ha

na
n,

 
G

IS
/M

ap
pi

ng

A
dm

in

Er
ik

 F
an

su
la

u,
 D

at
a 

C
ol

le
ct

io
n/

 P
um

p 
St

a.

Su
rv

ey
 T

ea
m

Hourly Billing Rate: 245$             115$  297$  265$          165$   223$   166$   110$   175$       400$     

Proposed Scope of Work Budget for the Natomas Basin Hydraulic Model ‐ Option No. 1 ‐ Purchase and Use the Grand Park Model
PHASE 3 ‐ FINAL MODELING, MAPPING AND FEMA RELATED DOCUMENTATION

Civil Solutions GEI Staff RFE GRAND TOTAL

To
ta

l H
ou

rs

C
S 

LA
B

O
R

 C
O

ST
S

To
ta

l H
ou

rs

G
EI

 L
A

B
O

R
 C

O
ST

S

To
ta

l H
ou

rs

R
FE

 L
A

B
O

R
 C

O
ST

S

To
ta

l H
ou

rs

TO
TA

L 
LA

B
O

R
 C

O
ST

S

Sum Total - Hydrology 0 0 0  $ -   0 0 0 0 0 0 0  $ -   0 0 0  $ -   0  $ -   

IV. Hydraulics
Hydrology and Hydraulcs Model Purchase(Hydraulics Portioo) 0

Terrains ‐1D/2D Cut in Thalweg ‐ 2D Areas ‐ Identify rice checks, 
culverts which will not be modeled, Document and modify Terrain, 
Convert to HEC format. 

0 0 0  $ -   0 0 0 0 0 0 0  $ -   0 -$  

Draw Streams 0 0 0  $ -   0 0 0 0 0 0 0  $ -   0 -$  

Draw and Re‐cut Cross Sections 0 0 0  $ -   0 0 0 0 0 0 0  $ -   0 -$  

Draw 2D Domains boundaries, create domains,  0 0 0  $ -   0 0 0 0 0 0 0  $ -   0 -$  

Add Break Lines ‐ Add Terrain based mesh improvements, resolve 8 
side issues

0 0 0  $ -   0 0 0 0 0 0 0  $ -   0 -$  

Input Culverts/Bridges And AS‐Built data identified by agencies 0 0 0  $ -   0 0 0 0 0 0 0  $ -   0 -$  

Internal/External Boundary Conditions (hydrology inflows, Sankey 
gap, etc.) 0 0 0  $ -   0 0 0 0 0 0 0  $ -   0 -$  

Internal Pumps 0 0 0  $ -   0 0 0 0 0 0 0  $ -   0 -$  

External Pumps 0 0 0  $ -   0 0 0 0 0 0 0  $ -   0 -$  

Add Surveyed Levee Elevations 8 0 8  $          1,960 0 0 8 8 0 0 16  $             3,104 24 5,064$

RE‐trace Weirs/Lateral Weirs into Domain. 0 0 0  $ -   0 0 0 0 0 0 0  $ -   0 -$  

Apply Hydrology to HEC‐RAS and Document 0 0 0  $ -   0 0 0 0 0 0 0  $ -   0 -$  

cHECkRAS and Resolve Issues for FEMA Compliant 12 0 12  $          2,940 0.5 1 12 12 0 0 25.5  $             5,070 38 8,010$

Floodway Analysis 40 0 40  $          9,800 0 0 16 0 8 0 24  $             3,968 64 13,768$               

Debug 2 0 2  $             490 0 0 0 0 0 0 0  $ -   2 490$

Peer Review 0 0 0  $ -   0 0 0 0 0 0 0  $ -   0 -$  

Model Calibration 0 0 0  $ -   0 0 0 0 0 0 0  $ -   0 -$  
Respond to Peer Review and Agency Comments and Re‐compute, 
and Re‐debug as needed.

20 0 20  $          4,900 0.5 1 4 4 0 0 9.5  $             1,966 30 6,866$

Sum Total - Hydraulics 82 82  $        20,090 1 2 40 24 8 0 75  $           14,107 0 0 0  $ -   157  $ 34,197 

V. Mapping

Draft Work Map (No. of Panels) 8 0 8  $          1,960 0.5 1 0 0 40 0 41.5  $             7,054 50 9,014$

FEMA LOMR Panels 16 0 16  $          3,920 1 2 0 0 40 0 43  $             7,467 59 11,387$               

`

BOARD PACKET 
Page 139 of 202



RD 1000

To
m

 P
lu

m
m

er
, 

Pr
oj

ec
t D

ire
ct

or
, 

H
yd

ro
lo

gi
c 

an
d 

H
yd

ra
ul

ic
 S

up
po

rt

D
es

ig
n 

En
gi

ne
er

M
ar

k 
Fo

rt
ne

r, 
Q

C

C
hr

is
 F

er
ra

ri,
 

Pr
oj

ec
t M

an
ag

er
 

H
yd

ro
lo

gy
 &

 
H

yd
ra

ul
ic

s

Yi
 S

he
n,

 H
yd

ro
lo

gy
 

an
d 

H
yd

ra
ul

ic
s

M
ic

ha
el

 P
an

te
ll,

 
H

yd
ro

lo
gy

 a
nd

 
H

yd
ra

ul
ic

s

Je
nn

ife
r B

uc
ha

na
n,

 
G

IS
/M

ap
pi

ng

A
dm

in

Er
ik

 F
an

su
la

u,
 D

at
a 

C
ol

le
ct

io
n/

 P
um

p 
St

a.

Su
rv

ey
 T

ea
m

Hourly Billing Rate: 245$             115$  297$  265$          165$   223$   166$   110$   175$       400$     

Proposed Scope of Work Budget for the Natomas Basin Hydraulic Model ‐ Option No. 1 ‐ Purchase and Use the Grand Park Model
PHASE 3 ‐ FINAL MODELING, MAPPING AND FEMA RELATED DOCUMENTATION

Civil Solutions GEI Staff RFE GRAND TOTAL

To
ta

l H
ou

rs

C
S 

LA
B

O
R

 C
O

ST
S

To
ta

l H
ou

rs

G
EI

 L
A

B
O

R
 C

O
ST

S

To
ta

l H
ou

rs

R
FE

 L
A

B
O

R
 C

O
ST

S

To
ta

l H
ou

rs

TO
TA

L 
LA

B
O

R
 C

O
ST

S

Organize FEMA Files 16 0 16  $          3,920 1 2 0 0 40 0 43  $             7,467 59 11,387$               

FEMA Profiles 16 0 16  $          3,920 1 2 0 0 60 0 63  $           10,787 79 14,707$               

Sum Total - Mapping 56 56  $        13,720 3.5 7 0 0 180 0 190.5  $           32,775 0 0 0  $ -   246.5  $ 46,495 

VI. TSDN Documentation

Draft Report 21 0 21  $          5,145 0.7 7 0 0 5.6 2.8 16.1  $             3,301 37 8,446$

Final Report 40 0 40  $          9,800 2 20 0 0 8 8 38  $             8,102 78 17,902$               

Sum Total - Documentation 61 61  $        14,945 2.7 27 0 0 13.6 10.8 54.1  $           11,403 0 0 0  $ -   115.1  $ 26,348 

BOARD PACKET 
Page 140 of 202



RD 1000

To
m

 P
lu

m
m

er
, 

Pr
oj

ec
t D

ire
ct

or
, 

H
yd

ro
lo

gi
c 

an
d 

H
yd

ra
ul

ic
 S

up
po

rt

D
es

ig
n 

En
gi

ne
er

M
ar

k 
Fo

rt
ne

r, 
Q

C

C
hr

is
 F

er
ra

ri,
 

Pr
oj

ec
t M

an
ag

er
 

H
yd

ro
lo

gy
 &

 
H

yd
ra

ul
ic

s

Yi
 S

he
n,

 H
yd

ro
lo

gy
 

an
d 

H
yd

ra
ul

ic
s

M
ic

ha
el

 P
an

te
ll,

 
H

yd
ro

lo
gy

 a
nd

 
H

yd
ra

ul
ic

s

Je
nn

ife
r B

uc
ha

na
n,

 
G

IS
/M

ap
pi

ng

A
dm

in

Er
ik

 F
an

su
la

u,
 D

at
a 

C
ol

le
ct

io
n/

 P
um

p 
St

a.

Su
rv

ey
 T

ea
m

Hourly Billing Rate: 245$             115$  297$  265$          165$   223$   166$   110$   175$       400$     

Proposed Scope of Work Budget for the Natomas Basin Hydraulic Model ‐ Option No. 1 ‐ Purchase and Use the Grand Park Model
PHASE 3 ‐ FINAL MODELING, MAPPING AND FEMA RELATED DOCUMENTATION

Civil Solutions GEI Staff RFE GRAND TOTAL

To
ta

l H
ou

rs

C
S 

LA
B

O
R

 C
O

ST
S

To
ta

l H
ou

rs

G
EI

 L
A

B
O

R
 C

O
ST

S

To
ta

l H
ou

rs

R
FE

 L
A

B
O

R
 C

O
ST

S

To
ta

l H
ou

rs

TO
TA

L 
LA

B
O

R
 C

O
ST

S

Total Hours of All Tasks Requested 241 241 11 78 43 27 204 13 376 3 0 3 620
TOTAL PROJECT COSTS of REQUESTED TASKS  $        59,143  $           72,399  $              467  $             132,009 

BOARD PACKET 
Page 141 of 202



RECLAMATION DISTRICT NO. 1000
OPTION No. 1 ‐ PROPOSED BUDGET ASSUMING PURCHASE OF GRANDPARK EXISTING CONDITION HYDROLOGIC AND HYDRAULIC MODEL

AUGUST 31, 2020Subtasks
Estimated 
Duration

2nd 1st  2nd 1st  2nd 1st  2nd 1st  2nd 1st  2nd 1st  2nd 1st  2nd 1st  2nd 1st  2nd 1st  2nd 1st  2nd 1st  2nd 1st  2nd 1st  2nd 1st  2nd

I. Project Management
Project Management 13 Months

Three Coordination Meetings 
RD-1000 Board Meeting

FEMA Coordination  (One Meeting)

FEMA Modeling/Mapping Coordination (Two Meetings)

Coordination with SAFCA/External Levee Certification and Sankey Rd.  (One Meeting)

Coordination with City/City's Consultant/Internal Levee Certification Issues/ Revisons, Project Identification/ Certificatinon 
Issues

Collect Record Drawings 2 Weeks

Pump Station Data 2 Weeks

IIB. Field Reconnaissance/Survey
Culvert/Bridge Data 2 Weeks

Survey (3-days) 2 Weeks

Hydrology and Hydrology Purchase

Watershed Maps - Resolve Inconsistencies between City and RD-1000 watershed limits, GIS Layers 1 Week

Land Use Layer - Resolve Current Land Uses from Various Source  GIS Data 1 Week

Resolve Infiltration Factors for Large Events to match RD-1000 Volumetrically 1 Week

Input Data into SACCALC Model 2 Weeks

Simulate and Review Results/ Documentation 4 Weeks
Peer Review 2 Weeks

Peer Review Responses 4 Weeks

Terrains -1D/2D Cut in Thalweg - 2D Areas - Identify rice checks, culverts which will not be modeled, Document and modify 
Terrain, Convert to HEC format. 2 Weeks

Draw Streams 1 Week

Draw and Re-cut Cross Sections 2 Weeks

Draw 2D Domains boundaries, create domains, 2 Weeks

Add Break Lines - Add Terrain based mesh improvements, resolve 8 side issues 2 Weeks

Input Culverts/Bridges And AS-Built data identified by agencies 2 Weeks

Internal/External Boundary Conditions (hydrology inflows, Sankey gap, etc.) 2 Weeks

Internal Pumps 2 Weeks

External Pumps 2 Weeks

Add Surveyed Levee Elevations 2 Weeks

RE-trace Weirs/Lateral Weirs into Domain. 2 Weeks

Apply Hydrology to HEC-RAS and Document 4 Weeks

cHECkRAS and Resolve Issues for FEMA Compliant 2 Weeks

Floodway Analysis 2 Weeks

Run and Debug Model Simulations 8 Weeks

Peer Review 4 Weeks

Model Calibration 4 Weeks

Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June Jul Aug Sept Oct

IIA. Data Collection

III. Hydrology

IV. Hydraulics

Nov Dec

BOARD PACKET 
Page 142 of 202



RECLAMATION DISTRICT NO. 1000
OPTION No. 1 ‐ PROPOSED BUDGET ASSUMING PURCHASE OF GRANDPARK EXISTING CONDITION HYDROLOGIC AND HYDRAULIC MODEL

AUGUST 31, 2020Respond to Peer Review and Agency Comments and Re-compute, and Re-debug as needed. 4 Weeks

Draft Work Map (No. of Panels) 2 Months

FEMA LOMR Panels 4 Weeks

Organize FEMA Files 4 Weeks

FEMA Profiles 4 Weeks

Peer Review 4 Weeks

Final Maps 6 Weeks

Draft Report 6 Weeks

Peer Review 4 Weeks

Final Report 6 Weeks

V. Mapping

VI. TSDN Documentation

BOARD PACKET 
Page 143 of 202



Statement of Qualifications for Natomas Basin Hydraulic Model 

GEI Consultants, Inc. Appendix A Reclmation District No. 1000 BOARD PACKET 
Page 144 of 202



Statement of Qualifications for Natomas Basin Hydraulic Model 

Civil Engineering Solutions, Inc. 2 Reclmation District No. 1000 BOARD PACKET 
Page 145 of 202



Statement of Qualifications for Natomas Basin Hydraulic Model 

Civil Engineering Solutions, Inc. 3 Reclmation District No. 1000 BOARD PACKET 
Page 146 of 202



Statement of Qualifications for Natomas Basin Hydraulic Model 

Civil Engineering Solutions, Inc. 4 Reclmation District No. 1000 BOARD PACKET 
Page 147 of 202



Statement of Qualifications for Natomas Basin Hydraulic Model 
 

Civil Engineering Solutions, Inc. 5 Reclmation District No. 1000 

 

BOARD PACKET 
Page 148 of 202



Statement of Qualifications for Natomas Basin Hydraulic Model 
 

Civil Engineering Solutions, Inc. 6 Reclmation District No. 1000 

 

BOARD PACKET 
Page 149 of 202



Statement of Qualifications for Natomas Basin Hydraulic Model 

Civil Engineering Solutions, Inc. 7 Reclmation District No. 1000 BOARD PACKET 
Page 150 of 202



Statement of Qualifications for Natomas Basin Hydraulic Model 

Civil Engineering Solutions, Inc. 8 Reclmation District No. 1000 BOARD PACKET 
Page 151 of 202



Statement of Qualifications for Natomas Basin Hydraulic Model 

GEI Consultants, Inc. Appendix A Reclmation District No. 1000 BOARD PACKET 
Page 152 of 202



Statement of Qualifications for Natomas Basin Hydraulic Model 

Civil Engineering Solutions, Inc. 2 Reclmation District No. 1000 BOARD PACKET 
Page 153 of 202



Statement of Qualifications for Natomas Basin Hydraulic Model 

Civil Engineering Solutions, Inc. 3 Reclmation District No. 1000 BOARD PACKET 
Page 154 of 202



Statement of Qualifications for Natomas Basin Hydraulic Model 

Civil Engineering Solutions, Inc. 4 Reclmation District No. 1000 BOARD PACKET 
Page 155 of 202



Statement of Qualifications for Natomas Basin Hydraulic Model 

Civil Engineering Solutions, Inc. 5 Reclmation District No. 1000 BOARD PACKET 
Page 156 of 202



Statement of Qualifications for Natomas Basin Hydraulic Model 

GEI Consultants, Inc. Appendix B Reclmation District No. 1000 BOARD PACKET 
Page 157 of 202



Statement of Qualifications for Natomas Basin Hydraulic Model

Civil Engineering Solutions, Inc. 

Statement of Qualifications for Natomas Basin Hydraulic Model 

2 Reclmation District No. 1000 BOARD PACKET 
Page 158 of 202



RECLAMATION DISTRICT 1000 

Item 6.2 – Page 1 

DATE:  OCTOBER 9, 2020 AGENDA ITEM NO. 6.2 

TITLE: Property Acquisition 

SUBJECT: Review and Consider Authorizing the General Manager to Acquire Property 
(Lone Tree Canal) 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 

Reclamation District No. 1000 (RD 1000; District) was recently approached by The Greenbriar 
Project Owner, LLC (a project specific entity created by Integral Communities), regarding their 
28.3 acre Lone Tree Canal Preserve which serves as a portion of the habitat mitigation strategy 
for the Greenbriar development project (Attachment No. 1). The preserve includes 
approximately 5,200 lineal feet of the Lone Tree Canal along the western edge of the 
development property.  The District currently holds an easement over the canal for water 
conveyance.   

The Greenbriar Project Owner obtained all required regulatory agency permits and has begun 
project construction.  Improvements to the property required under their permits are underway 
at this time.  After completion of those improvements they will record a Conservation Easement 
over the property to ensure long term preservation of the property. They will also fund a long-
term endowment which will ensure funding for maintenance and compliance with all agency 
reporting requirements in perpetuity.    

The endowment funding should ensure that the property owner will have little or no on-going 
costs associated with ownership of the property other than any charge for water used, and 
property taxes, neither of which would be applicable to the District. The approximately $770,000 
endowment The Greenbriar Project Owner is responsible for includes money for annual costs to 
cover all agency required monitoring and reporting as well as money for site security, vegetation 
management, erosion control, and mosquito abatement (Attachment No. 2).   

Integral Communities is looking for long term ownership solutions for all the mitigation 
properties.  The balance of their mitigation includes sites actively farmed for rice and alfalfa and 
will be under separate ownership.  If approved by the Board, the District would hold title to the 
Lone Tree Canal property.  The basic idea is that they complete their required improvements, 
record the conservation easement, fund the required endowment, and then “sell” the property 
to the District for $1.   

RECOMMENDATION: 

Staff recommends the Board review and consider authorizing the General Manager to Acquire 
Property (Lone Tree Canal). 

BOARD PACKET 
Page 159 of 202



TITLE:  Property Acquisition – Lone Tree Canal 

Item 6.2 – Page 2 

FINANCIAL IMPACT: 

Unbudgeted Expense of $1 in Fiscal Year 2020/2021. 

ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Lone Tree Canal – Proposal Summary
2. Lone Tree Canal Preserve – SSMP and PAR

STAFF RESPONSIBLE FOR REPORT: 

____________________________________________ Date: 10/02/2020 
Kevin L. King, General Manager 

BOARD PACKET 
Page 160 of 202



8/31/20 

THE GREENBRIAR PROJECT OWNER, LLC 

Kevin L. King 
General Manager 
Reclamation District 1000 

Re: Lone Tree Canal Mitigation Property Summary/Proposal 

Mr. King, 

Pursuant to our discussion I am writing to summarize the Lone Tree Canal mitigation property and our 
discussion regarding the Reclamation District taking ownership of the property. 

The 28.3 acre Lone Tree Canal Preserve is currently owned by The Greenbriar Project Owner, LLC (a 
project specific entity created by Integral Communities) and serves as a portion of the habitat mitigation 
strategy for the Greenbriar development project (now referred to as North Lake).  The preserve includes 
approximately 5,200 lineal feet of the Lone Tree Canal along the western edge of the development 
property.  RD 1000 currently holds an easement over the canal for water conveyance.   

The Greenbriar Project Owner obtained all required regulatory agency permits and has begun project 
construction.  Improvements to the property required under our permits are underway at this time.  
After completion of those improvements we will record a Conservation Easement over the property to 
ensure long term preservation of the property. We will also fund a long term endowment which will 
ensure funding for maintenance and compliance with all agency reporting requirements in perpetuity.  

That endowment funding should ensure that the property owner will have little or no on-going costs 
associated with ownership of the property other than any charge for water used, and property taxes- 
both of which I understand RD 1000 to be uniquely positioned to handle.  The approximately $770,000 
endowment (details previously provided to you) we are responsible for includes money for annual costs 
to cover all agency required monitoring and reporting as well as money for site security, vegetation 
management, erosion control, and mosquito abatement.   

Integral Communities is looking for long term ownership solutions for all the mitigation properties.  The 
balance of our mitigation includes sites actively farmed for rice and alfalfa and will be under separate 
ownership.  I believe RD 1000 is uniquely positioned to hold title to the Lone Tree Canal property.  My 
basic idea is that we complete our required improvements, record the conservation easement, fund the 
required endowment and then “sell” the property to the District for $1.   

Please let me know if you are interested in pursuing this further and what the next steps would be if so. 

Sincerely, 

Kevin Fryer 
Integral Communities 
925-899-5065

BOARD PACKET 
Page 161 of 202

AGENDA ITEM 6.2
ATTACHMENT NO. 1



Greenbriar Development Project 
Lone Tree Canal Reserve 
Site Specific Management Plan 
February 2017 

Prepared for: 
Greenbriar Project Owner, LP 
500 La Gonda Way, Suite 102
Danville, CA 94526

Prepared by: 
HELIX Environmental Planning, Inc. 
11 Natoma Street, Suite 155 
Folsom, CA 95630 

BOARD PACKET 
Page 162 of 202

AGENDA ITEM 6.2
ATTACHMENT NO. 2



This page intentionally left blank 

BOARD PACKET 
Page 163 of 202



Site Specific Management Plan: Lone Tree Canal Reserve / Greenbriar Development Project / GPO-01 / February 2017 i 

Table of Contents 

Chapter 1.0 Introduction ....................................................................................................................... 1 

1.1 Background ..................................................................................................................................... 1 

1.2 Goals and Objectives ...................................................................................................................... 2 

1.2.1 Type and Area of Habitat to be Preserved .................................................................................. 2 

1.2.2 Type and Area of Habitat to be Restored and Enhanced ............................................................ 2 

1.3 Site Selection .................................................................................................................................. 3 

1.4 Ownership Status, Legal Arrangements and Protection Instrument ............................................... 3 

Chapter 2.0 Project Background ........................................................................................................... 4 

2.1 Project Location and Summary ....................................................................................................... 4 

2.1.1 Location of Greenbriar Development Project ............................................................................. 4 

2.1.2 Summary of Greenbriar Development Project ............................................................................ 4 

2.1.3 Summary of the Greenbriar Conservation Strategy .................................................................... 4 

2.1.4 Project Schedule ........................................................................................................................ 11 

2.2 Project Impacts .............................................................................................................................. 11 

2.2.1 Jurisdictional Waters ................................................................................................................. 11 

2.2.2 Special-Status Species............................................................................................................... 11 

Chapter 3.0 Lone Tree Canal Reserve Description ............................................................................ 13 

3.1 Reserve Location .......................................................................................................................... 13 

3.2 Existing Land Use ......................................................................................................................... 13 

3.3 Topography ................................................................................................................................... 13 

3.4 Soils............................................................................................................................................... 13 

3.5 Hydrology ..................................................................................................................................... 13 

3.6 Proposed Enhancement ................................................................................................................. 14 

3.7 Habitat Types ................................................................................................................................ 14 

3.7.1 Grassland................................................................................................................................... 14 

3.7.2 Seasonal Wetland ...................................................................................................................... 14 

3.7.3 Active Canal .............................................................................................................................. 15 

3.8 Aquatic Functions and Values ...................................................................................................... 15 

3.9 Jurisdictional Waters ..................................................................................................................... 15 
3.10 NBHCP Covered Species ................................................................................................... 15 

3.10.1 Western Pond Turtle 17 

3.10.2 Giant Garter Snake 17 

BOARD PACKET 
Page 164 of 202



 

 
Site Specific Management Plan: Lone Tree Canal Reserve / Greenbriar Development Project / GPO-01 / February 2017 ii 

3.10.3 Tri-colored Blackbird 17 

3.10.4 Western Burrowing Owl 17 

3.10.1 Aleutian Canada Goose ............................................................................................................. 17 
3.10.2 Swainson’s Hawk 18 

3.10.3 White-faced Ibis 18 

Chapter 4.0 Greenbriar Conservation Strategy ................................................................................... 19 

4.1 Overall Conservation Strategy ...................................................................................................... 19 

4.2 Conservation Strategy at the Lone Tree Canal Reserve ................................................................ 19 

Chapter 5.0 Maintenance and Long-Term Management .................................................................... 20 

5.1 Land Use ....................................................................................................................................... 20 
5.2 Aquatic Resources .............................................................................................................. 20 
5.3 Reserve Operations ............................................................................................................. 21 

5.3.1 Hunting ..................................................................................................................................... 21 

5.3.2 Other Public Incursion .............................................................................................................. 21 

5.3.3 Community Outreach ................................................................................................................ 21 
5.3.4 Reserve Maintenance 21 

5.3.5 Water Levels in Lone Tree Canal ............................................................................................. 22 
5.3.6 Summary of Reserve Management Activities 23 

5.4 Biological Monitoring ................................................................................................................... 24 
5.4.1 Site Condition 24 

5.4.2 Photo-documentation 24 

5.4.3 General Avian and Wildlife Survey 24 

5.5 Reporting....................................................................................................................................... 24 

Chapter 6.0 Adaptive Management Plan ............................................................................................ 25 

Chapter 7.0 Transfer and Replacement .............................................................................................. 26 
7.1 Transfer ............................................................................................................................... 26 
7.2 Replacement ....................................................................................................................... 26 

Chapter 8.0 References ....................................................................................................................... 27 

8.1 Literature Cited ............................................................................................................................. 27 
 
  

BOARD PACKET 
Page 165 of 202



 

 
Site Specific Management Plan: Lone Tree Canal Reserve / Greenbriar Development Project / GPO-01 / February 2017 iii 

 
List of Tables 

 
Table 1. Existing Habitat in the Lone Tree Canal Reserve ....................................................................... 14 
Table 2. Status of NBHCP Covered Species with Potential to Occur on the Lone Tree Canal Reserve .. 16 
Table 3. Proposed Land Uses in the Greenbriar Project Reserves (acres) ................................................ 19 
Table 4. Summary of Reserve Management Activities ............................................................................ 23 
 
 

List of Figures 
 
Figure 1. Project Locations in the Region ................................................................................................... 5 
Figure 2. Environmental Setting and Land Use .......................................................................................... 7 
Figure 3. Greenbriar Project Site and Off-Site Improvement Lands Development Design........................ 9 
 
 

BOARD PACKET 
Page 166 of 202



 

 
Site Specific Management Plan: Lone Tree Canal Reserve / Greenbriar Development Project / GPO-01 / February 2017 iv 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 

This page intentionally left blank 
 

BOARD PACKET 
Page 167 of 202



 

 

 
Site Specific Management Plan: Lone Tree Canal Reserve / Greenbriar Development Project / GPO-01 / February 2017 1 
 

Chapter 1.0 Introduction 

1.1 Background 

On behalf of Greenbriar Project Owner, LP (Project Applicant), HELIX Environmental Planning, Inc. 
(HELIX) has prepared this Site Specific Management Plan (Plan) to serve as a guide for establishment, 
maintenance and long-term management of the Lone Tree Canal Reserve, that would occur in 
conjunction with the proposed Greenbriar Development Project (Project). As part of the Greenbriar 
Conservation Strategy, which involves the establishment of several reserves in the Natomas Basin (i.e., 
Lone Tree Canal Reserve, North Nestor Reserve, Moody Reserve, Spangler Reserve), implementation of 
the Lone Tree Canal Reserve is intended to offset in part Project impacts to state and federal listed 
species and to conserve and restore habitat for species covered by the Natomas Basin Habitat 
Conservation Plan (NBHCP; Covered Species; City of Sacramento et al. 2003).  

The Project’s planned development activities have the potential to impact federal- and state-listed 
species including the federal- and state-listed as threatened giant garter snake (GGS, Thamnophis gigas) 
and the state-listed as threatened Swainson’s hawk (SWHA; Buteo swainsoni). In addition, several 
species that are not federal- or state-listed, but are considered “special-status” because they are 
protected by a variety of other federal and state regulations, also have the potential to be impacted by 
development activities on the Greenbriar Project Site and Off-site Improvement Lands.  

As outlined in this plan, the Lone Tree Canal Reserve will preserve 28.3 acres along the western edge of 
the Greenbriar Project Site, including approximately 5,200 feet of Lone Tree Canal, and will provide a 
buffer between Lone Tree Canal and the Greenbriar development. While the Lone Tree Canal Reserve is 
not intended to provide habitat for all of the special-status species impacted by the proposed project, it 
will provide high-quality habitat for many of the species potentially impacted by development activities 
on the Greenbriar Project Site and Off-site Improvement Lands and will, in conjunction with the Project’s 
other proposed reserves and additional proposed reserves, adequately offset any impacts to all special-
status species.  

This Plan is prepared in support of Section 7 consultation with the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service 
(USFWS), and an application for a Section 2081 permit from CDFW for potential incidental take of SWHA 
on the Greenbriar Project Site. Impacts to special-status species that would potentially occur as a result 
of the proposed project and the Project’s complete conservation strategy are described in a variety of 
technical documents prepared to support the above-mentioned processes including the Greenbriar 
Development Project Conservation Strategy (HELIX 2017a), Greenbriar Development Project: Greenbriar 
Project Site and Off-site Improvement Lands Biological Resources Evaluation (HELIX 2013), the 
Greenbriar Development Project Biological Assessment (HELIX 2017b), and the Greenbriar Development 
Project California Endangered Species Act (Section 2081) Incidental Take Permit Application (HELIX 

BOARD PACKET 
Page 168 of 202



 

 

 
Site Specific Management Plan: Lone Tree Canal Reserve / Greenbriar Development Project / GPO-01 / February 2017 2 
 

2017c). This plan provides a summary of the Project’s development impacts to special-status species and 
habitats as well as a summary of the Project’s proposed reserves. For further information, the reader is 
referred to the documents listed above.  

1.2 Goals and Objectives 

The goals of the proposed activities on the Lone Tree Canal Reserve are to contribute to the Project’s 
overall conservation strategy by: (1) offsetting impacts to wetland and upland habitats potentially 
utilized by listed and other special-status species; and, (2) contributing to the goals of the NBHCP by 
preserving a site that contributes to reserve connectivity in the Natomas Basin and habitat connectivity 
for GGS between the central and northern portions of the Natomas Basin.  

In order to achieve the goals contained in this Plan, the objectives are to: (1) establish the Lone Tree 
Canal Reserve to preserve 28.3 acres within the Natomas Basin in perpetuity; (2) enhance the reach of 
Lone Tree Canal between Interstate-5 and Elkhorn Boulevard as habitat for GGS; (3) enhance and 
preserve a 200-225 foot wide grassland buffer on the east bank of the canal as upland habitat for GGS. 
Management of the Lone Tree Canal Reserve will be funded by a non-wasting endowment held by a 
third party, and will be the responsibility of the Reserve Operator. Preservation will be through a 
conservation agreement that will be recorded for the property. 

1.2.1 Type and Area of Habitat to be Preserved 

The 28.3-acre Lone Tree Canal Reserve will include the approximately 5,200-foot reach of Lone Tree 
Canal between Interstate-5 and Elkhorn Boulevard. The canal is managed for drainage and flood control 
by Reclamation District (RD) 1000, which holds an easement over the canal. The RD 1000 easement area 
would be included in the Lone Tree Canal Reserve and RD 1000 maintenance activities within its 
easement would take precedence over reserve management priorities for the canal. Nevertheless, the 
Lone Tree Canal Reserve would provide additional preservation for the canal as 3.1 acres of open water 
habitat for GGS. Approximately 0.2 acre of existing seasonal wetland in the southern end of the reserve 
would be preserved as well. The environmental setting of the Lone Tree Canal Reserve is described 
further in Chapter 3.0. 

1.2.2 Type and Area of Habitat to be Restored and Enhanced 

The portion of the Lone Tree Canal Reserve outside of Lone Tree Canal (23.75 acres) is currently 
managed for agriculture, and would be restored and enhanced as grassland. Existing winter grain fields, 
disturbed areas, and abandoned ditches would be disked and seeded with a native perennial grassland 
seed mix. Agriculture would be discontinued, and the land would be managed as upland habitat for GGS 
and other NBHCP Covered Species. An additional 1.25 acres of seasonal wetland would be created along 
the east bank of Lone Tree Canal by recontouring the existing 1:1 slope of the bank to a 3:1 slope. 

BOARD PACKET 
Page 169 of 202



 

 

 
Site Specific Management Plan: Lone Tree Canal Reserve / Greenbriar Development Project / GPO-01 / February 2017 3 
 

1.3 Site Selection 

The Lone Tree Canal Reserve was chosen as a reserve site due to its importance as a connectivity 
corridor for GGS between the central and northern portions of the Natomas Basin. 

1.4 Ownership Status, Legal Arrangements and Protection 
Instrument 

The Lone Tree Canal Reserve site is under the ownership of Greenbriar Project Owner, LP. The Lone Tree 
Canal Reserve will be managed in perpetuity under a Conservation Agreement requiring that the 
property be managed for the benefit of NBHCP Covered Species in perpetuity. The Conservation 
Agreement will include the entire 28.3-acre Lone Tree Canal Reserve, will be recorded on the property, 
and will include the City of Sacramento, USFWS, and CDFW as signatories along with the Reserve 
Operator and the endowment holder.  

BOARD PACKET 
Page 170 of 202



 

 

 
Site Specific Management Plan: Lone Tree Canal Reserve / Greenbriar Development Project / GPO-01 / February 2017 4 
 

Chapter 2.0 Project Background 

2.1 Project Location and Summary 

2.1.1 Location of Greenbriar Development Project 

The Greenbriar Project Site and Off-site Improvement Lands are located within Section 4, Township 9 
North, and Section 33, Township 10 North; Range 4 East on the United States Geological Survey (USGS) 
7.5-minute “Taylor Monument” quadrangle (quad) map. Figure 1 depicts the locations of the Greenbriar 
Project Site and Off-site Improvement Lands within the region, along with the Project’s proposed 
reserves. The Greenbriar Project Site comprises a 577-acre property northwest of the Interstate-5/State 
Route 99 interchange; the Off-site Improvement Lands comprise 12.76 acres adjacent to that property. 

2.1.2 Summary of Greenbriar Development Project 

The Greenbriar Development Project is a proposed transit-oriented mixed-density residential and 
retail/commercial development, designed to incorporate the planned Green Line to the Airport Light 
Rail connection, as well as improvements previously included in the planned Metro Air Park 
development west of the Greenbriar Project Site (Figure 2). The Greenbriar Development Project would 
result in development impacts to 537.0 acres on the Greenbriar Project Site, and 5.3 acres of Off-site 
Improvement Lands, for a total of 542.3 acres. The remaining 40.0 acres of the Greenbriar Project Site 
would be avoided for potential future road improvements (1.6 acres), avoided and permanently 
conserved as the Lone Tree Canal Reserve (28.3 acres), or has already been developed and mitigated by 
another entity (10.1 acres). The remaining 7.46 acres of the Off-site Improvement Lands are existing 
pavement and development by another entity that has already been mitigated. Figure 3 depicts the 
project design.  

The Greenbriar Development Project includes approximately 3.0 acres of permanent impacts from road 
crossings over Lone Tree Canal (Figure 3). These areas are not included in the Lone Tree Canal Reserve.  

2.1.3 Summary of the Greenbriar Conservation Strategy 

The Greenbriar Development Project includes a preservation component intended to offset project 
impacts to biological resources in the Greenbriar Project Site and Off-site Improvement Lands. The 
preservation component of the project comprises 557 acres in 4 permanent reserves: Lone Tree Canal, 
North Nestor, Moody, and Spangler. The Lone Tree Canal Reserve is located along the western edge of 
the Greenbriar Project Site, and the remaining reserves are located on off-site lands in the Natomas 
Basin. A site-specific management plan consistent with the NBHCP has been prepared for each of these 
reserves, including this plan for the Lone Tree Canal Reserve. 

  

BOARD PACKET 
Page 171 of 202



Sacramento River

§̈¦5

§̈¦80

§̈¦5

·|}þ99

W. Elkhorn Boulevard

Sacramento
International

Airport

City of 
Sacramento

City of 
West Sacramento

American River

Po
we

rlin
e R

oa
d

W. Elverta Road

SU
TT

ER
 C

OU
NT

Y
PL

AC
ER

 C
OU

NT
Y

SUTTER COUNTY
SACRAMENTO COUNTY

SUTTER
COUNTY

YOLO COUNTY

Metro 
Air Park

·|}þ70

T1
0N

, R
04

E
T1

0N
, R

04
E

T1
1N

, R
04

E
T1

1N
, R

04
E

T0
9N

, R
04

E
T0

9N
, R

04
E

T0
9N

, R
04

E

City of
Woodland

T0
9N

, R
04

E

S:\PROJECTS\G\GPO-01_Greenbriar\HELIX\GIS\MXD\Effects Analysis October 2016\Figure_1_SiteVicinity_161026.mxd

Regional Locator and Site Vicinity
Job No: GPO-01     Date: October 2016

µ
15,000 07,500

Feet

_̂
Project Location

GREENBRIAR DEVELOPMENT PROJECT

Figure 1

Greenbriar 
Reserves

Legend

Jurisdictions

Sacramento International Airport

Natomas Basin

Metro Air Park

County Boundary

City Limits

Quadrangle Boundary

Greenbriar Project Site and Off-site Improvement Lands

River

Existing Natomas Basin Conservancy Reserve
Moody Reserve

Spangler Reserve

North Nestor Reserve

Conservation Easement

BOARD PACKET 
Page 172 of 202



 

 

 
Site Specific Management Plan: Lone Tree Canal Reserve / Greenbriar Development Project / GPO-01 / February 2017 6 
 

 
 
 
 
 

This page intentionally left blank 
 
 
 
 
 
  

BOARD PACKET 
Page 173 of 202



Sacramento River

§̈¦5

§̈¦80

§̈¦5

W. Elkhorn Boulevard

Sacramento
International

Airport

City of 
Sacramento

City of 
West Sacramento

American River

Po
we

rlin
e R

oa
d

W. Elverta Road

Metro 
Air Park

·|}þ70
CENTRAL MAIN CANAL

EA
ST

 D
RA

IN
AG

E 
CA

NA
L

EA
ST

 D
RA

IN
AG

E 
CA

NA
L

WEST

DRAINAGE

Prichard 
Lake Preserve

LO
NE

 
 T

RE
E 

CA
NA

L
NO

RT
H 

DR
AI

NA
GE

 C
AN

AL
EAST DRAIN

CANAL

MAIN DRAINA
G E CANAL

·|}þ99

City of 
Woodland

S:\PROJECTS\G\GPO-01_Greenbriar\HELIX\GIS\MXD\Effects Analysis October 2016\Figure_6_EnvSetting_161026.mxd

Environmental Setting
Job No: GPO-01     Date: October 2016

µ
15,000 07,500

Feet

Source: TNBC, DWR (1998, 2000, 2010)

GREENBRIAR DEVELOPMENT PROJECT

Figure 2

Aerial: ESRI 2014

Legend

Natomas Basin
River
City Limits
Primary Canals and Drains
Other Canals and Drains

Mixed Agriculture
Urban

Undeveloped

Greenbriar Project Site and 
Off-site Improvement Lands

Metro Air Park
Existing Natomas Basin 
Conservancy Reserve

Moody Reserve

Spangler Reserve
North Nestor Reserve

Conservation Easement

BOARD PACKET 
Page 174 of 202



 

 

 
Site Specific Management Plan: Lone Tree Canal Reserve / Greenbriar Development Project / GPO-01 / February 2017 8 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 

This page intentionally left blank 
 
 
  

BOARD PACKET 
Page 175 of 202



Lo
ne

 Tr
ee

 C
an

al

W. Elkhorn Boulevard

5

99
70

Meister Way

Residential Street 3 
crossing over Lone

Tree Canal

Crossing over Lone 
Tree Canal

Easement for
new water line

Elkhorn Boulevard
Improvements

Culvert replacement under 
Elkhorn Boulevard

SR 99/70 Interchange 
Improvements

DNA Light Rail

SR 99/70
Right-of-Way

New pipe culvert

Improvements to 
Reach 8

Source: Esri, DigitalGlobe, GeoEye, Earthstar Geographics, CNES/Airbus

DS, USDA, USGS, AEX, Getmapping, Aerogrid, IGN, IGP, swisstopo, and
the GIS User Community

S:\PROJECTS\G\GPO-01_Greenbriar\HELIX\GIS\MXD\Effects Analysis June 2015\figure 3_project design_150611.mxd 

Project Design
Job No: GPO-01     Date: June 2016

1,000 0500
Feet

Legend

Proposed Land Use

Greenbriar Project Site

Off-site Improvement Lands

Commercial/Retail

DNA Light Rail

Lake Open Space

Park and Ride

Park

Residential

Road

SR 70/99 Right-of-Way

School

Utilities

Lone Tree Canal Reserve

GREENBRIAR DEVELOPMENT PROJECT
        

Figure 3

Aerial: ESRI 2014

BOARD PACKET 
Page 176 of 202



 

 

 
Site Specific Management Plan: Lone Tree Canal Reserve / Greenbriar Development Project / GPO-01 / February 2017 10 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 

This page intentionally left blank 
 
  

BOARD PACKET 
Page 177 of 202



 

 

 
Site Specific Management Plan: Lone Tree Canal Reserve / Greenbriar Development Project / GPO-01 / February 2017 11 
 

2.1.4 Project Schedule 

The proposed development at the Greenbriar Project Site is expected to be phased for completion over 
a 5 to 10 year period, with construction commencing in 2017. Development on the Greenbriar Project 
Site will be constructed in at least two phases: the first phase(s) likely will involve constructing the 
proposed development north of Meister Way, and the latter phase(s) will involve constructing the 
proposed development south of Meister Way. The Lone Tree Canal Reserve will be established, 
including execution of the Conservation Agreement and installation of proposed habitat enhancement, 
during the first phase of development on the Greenbriar Project Site. 

2.2 Project Impacts 

2.2.1 Jurisdictional Waters 

The Greenbriar Development Project would result in temporary and permanent impacts to potentially 
jurisdictional waters of the U.S. and waters of the State on the project site (including the Lone Tree 
Canal Reserve) and Off-site Improvement Lands through construction of the proposed development, 
and permanent impacts to potentially jurisdictional waters of the U.S. and waters of the State on the 
Spangler Reserve site through installation of proposed habitat creation/restoration in the Spangler 
Reserve. Implementation of habitat restoration in the Lone Tree Canal Reserve would result in 
temporary impacts to 3.1 acres of jurisdictional waters of the U.S. in Lone Tree Canal. Temporary 
impacts would result from proposed recontouring of the east bank of the canal. 

Implementation of the creation/restoration and preservation component of the Project at the Spangler 
Reserve is anticipated to fully offset impacts to jurisdictional waters. The Lone Tree Canal Reserve is not 
proposed to offset any impacts to jurisdictional waters of the U.S. 

2.2.2 Special-Status Species 

Special-status species with the potential to be impacted by Project activities on the Greenbriar Project 
Site and Off-site Improvement Lands include GGS, western pond turtle (Emys marmorata), tri-colored 
blackbird (Agelaius tricolor), western burrowing owl (Athene cunicularia), Aleutian cackling goose 
(Branta canadensis leucopareia), Swainson’s hawk, white-tailed kite (Elanus leucurus), loggerhead shrike 
(Lanius ludovicianus), white-faced ibis (Plegadis chihi), bank swallow (foraging habitat only; Riparia 
riparia), and Sanford’s arrowhead (Sagittaria sanfordii) (HELIX 2013). Potential impacts to these species 
are briefly discussed below. 

The Greenbriar Project Site provides approximately 35.21 acres of suitable habitat for the federally 
threatened GGS as well as western pond turtle. Lone Tree Canal and a spur along an intersecting interior 
canal provide approximately 3.21 acres of potential aquatic habitat for GGS and western pond turtle, 
and a potentially suitable movement/dispersal corridor. Based on the definition of GGS habitat that is 
commonly used by the USFWS in Biological Opinions, including the Programmatic Biological Opinion for 

BOARD PACKET 
Page 178 of 202



 

 

 
Site Specific Management Plan: Lone Tree Canal Reserve / Greenbriar Development Project / GPO-01 / February 2017 12 
 

U.S. Army Corps of Engineers Projects with relatively small impacts on GGS (USFWS 1997), suitable 
upland habitat incorporates 200 feet of uplands adjacent to suitable aquatic habitat. Therefore 
approximately 32 acres of upland habitat adjacent to suitable aquatic habitat is present on the 
Greenbriar Project Site. This upland habitat may also be used by western pond turtle. 

Foraging habitat is present on the Greenbriar Project Site for tri-colored blackbird, western burrowing 
owl, Aleutian cackling goose, Swainson’s hawk, loggerhead shrike, white-faced ibis, and bank swallow. 
These bird species are not expected to nest on the site. One plant species, Sanford’s arrowhead, also has 
the potential to occur in Lone Tree Canal and be impacted by the proposed project.   

  

BOARD PACKET 
Page 179 of 202



 

 

 
Site Specific Management Plan: Lone Tree Canal Reserve / Greenbriar Development Project / GPO-01 / February 2017 13 
 

Chapter 3.0 Lone Tree Canal Reserve 
Description 

3.1 Reserve Location 

The Lone Tree Canal Reserve is located in the southern portion of the Natomas Basin in the City of 
Sacramento, along the western edge of the Greenbriar Project Site (Figure 1). 

3.2 Existing Land Use 

Land uses in the vicinity of the Lone Tree Canal Reserve include Interstate-5, Elkhorn Boulevard, active 
and inactive agricultural land, commercial/industrial development in the Metro Air Park, and residential 
development. The Reserve is bordered on the north by Elkhorn Boulevard, on the south by Interstate-5, 
on the east by the Greenbriar Development, and on the west by undeveloped lands in the Metro Air 
Park. 

The Lone Tree Canal Reserve consists of active agricultural land used for hay production and Lone Tree 
Canal.  

3.3 Topography 

The Lone Tree Canal Reserve is located in the Natomas Basin in the Sacramento Valley. Terrain in the 
immediate area is primarily flat, with elevations ranging from 18-23 feet above mean sea level (amsl). 
The site has been actively cultivated for decades and has been graded and leveled to create fields. There 
is no natural topography remaining in the site. 

3.4 Soils 

The Lone Tree Canal Reserve contains three soil mapping units in three soil series (NRCS 2016): Clear 
Lake clay, hardpan substratum, 0 to 1 percent slopes; Jacktone clay, drained, 0 to 2 percent slopes;  
Cosumnes silt loam, partially drained, 0 to 2 percent slopes. These soils are all described as poorly 
drained or somewhat poorly drained alluvial soils occurring on basin floors up to an elevation of 100 feet 
amsl. All have a frequency of flooding of “rare” and a frequency of ponding of “none”, and have a depth 
to water table of 0 inches. All three soil series are listed on the 2015 National Hydric Soils List. Clear Lake 
clay and Jacktone clay are predominantly clay soils with a cemented duripan layer at depths of 34 to 48 
inches. Cosumnes silt loam grades from silt loam, through silty clay loam and stratified clay loam, to clay 
with increasing depth. 

3.5 Hydrology 

Lone Tree Canal functions within the managed drainage system of the Natomas Basin, and has 
hydrologic connectivity to drainages off-site. Lone Tree Canal is approximately 3.5 miles in length, 

BOARD PACKET 
Page 180 of 202



 

 

 
Site Specific Management Plan: Lone Tree Canal Reserve / Greenbriar Development Project / GPO-01 / February 2017 14 
 

beginning at Elverta Road approximately two miles north of the reserve and terminating in the RD 1000 
West Drainage Canal approximately 3,000 feet south of Interstate-5. Water levels in the reach of Lone 
Tree Canal in the reserve are currently maintained by: (1) backwater from the West Drainage Canal, 
which inundates the southern 3,200 feet of Lone Tree Canal in the reserve; (2) a 15-inch culvert outfall 
from a GGS habitat ditch created by Metro Air Park that discharges water pumped from a groundwater 
well into Lone Tree Canal directly upstream of Elkhorn Blvd.; (3) upstream agricultural discharges into 
Lone Tree Canal and the L2 canal maintained by RD 1000 that empties into Lone Tree Canal immediately 
upstream of Elkhorn Blvd. Hydrology in the upland portion of the reserve is driven by natural 
precipitation and runoff. 

3.6 Proposed Enhancement 

Enhancement activities in Lone Tree Canal Reserve include recontouring the east bank of Lone Tree 
Canal, and seeding existing winter grain fields with a native perennial grassland seed mix. 

3.7 Habitat Types 

The dominant vegetation community and land cover type (referred to as habitat types) in the Lone Tree 
Canal Reserve is grassland, with minor amounts of open water and seasonal wetland habitat (Table 1).  

Table 1. Existing Habitat in the Lone Tree Canal Reserve 

Habitat Type Total 
Grassland 23.75 
Seasonal wetland 1.45 
Active canal (open water) 3.1 

Total 28.3 

3.7.1 Grassland 

Upland areas adjacent to Lone Tree Canal are in agricultural use for grass hay production.  

3.7.2 Seasonal Wetland 

Seasonal wetlands in the reserve consist of approximately 0.2 acre of seasonal wetland in grass hay 
fieldsat the southern end of the reserve, and emergent wetland vegetation along the water line in Lone 
Tree Canal. The seasonal wetland is characterized by seasonal dominance of non-native Italian ryegrass 
(Festuca perennis). Seasonal wetlands on the banks of Lone Tree Canal are dominated by tule 
(Schoenoplectus acutus) below the water line, and dallis grass (Paspalum dilatatum), tall flatsedge 
(Cyperus eragrostis), and bristly ox-tongue (Heminthotheca echioides) above the water line. Tules are 
periodically removed from the channel by RD 1000 to maintain flow capacity in the canal. 

BOARD PACKET 
Page 181 of 202



 

 

 
Site Specific Management Plan: Lone Tree Canal Reserve / Greenbriar Development Project / GPO-01 / February 2017 15 
 

3.7.3 Active Canal 

The reach of Lone Tree Canal in the reserve includes approximately 3.1 acres of open water habitat at 
least 12 inches deep year-round. The active channel is maintained largely free of emergent vegetation 
by RD 1000; however, the channel bottom supports herbaceous aquatic species, especially water milfoil 
(Myriophyllum spicatum) and lanceleaf water-plantain (Alisma lanceolatum). 

3.8 Aquatic Functions and Values 

Because the hydrology of Lone Tree Canal is managed by RD 1000, the functions and values are largely 
limited to wildlife habitat and maintenance of biodiversity. It does however perform some functions of 
flood attenuation, pollutant filtration, and sediment capture. Seasonal wetlands in the reserve likely 
provide minimal functions of groundwater recharge by collecting and retaining precipitation from 
surrounding uplands.  

3.9 Jurisdictional Waters 

Seasonal wetlands and Lone Tree Canal are jurisdictional waters of the U.S. and waters of the State. 

3.10 NBHCP Covered Species 

Based on analysis conducted for the Biological Resources Evaluation of the Greenbriar Project Site by 
HELIX in 2013 (HELIX 2013), 7 NBHCP Covered Species have potential to occur on the Lone Tree Canal 
Reserve. This potential is based on species’ habitat affinities and ranges, and the habitats available in the 
reserve. Of these 7 species, only white-faced ibis has been observed on the Reserve property; the 
remaining 7 species have nearest reported occurrences ranging from adjacent lands to more than 4.5 
miles from the Reserve (Table 2). 

BOARD PACKET 
Page 182 of 202



 

 

 
Site Specific Management Plan: Lone Tree Canal Reserve / Greenbriar Development Project / GPO-01 / February 2017 16 
 

Table 2. Status of NBHCP Covered Species with Potential to Occur on the Lone Tree Canal Reserve 

Species Name1 
(Common Name) 

Regulatory 
Status2 

Status on the 
Reserve3 

Status in the 
Region3 

Plants 
Sagittaria sanfordii 
(Sanford’s arrowhead) 

--/--/1B.2 No records. No records in the Natomas Basin. 

Reptiles 
Emys marmorata 
(western pond turtle) 

--/--/SSC No records. Records from Fisherman’s Lake, 
Pritchard Lake, and Elkhorn pumping 
station. 

Thamnophis gigas 
(giant garter snake) 

FT/ST/-- Observed in Lone 
Tree Canal off-site 
during surveys in 
1999 and 2003. 

104 individuals trapped in TNBC 
reserves in 2015. 

Birds 
Agelaius tricolor 
(tri-colored blackbird) 

--/--/SSC No records. No records of nesting in the Natomas 
Basin since 2011. 

Athene cunicularia 
(western burrowing owl) 

--/--/SSC No observations 
since 2012; one 
observation in Dec. 
2012. 

One record from 0.75-mile north of 
the site; numerous records from 
throughout the Natomas Basin. 

Branta canadensis leucopareia 
(Aleutian Canada goose) 

FD/--/-- No records. No records in the Natomas Basin since 
surveys began in 2004. 

Buteo swainsoni 
(Swainson’s hawk) 

--/ST/-- One observation of 
foraging in 2012; no 
nest habitat in the 
reserve. 

Documented nest sites throughout 
the Natomas Basin; one nest site <0.1-
mile northwest of the reserve. 

Lanius ludovicianus 
(loggerhead shrike) 

--/--/SSC Observed in 2005 
and 2012. 

Common, known to nest in the 
Natomas Basin. 

Plegadis chihi 
(white-faced ibis) 

--/WL/-- No records. Common and increasing in the 
Natomas Basin.  

Riparia riparia 
(bank swallow) 

--/ST/-- No records. Does not nest in the Natomas Basin. 
Migrating birds may forage. 

1Source: Biological Resources Evaluation for the Greenbriar Project Site (HELIX 2013). 
2Regulatory Status: Federal listing/State listing/Other State status. FT=Federal threatened; FD=Federal delisted; ST=State 

threatened; SSC=Species of Special Concern; WL=wait-list 
3Status taken from California Natural Diversity Database record search dated 3/19/2015, and NBHCP Effectiveness Monitoring 

Reporting for 2015 (ICF 2016) 

The Lone Tree Canal Reserve provides potential habitat for all of the NBHCP Covered Species listed in 
Table 2, and is expected to contribute to the overall multi-species conservation strategy of the NBHCP. 

BOARD PACKET 
Page 183 of 202



 

 

 
Site Specific Management Plan: Lone Tree Canal Reserve / Greenbriar Development Project / GPO-01 / February 2017 17 
 

The suitability of the Lone Tree Canal Reserve for the Covered Species listed in Table 2 is discussed in 
detail in the following sections. 

3.10.1 Western Pond Turtle 

Western pond turtle has not been observed in the Lone Tree Canal Reserve. The reserve provides 
suitable habitat for turtles in the form of Lone Tree Canal and adjacent upland basking and hibernation 
sites. 

3.10.2 Giant Garter Snake 

GGS has been observed off-site in Lone Tree Canal in focused surveys performed in 1998-1999 and 
2003, and the canal is presumed to be occupied by GGS. A habitat assessment of the Greenbriar Project 
Site conducted in 2010 considered Lone Tree Canal to be “good” quality aquatic habitat for GGS; 
however, the suitability of upland habitat on the site for overwinter hibernation was restricted by 
plowing in the fall for agriculture (Berryman 2010). Dispersal of GGS into the reserve from the south is 
limited by the long culvert under Interstate-5. North of Elkhorn Boulevard, Lone Tree Canal is connected 
to an extensive network of canals that likely support GGS, and the culvert under Elkhorn Boulevard is 
not a substantial barrier to GGS passage. 

Recountouring of the east bank of the canal is intended to improve the value of the canal and adjacent 
uplands for GGS by reducing the steepness and increasing the vegetative cover of the land-water 
interface, and by increasing the area of shallow-water foraging habitat in the canal. Cessation of 
agriculture in the adjacent uplands will increase the value of those areas as over-wintering habitat. 

3.10.3 Tri-colored Blackbird 

The Lone Tree Canal Reserve does not support nesting habitat for tri-colored blackbird. The grassland 
may provide suitable foraging habitat for flocks nesting off-site; however, there are no known nesting 
sites near the reserve. 

3.10.4 Western Burrowing Owl 

Western burrowing owl has not been observed in the Greenbriar Project Site since a lone individual was 
observed in a remnant building foundation in December of 2012 (CDFW 2012). The Lone Tree Canal 
Reserve supports potentially suitable habitat for burrowing owl in the grasslands and canal banks. 

3.10.1 Aleutian Canada Goose 

Aleutian Canada goose has not been observed in the Natomas Basin; however, the Lone Tree Canal 
Reserve supports suitable winter foraging habitat for this species in the form of grassland. 

BOARD PACKET 
Page 184 of 202



 

 

 
Site Specific Management Plan: Lone Tree Canal Reserve / Greenbriar Development Project / GPO-01 / February 2017 18 
 

3.10.2 Swainson’s Hawk 

The Lone Tree Canal Reserve does not support trees suitable for SWHA nesting; however, there are large 
trees west of the reserve, and a documented SWHA nest site less than one mile northwest of the 
reserve. The grassland habitat on the reserve provides suitable foraging habitat for Swainson’s hawks 
nesting in the region, and SWHA has been observed foraging on the Greenbriar Project Site. 

3.10.3 White-faced Ibis 

The Lone Tree Canal Reserve does not support suitable nesting or foraging habitat for white-faced ibis. 
This species nests in dense emergent marsh vegetation and forages in wet areas such as flooded fields.  

BOARD PACKET 
Page 185 of 202



 

 

 
Site Specific Management Plan: Lone Tree Canal Reserve / Greenbriar Development Project / GPO-01 / February 2017 19 
 

Chapter 4.0 Greenbriar Conservation Strategy 

4.1 Overall Conservation Strategy 

The project proponent proposes a layered, multi-species mitigation approach providing 557.1 acres of 
reserve to offset 542.3 acres of net impacts associated with the Greenbriar Development Project (1.03 
acre of reserve per 1 acre impacted). The project’s reserves include the 28.3-acre Lone Tree Canal 
Reserve, 219.1-acre North Nestor Reserve, 74.3-acre Moody Reserve, and 235.4-acre Spangler Reserve,  
all located in the Natomas Basin. Of the 557.1 acres of proposed reserve lands, rice agriculture will 
comprise approximately 46.6 percent, managed marsh complex approximately 25.8 percent, and upland 
habitat approximately 27.6 percent (Table 3). 

Table 3. Proposed Land Uses in the Greenbriar Project Reserves (acres) 

Reserve 
Rice 
Agriculture Upland 

Managed Marsh 
Complex Total 

Spangler Reserve 40.3 53.1 142.0 235.4 
Moody Reserve -- 74.3 -- 74.3 
North Nestor Reserve 219.1 -- -- 219.1 
Lone Tree Canal Reserve -- 26.5 1.8 28.3 

Total 259.4 153.9 143.8 557.1 

4.2 Conservation Strategy at the Lone Tree Canal Reserve 

The Lone Tree Canal Reserve will be managed as habitat for GGS , SWHA, and other Covered Species. 
The reserve will have no active land uses and will be undisturbed except for routine maintenance such 
as trash removal and RD 1000 maintenance activities. Entry into the reserve will be restricted by a GGS 
exclusion barrier/wrought iron fence along the eastern edge where the reserve borders the Greenbriar 
development. The GGS barrier/fence will prevent GGS from entering developed areas, and will 
discourage the entry of people and domestic animals into the reserve. The remainder of the reserve 
boundary will be fenced, with locked gates on all access roads. The perpetual management of the Lone 
Tree Canal Reserve as open space for the benefit of GGS will, along with management of rice cultivation, 
uplands, and wetlands on the other proposed reserves, offset impacts to GGS, SWHA, and other 
Covered Species resulting from the proposed Greenbriar Development Project. 

  

BOARD PACKET 
Page 186 of 202



 

 

 
Site Specific Management Plan: Lone Tree Canal Reserve / Greenbriar Development Project / GPO-01 / February 2017 20 
 

Chapter 5.0 Maintenance and Long-Term 
Management 

Management of the Lone Tree Canal Reserve will be funded by a non-wasting endowment held by a 
third party, and will be the responsibility of the Reserve Operator. Preservation will be through a 
Conservation Agreement that will be recorded for the property and will include the Reserve Operator, 
the endowment holder, the City of Sacramento, CDFW, and USFWS as signatories. 

5.1 Land Use 

This plan assumes that the Lone Tree Canal Reserve will be managed as open space in perpetuity, and 
that RD 1000 management of Lone Tree Canal as an earthen drainage and flood control channel subject 
to periodic vegetation removal will continue unchanged. The conservation agreement will not affect RD 
1000 management or its easement on Lone Tree Canal. 

5.2 Aquatic Resources 

Regulatory authority, regulated activities, and permit requirements for impacts to aquatic resources are 
defined in Sections 404 and 401 of the Clean Water Act, Section 1602 of the California Fish and Game 
Code, and the Porter Cologne Water Quality Control Act. Direct impacts include placement of fill, 
discharge of pollutants, dredging, extraction of materials from the bed or banks, and diversion; indirect 
impacts include alteration of surface or subsurface hydrology, and vegetation removal. 

Impacts to jurisdictional aquatic resources in the Lone Tree Canal Reserve are limited to temporary 
imapcts to the east bank of the canal during bank recountouring that will occur prior to the 
establishment of the reserve. Permanent impacts to Lone Tree Canal associated with proposed crossings 
at Elkhorn Boulevard, Meister Way, and Residential Street 3 that are part of the Greenbriar 
Development Project are located outside of the Lone Tree Canal Reserve, and will be offset by wetland 
creation at the Spangler Reserve.  

Temporary disturbance resulting from RD 1000 channel maintenance in Lone Tree Canal is not 
associated with establishment or maintenance of the Lone Tree Canal Reserve, and is not the 
responsibility of the Greenbriar Development Project proponent or the Reserve Operator.  

Prior to any action that would result in additional direct or indirect impacts besides those described 
above, the Reserve Operator shall obtain prior approval of the signatories to the conservation 
agreement and appropriate permits from USACE, CDFW, and RWQCB. 

BOARD PACKET 
Page 187 of 202



 

 

 
Site Specific Management Plan: Lone Tree Canal Reserve / Greenbriar Development Project / GPO-01 / February 2017 21 
 

5.3 Reserve Operations 

The following conditions are intended to ensure that operation of the Lone Tree Canal Reserve is 
consistent with the goal of managing the site as habitat for Covered Species, especially GGS and SWHA. 
The intent of this plan is that the Lone Tree Canal Reserve should function in perpetuity as open space. 

5.3.1 Hunting 

Hunting shall not be allowed on the Lone Tree Canal Reserve. Signs shall be placed on the perimeter of 
the reserve stating that the property is private property managed as wildlife habitat and that hunting is 
strictly prohibited. 

5.3.2 Other Public Incursion 

All public incursion, including vehicular recreation, dumping, trash-burning, camping, loitering, parking, 
archery, or target shooting shall be prohibited on the Lone Tree Canal Reserve. Signs shall be placed on 
the perimeter of the property stating that the property is private property managed as wildlife habitat 
and that trespass is strictly prohibited.  

5.3.3 Community Outreach 

The Reserve Operator will coordinate with the Greenbriar Development Homeowners Association(s) to 
educate the community regarding the nature and purpose of the Lone Tree Canal Reserve and to engage 
in public relations and other management actions designed to reduce public incursion into the reserve. 
Such actions may include installing interpretive signs on the GGS exclusion barrier/wrought iron fence 
between the development and the reserve, educating the public about the effects of feral and domestic 
cats on wildlife, periodically presenting information to the community regarding the condition of the 
reserve and effects of unauthorized incursions (e.g., photos of trails, vandalism, displays of trash 
collected from the reserve, etc), and designing landscaping on the developed side of the barrier that 
discourages entry into the reserve.  

5.3.4 Reserve Maintenance 

Fence and Signage 

The Reserve Operator will be responsible for maintaining the reserve side of the GGS exclusion 
barrier/wrought iron fence free of vegetation, trash, and debris, and for repairing damage to the GGS 
exclusion barrier, other fencing, and signage. 

Invasive Weed Control 

Weed control will be conducted as necessary to minimize competition that could prevent the 
establishment of native species. As weeds become evident, they should be removed by hand or 
controlled with the proper herbicides. Maintenance personnel will be responsible for knowing the 

BOARD PACKET 
Page 188 of 202

chad
Sticky Note
There is no money in the PAR for community outreach.  



 

 

 
Site Specific Management Plan: Lone Tree Canal Reserve / Greenbriar Development Project / GPO-01 / February 2017 22 
 

difference between weeds and native species. All non-native plant material will be removed from the 
reserve and disposed of in a licensed landfill. 

Remedial Planting 

No container stock will be installed in the reserve. If native plant establishment is not apparent in 
portions of the reserve in the spring following installation, additional seed will be applied during the 
next October – November and supplemental watering or other remedial measures taken as indicated 
following investigation into cause(s) of establishment failure. Given the current condition of the reserve 
as non-irrigated grass hay agriculture, it is likely that native seed will successfully establish. 

Vegetation Clearing 

RD 1000 will maintain Lone Tree Canal within its 90 to 100-foot wide easement, primarily to maintain 
flood control functions. RD 1000 maintenance activities will include mowing upland areas for fire hazard 
reduction, and vegetation/sediment removal from the channel. Mowing is expected to occur annually 
after the end of the growing season but the timing/frequency may be adjusted to increase foraging 
value for Swainson’s hawk; vegetation/sediment removal is expected to occur every 3-4 years. 

Trash and Debris Removal 

The Reserve Operator will keep the reserve free of trash and debris. 

Shooting, Trapping, and Vermin Control 

Hunting of game and target shooting, by any means including firearms and archery, shall be prohibited 
on the Lone Tree Canal Reserve without exception. Trapping or shooting of pests, or removal of 
depredating animals, shall not occur without consultation with and written approval from USFWS and 
CDFW (this plan acknowledges that use of poison to control rodents in the banks of Lone Tree Canal will 
be at the discretion of RD 1000 and beyond the control of the Reserve Operator). 

Damage 

Damage to the reserve occurring as a result of unusual weather or vandalism will be repaired promptly.  

5.3.5 Water Levels in Lone Tree Canal 

Aquatic habitat shall be maintained throughout the GGS active season in Lone Tree Canal, in perpetuity.  
This is the legal responsibility and obligation of the MAP Property Owners’ Association (MAP POA). The 
MAP HCP includes provisions to ensure that water levels are maintained at or above 12 inches of depth.  
If water is not provided to Lone Tree Canal by the MAP to meet the habitat requirements of GGS, as 
required by the MAP HCP, and USFWS exhausts its enforcement options, water will be provided to the 
section of Lone Tree Canal within the Lone Tree Canal Reserve through the 8-inch drainpipe that is part 

BOARD PACKET 
Page 189 of 202

chad
Sticky Note
There is currently no money in the PAR for offsite disposal of removed vegetation or landfill fee. 

chad
Sticky Note
There is currently no money in the PAR for re-seeding.  Include re-seeding during Yr 2 and 3 into construction cost. 

chad
Sticky Note
Mowing should be conducted according to USFWS GGS programmatic guidelines. 



 

 

 
Site Specific Management Plan: Lone Tree Canal Reserve / Greenbriar Development Project / GPO-01 / February 2017 23 
 

of the Greenbriar Development Project design. This 8-inch drainpipe drains the detention basins/lakes 
that are part of the Greenbriar Development Project. 

Assuming this backup water responsibility was a mitigation measure in the City of Sacramento’s Draft 
EIR for the Greenbriar Project.  However, as stated in the EIR, the project applicant shall only assume 
this responsibility if it has been sufficiently demonstrated to the City of Sacramento that USFWS has 
exhausted all reasonable means to compel MAP to comply with the relevant conditions of the MAP 
Incidental Take Permit. If necessary, the Reserve Operator shall coordinate with the Greenbriar 
Development Project Homeowners Association(s) to release water from the detention basins/lakes in 
the Greenbriar Development in sufficient quantity to meet the responsibility to maintain water levels in 
Lone Tree Canal or provide water to the canal by other means.  

5.3.6 Summary of Reserve Management Activities 

Table 4 provides a summary of allowed and prohibited activities in the Lone Tree Canal Reserve. The 
Reserve Operator shall be responsible for ensuring that reserve operations comply with these 
restrictions. 

Table 4. Summary of Reserve Management Activities 

Activity Status1 
Routine Operations 

Fence and Sign Repair Allowed 
Invasive Weed Control Allowed 
Trash Removal Allowed 

Not Anticipated 
Burning for thatch or weed management Agency and Air Quality Management 

District Approval 
Construction (trails, utility lines) Agency Approval 
Trapping/Removal of Depredating Animals Agency Approval 
Release of water to maintain water levels in Lone Tree Canal Agency Approval 

Prohibited 
Development/Land Use Changes Not Allowed 
Dumping Not Allowed 
Hunting/Shooting Not Allowed 
Trash-burning Not Allowed 
Vehicular Recreation Not Allowed 
1Status of the activity in the restoration area: Agency Approval= activity is allowed after consultation with and written 

approval from USFWS and CDFW; Allowed = activity is allowed as routine operations and does not require Agency 
notification; Not Allowed = activity is not permitted.  

 

BOARD PACKET 
Page 190 of 202



 

 

 
Site Specific Management Plan: Lone Tree Canal Reserve / Greenbriar Development Project / GPO-01 / February 2017 24 
 

5.4 Biological Monitoring 

Biological monitoring of the Lone Tree Canal Reserve shall be conducted annually by a qualified 
biologist. The Reserve Operator shall be responsible for retaining a qualified biologist. The qualified 
biologist is not required to possess take permits from USFWS or CDFW.. General monitoring will consist 
of an assessment of site condition, including adherence to all operational conditions described in this 
plan, photo-documentation, and a general avian and wildlife survey.  

5.4.1 Site Condition 

The biological monitor will inspect the site and assess general site conditions in light of the reserve 
operations conditions described in this plan. The assessment will include 100 percent visual coverage of 
the reserve property, and will describe any evidence of violations of the reserve operations conditions 
described in this plan. The assessment will include the presence and condition of perimeter fencing and 
signing described in Sections 5.3.1 and 5.3.2. The survey will also include noting infestations of invasive 
weeds. 

5.4.2 Photo-documentation 

Representative photographs of the reserve will be taken from established points. 

5.4.3 General Avian and Wildlife Survey 

A general avian and wildlife survey shall be conducted on foot, by slowly walking a route that provides 
coverage of all habitats in the reserve. The surveyor will note all avian species observed or detected. 
This survey should be conducted in late March or early April, as that period is the beginning of the 
general avian breeding season, when nest-building and territorial behaviors are most evident. 

5.5 Reporting 

The Reserve Operator will prepare an annual report for submittal to the USFWS and CDFW. The annual 
report will include an assessment of the general condition of the reserve, adherence to the operations 
conditions described in this plan, photos showing site conditions, and the results of the general avian 
and wildlife survey. The report will include an accounting of the total dollar amount expended on 
maintenance and monitoring, lists of plant and animal species observed during site visits, and any 
recommendations for changes to reserve management for the coming year. The annual report will be 
submitted to USFWS and CDFW by January 31st of each year. 

 

BOARD PACKET 
Page 191 of 202



 

 

 
Site Specific Management Plan: Lone Tree Canal Reserve / Greenbriar Development Project / GPO-01 / February 2017 25 
 

Chapter 6.0 Adaptive Management Plan 

If reserve operations cannot be carried out as outlined in this plan, the Reserve Operator will notify the 
USFWS and CDFW. Modifications to this management plan may be proposed as needed and submitted 
to the USFWS, CDFW, and City of Sacramento for approval. No substantive modifications to the 
operation of the Lone Tree Canal Reserve will be made without approval by the USFWS and CDFW. 

If monitoring or other information indicates that the reserve is not progressing towards meeting the 
goals of this Plan, the Reserve Operator must notify the USFWS and CDFW as soon as possible. USFWS 
and CDFW will evaluate and pursue measures to address deficiencies in the Plan in consultation with the 
responsible parties. Measures will be implemented as necessary to ensure that the reserve meets goals 
comparable to those described in the Plan objectives including but not limited to: site modifications, 
design changes, revisions to maintenance requirements, and revisions to monitoring requirements.  

  

BOARD PACKET 
Page 192 of 202



 

 

 
Site Specific Management Plan: Lone Tree Canal Reserve / Greenbriar Development Project / GPO-01 / February 2017 26 
 

Chapter 7.0 Transfer and Replacement 

7.1 Transfer 

Any subsequent transfer of responsibilities under this management plan to a different Reserve Operator 
shall be requested by the Reserve Operator in writing to USFWS and CDFW, and shall require written 
approval by those agencies. 

7.2 Replacement 

If the Reserve Operator fails to implement the reserve operations conditions described in this plan and is 
notified of such failure in writing by USFWS or CDFW, the Reserve Operator shall have 90 days to cure 
such failure. If failure is not cured within 90 days, the Reserve Operator may request a meeting with the 
agencies to resolve the failure. Such meeting shall occur within 30 days or a longer period if approved by 
the agencies. Based on the outcome of the meeting, or if no meeting is requested, the agencies may 
designate a replacement Reserve Manager in writing by amendment of this plan. If the Reserve 
Operator fails to designate a replacement, then such public or private land or resource management 
organization as is acceptable to and directed by the agencies may enter onto the reserve property in 
order to fulfill the purposes of this plan. 

 

  

BOARD PACKET 
Page 193 of 202



 

 

 
Site Specific Management Plan: Lone Tree Canal Reserve / Greenbriar Development Project / GPO-01 / February 2017 27 
 

Chapter 8.0 References 

8.1 Literature Cited 

Berryman, E. 2010. Giant Garter Snake Habitat, Greenbriar Property, Sacramento. Memo to AKT 
Development Corporation, dated October 4. 

California Department of Fish and Wildlife (CDFW). 2012. Staff Report on Burrowing Owl Mitigation. 
March 7. 

City of Sacramento, Sutter County, and Natomas Basin Conservancy. 2003. Final Natomas Basin Habitat 
Conservation Plan. Prepared for U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service and California Department of Fish 
and Game. 

HELIX Environmental Planning, Inc. (HELIX). 2017a. Greenbriar Development Project Conservation 
Strategy. Unpublished report. 

_____. 2017b. Greenbriar Development Project Biological Assessment. Prepared for Greenbriar Property 
Owner, LP. February. 

_____. 2017c. Greenbriar Development Project California Endangered Species Act (Section 2081) 
Incidental Take Permit Application. Prepared for Greenbriar Property Owner, LP. September. 

_____. 2016. Greenbriar Development Project: Analysis of the Effects on the Greenbriar Development 
Project on the Natomas Basin Habitat Conservation Plan. Prepared for Greenbriar Property 
Owner, LP. August. 

_____. 2013. Greenbriar Development Project: Greenbriar Project Site and Off-site Improvement Lands 
Biological Resources Evaluation. Prepared for Greenbriar Property Owner, LP. June. 

ICF International. 2016. Biological Effectiveness Monitoring for the Natomas Basin Habitat Conservation 
Plan Area 2015 Annual Survey Results. Final. April. (ICF 00890.10.) Sacramento, CA. Prepared for 
The Natomas Basin Conservancy, Sacramento, CA. 

Natural Resource Conservation Service (NRCS) 2016). Web Soil Survey. 
<http://websoilsurvey.sc.egov.usda.gov/App/WebSoilSurvey.aspx> Accessed February 15, 2016. 

United States Fish and Wildlife Service (USFWS). 1997. Programmatic Biological Opinion for U.S. Army 
Corps of Engineers Projects with relatively small impacts on GGS. 

 

BOARD PACKET 
Page 194 of 202

http://websoilsurvey.sc.egov.usda.gov/App/WebSoilSurvey.aspx


3/28/2019 3:49 PM

Activity/Actions 
Required SSMP Section Responsible Party Description Frequency 

Required Actions Required Unit Number of Units  Cost/Unit  Total Cost Divide 
Years

 Annual Cost (Part 1) or 
Cost (Part 2) 

PART 1.  MONITORING AND MANAGEMENT COSTS
Element A.1 - Biological Monitoring

Task A.1-1 – 

Vegetation 
Monitoring

5.4 RO = Reserve 
Operator

Conduct vegetation 
monitoring.

Years 1, 5, 10, 
15, 20, and 

every 5 years 
thereafter in 
perpetuity

Conduct field mapping to determine 
plant community types present and 
species composition.

Hours 6 100.00               600.00           5 120.00                           

Task A.1-2 – 

Vegetation 
Monitoring

5.4 RO Digitally link data to GIS 
database.

5 Years Download GPS data and link to GIS 
database. Hours 2 100.00               200.00           5 40.00                             

Task A.1-3 – 

Vegetation 
Monitoring

5.4 RO  Analyze data. 5 Years
Analyze monitoring data and 
compare with baseline and previous 
years' data.

Hours 2 100.00               200.00           5 40.00                             

Task A.1-4 – 

Biological 
Monitoring

5.4 RO  Transporation Cost Annually 
Daily cost for transportation, 
including ATV, vehicle, and/or GPS 
as appropriate. 

Days 1 250.00               250.00           1 250.00                           

Subtotal 450.00$                         

Element A.2 - Special-Status Species Monitoring

Task A.2-1 – Giant 
Garter Snake 5.4 RO

Monitoring and reporting for 
Giant Garter Snake, Western 
Pond Turtle and habitat. 

5 Years
Two surveys during active period for 
visual occurance and presence of 
habitat. Reporting. 

Hours 16 125.00               2,000.00        5 400.00                           

Task A.2-2 – Nesting 
Raptors and General 
Wildlife

5.4 RO

Monitoring and reporting for 
nesting raptors- targeting 
SWHA.  General wildlife 
survey. 

5 Years
Two surveys during active nesting 
period (April through July).  And 
reporting. 

Hours 8 100.00               800.00           5 160.00                           

Task A.2-3 – Special-
Status Species 
Monitoring

5.4 RO Transporation Cost Annually 
Daily cost for transportation, 
including ATV, vehicle, and/or GPS 
as appropriate. 

Days 3 250.00               750.00           5 150.00                           

Subtotal 710.00$                         

Estimated Endowment Costs for Long-Term Resources Management Associated with the Greenbriar Reserve (28.3-acre Lone Tree 

Reserve), City of Sacramento, California. March 28, 2019.

O:\Greenbriar Development\PAR\PARs 2019\PAR Greenbriar Lone Tree 3-28-2019.xls Lone Tree PAR Page 1 of 7BOARD PACKET 
Page 195 of 202



3/28/2019 3:49 PM

Activity/Actions 
Required SSMP Section Responsible Party Description Frequency 

Required Actions Required Unit Number of Units  Cost/Unit  Total Cost Divide 
Years

 Annual Cost (Part 1) or 
Cost (Part 2) 

Estimated Endowment Costs for Long-Term Resources Management Associated with the Greenbriar Reserve (28.3-acre Lone Tree 

Reserve), City of Sacramento, California. March 28, 2019.

Element B.1 - Vegetation Management

Task B.1-1 – 
Vegetation 
Management 

5.3.4 RO

Conduct site inspection to 
determine presence of and 
document invasive vegetation 
during late February to mid-
March.  Document thatch 
levels.

Seasonally 

Review guidance materials on what 
species may threaten site and how to 
manage for them; Conduct site 
inspection to determine presence and 
document location of invasive 
vegetation by filling out monitoring 
form, taking photos, GPS 
documentation and mapping. 
Determine wetland vegetation 
management / invasive plant control. 
Document thatch levels. 

Hours 8 140.00               1,120.00        1 1,120.00$                      

Task B.1-2 – 
Vegetation 
Management 

5.3.4 RO

Use weed control chemicals or 
mow using hand equipment to 
control invasive plants 
(grazing is preferred method).

Annually Purchase weed control chemicals. ls 1 200.00               200.00           1 200.00                           

Task B.1-3 – 
Vegetation 
Management 

5.3.4 RO

Use weed control chemicals or 
mow using hand equipment to 
control invasive plants 
(grazing is preferred method).

Annually Purchase or rent field work items--
protective items, spray rig, etc. ls 1 250.00               250.00           1 250.00                           

Task B.1-4 – 
Vegetation 
Management

5.3.4 RO

Use weed control chemicals or 
mow using hand equipment to 
control invasive plants 
(grazing is preferred method).

Annually Apply weed control chemicals or 
mow affected areas. ls 1 1,500.00            1,500.00        1 1,500.00                        

Task B.1-5 – 
Vegetation 
Management 

5.3.4 RO Manage thatch by annual 
string trimming.  

Annually Biological monitoring during string 
trimming activities. 

Hours 24 100.00               2,400.00        1 2,400.00$                      

Task B.1-6 – 
Vegetation 
Management 

5.3.4 RO Manage thatch by annual 
string trimming.  

Annually

Use string trimmers to clear 
excessive thatch annually.  Cut to 6 
inches or greater in stubble height 
and according to GGS guidelines.

Acres 26.5 400.00               10,600.00      1 10,600.00$                    

Task B.1-7 – 
Vegetation 
Management 

5.3.4 RO Supervise vegetation 
management activities.

Annually Supervise vegetation management 
activities and agency coordination.

Hours 4 140.00               560.00           1 560.00                           

O:\Greenbriar Development\PAR\PARs 2019\PAR Greenbriar Lone Tree 3-28-2019.xls Lone Tree PAR Page 2 of 7BOARD PACKET 
Page 196 of 202



3/28/2019 3:49 PM

Activity/Actions 
Required SSMP Section Responsible Party Description Frequency 

Required Actions Required Unit Number of Units  Cost/Unit  Total Cost Divide 
Years

 Annual Cost (Part 1) or 
Cost (Part 2) 

Estimated Endowment Costs for Long-Term Resources Management Associated with the Greenbriar Reserve (28.3-acre Lone Tree 

Reserve), City of Sacramento, California. March 28, 2019.

Task B.1-8 – 
Vegetation 
Management 

5.3.4 RO Transporation Cost Annually 
Daily cost for transportation, 
including ATV, vehicle, and/or GPS 
as appropriate. 

Days 5 250.00               1,250.00        1 1,250.00                        

Subtotal 17,880.00$                    

Element B.2  – Sedimentation and Erosion

Task B.2-1 – 
Sedimentation and 
Erosion

5.4 RO
Inspect site for sedimentation 
and/or erosion problems.

Annually, after 
the first heavy, 

continuous 
rainfall period 

> 1 inch 

Following a rainfall period > 1 inch, 
document any sedimentation or 
erosion problems on maintenance 
monitoring form.

Hours 1 140.00               140.00           1 140.00$                         

Task B.2-2 – 
Sedimentation and 
Erosion

5.4 RO Transporation Cost Annually 
Daily cost for transportation, 
including ATV, vehicle, and/or GPS 
as appropriate. 

Days 0.5 250.00               125.00           1 125.00                           

Subtotal 265.00$                         

Element C.1 – Site Security

Task C.1-1 - Site 
Security 5.4 RO

Inspect site for unauthorized 
access, vandalism, and trash. Annually

Inspect site and document signs of 
encroachment or trash on 
maintenance form, GPS locations), 
and create map showing locations). 

Hours 4 100.00               400.00           1 400.00$                         

Task C.1-2 - Site 
Security 5.3.4 RO

Remove trash and debris.  Fill 
tire ruts and fill and level soil 
surface where necessary.  
Confer with County and/or 
resource agencies if necessary.

Annually

Pick up and remove trash and debris. 
Ensure that no trash and debris 
accumulate on or directly adjacent to 
the GGS exclusion fence. 

Hours 4 100.00               400.00           1 400.00                           

Task C.1-3 - Site 
Security 5.3.4 RO Dispose of trash and debris. Annually Dispose of trash and debris at local 

approved landfill. ls 1 35.00                 35.00             1 35.00                             

Task C.1-4 - Site 
Security 5.3.4 RO Replace or repair signs as 

necessary. 
Annually Repair or replace signage as 

necessary. ls 1 15.00                 15.00             1 15.00                             

Task C.1-5 - Site 
Security 5.3.4 RO Transporation Cost Annually 

Daily cost for transportation, 
including ATV, vehicle, and/or GPS 
as appropriate. 

Days 0.5 250.00               125.00           1 125.00                           

Subtotal 975.00$                         

O:\Greenbriar Development\PAR\PARs 2019\PAR Greenbriar Lone Tree 3-28-2019.xls Lone Tree PAR Page 3 of 7BOARD PACKET 
Page 197 of 202



3/28/2019 3:49 PM

Activity/Actions 
Required SSMP Section Responsible Party Description Frequency 

Required Actions Required Unit Number of Units  Cost/Unit  Total Cost Divide 
Years

 Annual Cost (Part 1) or 
Cost (Part 2) 

Estimated Endowment Costs for Long-Term Resources Management Associated with the Greenbriar Reserve (28.3-acre Lone Tree 

Reserve), City of Sacramento, California. March 28, 2019.

Element C.2 – Mosquito Abatement

Task C.2 - Mosquito 
Abatement 5.4 RO

Conduct annual inspection for 
potential mosquito habitat and 
abundance of mosquitos 
onsite. Coordinate with 
mosquito abatement district as 
necessary. 

Once annually 
during mosquito 
breeding season 

Document conditions at site 
regarding presence/absence of vector 
breeding areas; photograph, GPS, 
and map potential problem areas; 
and coordinate with mosquito vector 
control district as necessary.

Hours 1 140.00               140.00           1 140.00$                         

Subtotal 140.00$                         

Element C.3 – Fences, gates, locks, signage. 

Task C.3-1 – Fences, 
gates, locks, signs. 5.3.4 RO Inspect fences, gates, locks, 

and signs. 
 Annually Inspect for damage or need for 

maintenance. Hours 4 100.00               400.00           1 400.00                           

Task C.3-2 – Fences, 
gates, locks, signs. 5.3.4 RO Repair barb wire fences and 

gates as needed.  
 Annually

Maintain fence and gates (proper 
tension, attachments to posts, broken 
wire, etc.).  

ls 1 1,000.00            1,000.00        1 1,000.00                        

Task C.3-3 – Fences, 
gates, locks, signs. 5.3.4 RO

Replace all barb wire fencing 
and posts. 

Assumes every 
30 years

Replace worn fence with 30 year 
gauge metal fencing.  Assumes 5-
strand barb wire on metal posts with 
10 foot centers with end post braces 
for tension support. 

ln ft 6,990 7.00                   48,930.00      20 2,446.50                        

Task C.3-4 – Fences, 
gates, locks, signs. 5.3.4 RO Replace gates.  7 gates. Assumes every 

30 years

Replace worn gates with 16 foot 
wide rolled steel gate (e.g. Powder 
River) with braced supports on both 
sides.  

each 7 750.00               5,250.00        30 175.00                           

Task C.3-5 – Fences, 
gates, locks, signs. 5.3.4 RO

Repair/replace signs as 
needed. 

 Annually
Repair or replace signs that have 
fallen, broken, are illegible or have 
poor supporting posts. 

ls 1 100.00               100.00           1 100.00                           

Task C.3-6 – Fences, 
gates, locks, signs. 5.3.4 RO Replace locks as needed. Every 5 years

Replace locks on the gates with 
hardened steel pad locks. 

each 7 15.00                 105.00           5 21.00                             

Task C.3-7 – Fences, 
gates, locks, signs. 5.3.4 RO

Repair giant garter snake 
exclusion fence as needed. 

Every 5 years
Repair the giant garter snake 
exclusion fence as needed. 

ls 1 5,000.00            5,000.00        5 1,000.00                        

O:\Greenbriar Development\PAR\PARs 2019\PAR Greenbriar Lone Tree 3-28-2019.xls Lone Tree PAR Page 4 of 7BOARD PACKET 
Page 198 of 202



3/28/2019 3:49 PM

Activity/Actions 
Required SSMP Section Responsible Party Description Frequency 

Required Actions Required Unit Number of Units  Cost/Unit  Total Cost Divide 
Years

 Annual Cost (Part 1) or 
Cost (Part 2) 

Estimated Endowment Costs for Long-Term Resources Management Associated with the Greenbriar Reserve (28.3-acre Lone Tree 

Reserve), City of Sacramento, California. March 28, 2019.

Task C.3-8 – Fences, 
gates, locks, signs. 5.3.4 RO Transporation Cost Annually 

Daily cost for transportation, 
including ATV, vehicle, and/or GPS 
as appropriate. 

Days 1 250.00               250.00           1 250.00                           

Subtotal 5,392.50$                      

Element D.1 – Annual Report

Task D.1-1 - Prepare 
Annual Report 5.5 RO Prepare Annual Report Annually

Describe status of the  Preserve, 
positives and negatives with 
references biological resources and 
management. Provide summary of 
management actions, including 
grazing summary. Provide 
recommendations for remedial 
actions. 

Hours 8 190.00               1,520.00        1 1,520.00                        

Task D.1-2 - Prepare 
Biological Section of 
Annual Report

5.5 RO
Prepare biological section 
every 5 years as described in 
Management Plan.

5 years

Prepare biological section of the 
accounting and management report based 
on analysis of data from biological 
monitoring as scheduled and described 
for Element A.1 and A.2. Assess 
change's) in biological resources by 
comparing current data with baseline and 
previous years' data.  Include illustrative 
figures & maps for comparative purposes. 
Make recommendations as necessary.

Hours 4 140.00               560.00           5 112.00$                         

Subtotal 1,632.00$                      

Record Keeping and Reporting

Record Keeping and 
Reporting RO Admin RO Annual Work Plan Annually

Prepare work plan and annual budget 
for internal use based  management 
plan and on annual budget 
allocations

Hours 4 190.00               760.00           1 760.00                           

Record Keeping and 
Reporting RO Admin RO

Maintain Periodic Inspection 
Documentation and Annual 
Report

Annually

Collect and maintain documentation 
of all (1) management/maintenance 
activities by date, (2) maintenance 
monitoring forms, (3) vendor 
invoices and receipts, (4) biological 
data and data forms, and (5) track 
budget status and spending 
allocations on form data sheet. 

Hours 2 140.00               280.00           1 280.00                           

Subtotal 1,040.00$                      

Administration 

O:\Greenbriar Development\PAR\PARs 2019\PAR Greenbriar Lone Tree 3-28-2019.xls Lone Tree PAR Page 5 of 7BOARD PACKET 
Page 199 of 202



3/28/2019 3:49 PM

Activity/Actions 
Required SSMP Section Responsible Party Description Frequency 

Required Actions Required Unit Number of Units  Cost/Unit  Total Cost Divide 
Years

 Annual Cost (Part 1) or 
Cost (Part 2) 

Estimated Endowment Costs for Long-Term Resources Management Associated with the Greenbriar Reserve (28.3-acre Lone Tree 

Reserve), City of Sacramento, California. March 28, 2019.

Administration RO Admin RO Contracts with vendors Annually Manage contracts Hours 2 140.00               280.00           1 280.00$                         

Administration RO Admin RO
Accompany ANRT or 
Agencies on site visits as 
needed. 

Annually Coordinate and meet on-site with 
ANRT and Agencies as necessary. Hours 4 140.00               560.00           1 560.00                           

Administration RO Admin RO Accounting Annually Bookkeeping Hours 2 140.00               280.00           1 280.00                           

Administration RO Admin RO Taxes Annually Property Taxes Acres 28 -                     -                 1 -                                

Administration RO Admin RO Insurance Annually Insurance ls 1 2,000.00            2,000.00        1 2,000.00                        

Administration
Conservation 

Easement 
Manager (CEM)

Non-Profit

Endowment management, site 
visit; site conservation easement 
compliance, review of compliance 
reports, annual report submittal. 

Annually
Site inspections and review of 
reports prepared by reserve operator. Contract Item 1 5,000.00            5,000.00        1 5,000.00                        

Subtotal 8,120.00$                      

TOTAL ANNUAL ITEMIZED COSTS 36,604.50$                    

Contingency (Annual Costs)
Rate

Contingency RO Admin RO Contingency for unanticipated 
items

Annually

Fund is to cover unanticipated items 
and activities necessary in order to 
meet the goal of the conservation 
area

item 36,604.50$                 10% 3,660.45        1 3,660.45$                      

Subtotal 3,660.45$                      

TOTAL ANNUAL COSTS WITH CONTINGENCY 40,264.95$                    

Funding Income Cap Rate Endowment:

 Funding Endowment 
Management Non-Profit

Establish endowment fund for 
implementation of the 
Management Plan by Reserve 
Operator. 

Single Payment Receive endowment funds and 
establish endowment Single Payment 40,264.95$         3.5% 1,150,427.14$               

ENDOWMENT REQUIREMENTS FOR ANNUAL LONG-TERM MANAGEMENT AND MAINTENANCE 1,150,427.14$               

O:\Greenbriar Development\PAR\PARs 2019\PAR Greenbriar Lone Tree 3-28-2019.xls Lone Tree PAR Page 6 of 7BOARD PACKET 
Page 200 of 202



3/28/2019 3:49 PM

Activity/Actions 
Required SSMP Section Responsible Party Description Frequency 

Required Actions Required Unit Number of Units  Cost/Unit  Total Cost Divide 
Years

 Annual Cost (Part 1) or 
Cost (Part 2) 

Estimated Endowment Costs for Long-Term Resources Management Associated with the Greenbriar Reserve (28.3-acre Lone Tree 

Reserve), City of Sacramento, California. March 28, 2019.

PART 2. NON-RECURRING MONITORING AND MANAGEMENT COSTS
Non-Annual Monitoring Costs

Restricted 
Endowment (Three-
Year Funding 
Account) Years 1 - 3 
Monitoring

Conservation 
Easement 

Manager (CEM)
Non-Profit

Provides funding of the first 
three years of management 
and monitoring expenses.

During Years 1 - 
3

Perform maintenance monitoring 
activities. Item 1 120,794.85        120,794.85                    

Subtotal 120,794.85$                  

Conservation Easement Manager Fees

Fee to be charged by 
Reserve Operator 
(aka Land Manager)

RO Admin Land Manager Initiation of Management one time only

Final coordination with agencies 
regarding document finalization, 
assemble all documents, prepare 
annual event calander, coordination 
with Conservation Easement 
Manager and Endowment Holder.

Item 1 20,000.00          20,000.00                      

Fee to Be Charged by 
Endowment Holder

Conservation 
Easement 

Manager (CEM)
Non-Profit Conservation Easement Fee one time only Pay Fee Item 1 20,000.00 20,000.00                      

Fee to Be Charged by 
Endowment Holder

Conservation 
Easement 

Manager (CEM)
Non-Profit

For Non-Profit 
legal/emergency fund

one time only Establish Fund One Time 
Payment 1,150,427.14$    1.0% 11,504.27                      

Subtotal 51,504.27$                    

TOTAL NON-RECURRING ITEMIZED COSTS, CONSERVATION EASEMENT MANAGER FEES, AND ENDOWMENT HOLDER FEES 172,299.12$                  

ENDOWMENT COSTS FOR ANNUAL COSTS AND NON-RECURRING COSTS AND FEES 1,322,726.26$   

SUMMARY: ENDOWMENT REQUIREMENTS FOR LONG TERM MANAGEMENT AND MAINTENANCE
Part 1. Endowment to Provide Annual Income of: 40,264.95$    1,150,427$                    
Part 2. One time Payment for Non-Recurring Monitoring Costs: 120,794.85                    
Part 3. One Time Payment for Non-Recurring Fees 51,504.27                      

1,322,726.26$              

Assumption #2:  Repair and replacement of the GGS exclusion fence will be the responsibility of the individual lot owners, or HOA as appropriate, enforceable through CC&R verbiage.  

Assumption #1:  Repair and maintenace activities by RD1000 may occur as necessary using an approach meant to minimize disturbance to covered species or their habitat.  RD1000 will be responsible for canal maintenance, including sediment removal as 
needed.  

Assumption #3:  Damage occuring as a result of unusual weather or vandalism will be repaired promptly under the supervision of the Reserve Operator, funding may include contingency funds as identified above (with approval of the CE grantee).  If the 
money necessary to repair the damage exceeds what can be provided by PAR contingency funding, then the balance of costs will be provided by the Land Owner. 

Assumption #4:  Reserve Operator will be responsible for repair/replacement of approximately 1800 ln ft of 5-strand barb wire fencing to be installed perpendicular to the channel at the north and south perimeter boundary, plus gates.  The west side fence, 
GGS exclusion fence, fence associated with the residendital street 3 crossing, and fence associated with the light rail channel crossing will be maintained by others (i.e. RD1000, MAP POA, HOA, and/or Light Rail Authority).  

O:\Greenbriar Development\PAR\PARs 2019\PAR Greenbriar Lone Tree 3-28-2019.xls Lone Tree PAR Page 7 of 7BOARD PACKET 
Page 201 of 202



  
  
  RECLAMATION DISTRICT 1000 
 

Item 7.1.1 – Page 1 
 

 

 
 

DATE:  OCTOBER 9, 2020 AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.1.1 
 

 
TITLE:  Committee Meeting Minutes 
 

SUBJECT: Meeting Minutes from Committee Meetings Since the September Board 
Meeting 

 

 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:  
 
Executive Committee Meeting – September 30, 2020 
 
A meeting of the Reclamation District No. 1000 Executive Committee was held on Wednesday, 
September 30, 2020 at 8:00 a.m. via GoToMeeting and Conference Call. In attendance were 
Trustees Smith, Burns and Gilbert.  Staff in attendance were General Manager King and District 
Counsel Smith.  No members of the public were present and therefore no public comments were 
made. 
 
General Manager King presented the proposed agenda for the October 9, 2020 Board of Trustees 
meeting.  The Committee reviewed the agenda and approved as presented.  
 
With no further business on the Executive Committee Agenda, meeting adjourned at 8:35 a.m. 
 
 
STAFF RESPONSIBLE FOR REPORT: 
 
 
____________________________________________    Date: 10/01/2020 
Kevin L. King, General Manager 

BOARD PACKET 
Page 202 of 202


	BOT Agenda October 2020
	4.1
	4.1 General Managers Report_10012020.pdf
	4.1 Attachmennt No. 1 SAFCA Board Meeting September 17 2020.pdf
	4.1 Attachment No. 2 AB 156 Annual Report 2020.pdf

	4.2
	4.2 Superintendent Report October 2020.pdf
	4.2 Attachment 1 Superintendent Report September 2020.pdf

	4.3
	5.1
	5.1 Board Minutes October 2020 Staff Report.pdf
	5.1 Attachment 1 - Sept 2020 Meeting Minutes.pdf

	5.2
	5.2 Treasurer's Report October 2020_Staff Report.pdf
	5.2 Attachment 1 Treasurer's Report September 2020.pdf

	5.3
	5.3 Expenditure Report September 2020 Staff Report.pdf
	5.3 Attachment 1 September 2020 Expenditure Report.pdf
	5.3 Attachment 2 Financial Expense Comparison Summary.pdf

	5.4
	5.4 Budget to Actual Report September 2020.pdf
	5.4 Attachment 1 Budget to Actual September 2020.pdf

	6.1
	6.1 PSA CESI Natomas Basin Hydraulic Model_10012020.pdf
	6.1 Attachment 1 RFQ Natomas Basin Hydraulic Model_07312020
	Reclamation District No. 1000
	Request for Qualifications – Natomas Basin Hydraulic Model
	Introduction
	General
	Mission Statement
	Responsibility Statement
	Vision Statement
	Organizational Chart

	Request for Qualifications – Natomas Basin Hydraulic Model Project
	Executive Summary
	Description of Services / Scope of Work
	Qualification Proposal Deadline
	Questions

	Section A – MINIMUM QUALIFICATIONS
	Minimum Qualifications – Natomas Basin Hydraulic Model Project

	Section B – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS & SUBMITTAL REQUIREMENTS
	Requirement to Meet All Provisions
	Qualification Proposals
	Insurance Certificate
	Submittal of References
	Statement of Contract Disqualifications
	Qualification Proposal Withdrawal and Opening
	Communications
	Qualification Proposal Retention and Award
	Competency and Responsibility of Firm
	Contract Requirement
	Insurance Requirements
	Failure to Accept Contract

	Section C – QUALIFICATION PROPOSAL CONTENT AND SELECTION PROCESS
	Qualification Proposal Content
	Qualification Proposal Evaluation and Consultant Selection

	Section D – FORM OF AGREEMENT
	Agreement

	Section E – SUBMITTAL FORMS ACKNOWLEDGEMENT
	Insurance Certificate
	Statement of Past Contract Disqualifications
	References

	Section F – INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS: Consultant Services


	6.1 Attachment 2 CESI Professional Services Agreement_10012020
	Name of Project: Natomas Basin Hydraulic Model Project
	RECLAMATION DISTRICT NO. 1000

	6.1 Attachment 2 Exhibit A Natomas Basin Hydraulic Model Proposal
	6.1 Attachment 2 Exhibit A  Natomas Basin Proposal.pdf
	6.1 Attachment 2 Exhibit A Master Budget_Schedule Spreadsheet.pdf


	6.2
	6.2 Property Acquisition_10012020
	6.2 Attachment 1 Lone Tree Canal - Proposal Summary
	6.2 Attachment 2 Lone Tree Canal Reserve SSMP and PAR
	6.2 Attachment 2 Lone Tree Canal Reserve.pdf
	Chapter 1.0 Introduction
	1.1 Background
	1.2 Goals and Objectives
	1.2.1 Type and Area of Habitat to be Preserved
	1.2.2 Type and Area of Habitat to be Restored and Enhanced
	1.3 Site Selection
	1.4 Ownership Status, Legal Arrangements and Protection Instrument
	Chapter 2.0 Project Background
	2.1 Project Location and Summary
	2.1.1 Location of Greenbriar Development Project
	2.1.2 Summary of Greenbriar Development Project
	2.1.3 Summary of the Greenbriar Conservation Strategy
	2.1.4 Project Schedule
	2.2 Project Impacts
	2.2.1 Jurisdictional Waters
	2.2.2 Special-Status Species
	Chapter 3.0 Lone Tree Canal Reserve Description
	3.1 Reserve Location
	3.2 Existing Land Use
	3.3 Topography
	3.4 Soils
	3.5 Hydrology
	3.6 Proposed Enhancement
	3.7 Habitat Types
	3.7.1 Grassland
	3.7.2 Seasonal Wetland
	3.7.3 Active Canal
	3.8 Aquatic Functions and Values
	3.9 Jurisdictional Waters
	3.10 NBHCP Covered Species
	3.10.1 Western Pond Turtle
	3.10.2 Giant Garter Snake
	3.10.3 Tri-colored Blackbird
	3.10.4 Western Burrowing Owl


	3.10.1 Aleutian Canada Goose
	3.10.2 Swainson’s Hawk
	3.10.3 White-faced Ibis

	Chapter 4.0 Greenbriar Conservation Strategy
	4.1 Overall Conservation Strategy
	4.2 Conservation Strategy at the Lone Tree Canal Reserve
	Chapter 5.0 Maintenance and Long-Term Management
	5.1 Land Use
	5.2 Aquatic Resources
	5.3 Reserve Operations

	5.3.1 Hunting
	5.3.2 Other Public Incursion
	5.3.3 Community Outreach
	5.3.4 Reserve Maintenance

	5.3.5 Water Levels in Lone Tree Canal
	5.3.6 Summary of Reserve Management Activities

	5.4 Biological Monitoring
	5.4.1 Site Condition
	5.4.2 Photo-documentation
	5.4.3 General Avian and Wildlife Survey

	5.5 Reporting
	Chapter 6.0 Adaptive Management Plan
	Chapter 7.0 Transfer and Replacement
	7.1 Transfer
	7.2 Replacement

	Chapter 8.0 References
	8.1 Literature Cited

	PAR Greenbriar Lone Tree 3-28-2019.pdf


	7.1.1



